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BUDGET OVERVIEW



 Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

Budget Outline 
  
After review of several options, the Board requested the 2011/2012 Budget be prepared with the following assumptions for 
increases compared to estimated yearend figures:  Potential Rate Increase of 1%, potential merit increase of 1%, and 
anticipated increase in expenditures of 1.5% (approximate Consumer Price Index change in 2010), except where certain 
increases/decreases are known and noted below.  The below are notes identified in the Detailed Budget line items. 
  
Note 1:  Water Revenue for the District is less than what was budgeted in the prior fiscal year due to excessive rainfall in the 
area and cooler temperatures.  Another considerable factor is the loss of revenue for water consumption at the schools (line 
7).  Revenues budgetd assume a possible 1% increase in water related rates and fees. 
  
Note 2:  Water Purchases are down compared to the prior budget (over 29% - Line 48) due to three factors:  Reduction in 
production, more efficient use of Well #14, and the lease of water rights at a reduced rate for the current and upcoming 
year. 
  
Note 3:  Salaries are less than budgeted in the prior year due to staff being out on leave for a significant portion of the year.  
This position was filled with a temporary staff member.  Temporary staff expenses are not included in “salaries and benefits” 
but rather are included in “Outside Services” (Line 74).  The reason line 74 is not over budget as a result is because the 
District had a contract position that was not filled (engineering) due to lack of space.  That position was designated as a 
“contract” position and was budgeted under line 74. 
  
Note 4:  Directors fees are set at a maximum per state law and the District’s policy.  The Budget assumes that all Directors 
will be paid for the maximum.   
  
Note 5:    Outside Service is increased due to continued use of temporary staff the office and anticipated use of  contractural 
staff (Salaries and Benefits reflects this assumption too) in Engineering. 
  
Note 6:    Fuel costs are up 27% over last year’s average.  Staff is estimating that this will drop slightly but that we will still 
have a 25% increase in fuel over 2010/2011 costs. Management is looking at ways to reduce fuel costs to help keep this 
down. 
  
Note7:    Parks requested an additional $15,000 budget for parks programs.  Parks currently has one children’s program set 
up (Tumbling) and is anticipating two more in the coming year.  There are also Adult programs in progress and planned (Yoga 
and Dance).  We will also continue to hold one day events (Workshops: Winterizing your home, Water Efficient Plants, 
Composting, Desert reptiles and other creatures, etc.    
  
Note 8:    Rent is being eliminated as result of the completion of the modular building.  
  
Note 9:    Utilities are down over last year’s budget, in spite of a rate increase by Edison last year.  This is due to efficiencies 
implemented by the District and reduced water production due to weather, etc. identified in Note 1. 
  
Note 10:    Depreciation and amortization will increase due to the addition of assets such as the modular, computer software 
and equipment, etc.   
  
Note 11:    Staff is anticipating another reduction in property tax revenue as a result of the foreclosures sold this past year, 
reducing the property values.  
  
Note 12:    Total Other Income is down significantly ($812,000) as we don’t anticipate any revenue from the county this year 
(we received $716,000 from the County in 10/11 that was a one-time revenue) and due to proper tax reductions. 
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SUMMARY



 Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

PPHCSD PPHCSD PPHCSD PPHCSD

2008/09 2009/2010 2010/11 2011/2012

Audited Audited Etimated Proposed

Actual Actual  Year End  Budget

Final 

0.0% 0.0%

1 Operating Revenue

2    Water Sales 4,348,927$    3,872,217$    3,812,864$    3,850,992$         

3    Other Services 100,820         127,612         96,013           96,941                

4       Total Operating Revenues 4,449,747$    3,999,829$    3,908,877$    3,947,933$         

5

6 Operating Expenses

7    Water Purchases 312,250$       498,777 240,740 244,500

8    Professional Services 399,018 273,861         307,171         351,779              

9    Salaries and Benefits - Enterprise 1,027,983      1,652,250      1,557,768      1,542,985           

10    Services and Supplies - Enterprise 1,844,247      838,279         693,920         720,503              

11    Rents and Leases 46,664           46,072           43,834           -                     

12    Utilities 1,079,743      956,158         902,139         915,671              

13    Depreciation 886,786         727,000         1,245,600      1,364,284           

14    Other 151,950         258                261                964                     

15    Board Compensation 32,469           42,497           63,836           64,253                

16       Total Operating Expenses 5,781,109$    5,035,151$    5,055,269$    5,204,939$         

17

18       Net Operational Income (Water & Admin) (1,331,362)$   (1,035,322)$   (1,146,392)$   (1,257,006)$        

19

20 Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

21    Investment Earnings 449,025$       161,050         91,801           92,719                

22    Investment Expense (140,689)        (118,451)        (102,923)        (123,524)             

23    Property Taxes 1,323,361      1,011,758      956,203         860,849              

24    Special Assessments 283,142         328,243         359,496         359,496              

25    Other Taxes -                 -                 -                 -                     

26    State/County Assist (Incl County Equipment) 98,397           1,016,854      716,854         -                     

27    Penalties 49,933           131,240         83,266           84,098                

28    Other Income 37,218           (22,434)          5,174             5,226                  

29    Connection Fees 80,698           55,444           -                 -                     

30    Ordinary Income Government Funds 79,693           13,780           17,944           18,123                

31    Ordinary Expense Government Funds (183,279)        (258,135)        (265,207)        (308,242)             

32    Other Income/Expenses Government Funds* 328,233         (4,144)            (2,778)            (2,819)                 

33       Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 2,405,733$    2,315,205$    1,859,830$    985,926$            

34

35 Net Income 1,074,370$    1,279,883$    617,857$       (271,080)$           

36

37 Depreciation 936,786$       777,000$       1,301,600$    1,420,284$         

38 Loan Principal Payments (97,000)          (100,000)        (104,000)        (108,000)             

39 Net Cash Avail for Projects/Reserves 1,914,156$    1,776,883$    1,180,287$    1,041,204$         

40

41 Beginning Cash in Bank (in Forcast Years = Cash Balance from Prior Year + Reserves Prior Year) 11,369,600.00$      

42 RESERVES -6,733,905.00

43 CIP PROJECTS -1,398,000.00

44 CAPITAL PURCHASES -22,000.00

45 CASH BALANCE = AVAILABLE CASH FOR NEXT YEAR'S PROJECTS 4,256,899.08$        

Budget Comparison
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 Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

Summary of All Funds
Assumptions: A B D C E F G I

Rates/Income 1.0%

Expense 1.5% PROPOSED PROPOSED PROPOSED

Salary 1.0%
2010/2011     

Annual Budget 

Actual                     

Jul '10 - Feb 11 Est YE 10/11

2011/2012     

BUDGET

2010/2011     

Annual Budget 

Actual                     

Jul '10 - Feb 11 Est YE 10/11

2011/2012     

BUDGET

2010/2011     

Annual Budget 

Actual                     

Jul '10 - Feb 11 Est YE 10/11

2011/2012     

BUDGET

Column E 

compared to C

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income 1.0% 1.0%

25 WATER SALES 4,122,717.00 2,443,622.56 3,812,863.74 3,850,992.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,122,717.00 2,443,622.56 3,812,863.74 3,850,992.37 -6.59% 1.00% 38,128.64

28 METER INSTALLATION 8,100.00 1,961.31 2,941.97 2,941.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,100.00 1,961.31 2,941.97 2,941.97 -63.68% 0.00% 0.00

31 PERMITS & INSPECTION 1,362.00 180.00 270.00 270.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,362.00 180.00 270.00 270.00 -80.18% 0.00% 0.00

34 PARKS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,780.00 11,962.50 17,943.75 18,123.19 13,780.00 11,962.50 17,943.75 18,123.19 31.52% 1.00% 179.44

38 OTHER SERVICE INCOME 118,151.00 61,867.27 92,800.91 93,728.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 118,151.00 61,867.27 92,800.91 93,728.91 -20.67% 1.00% 928.01

41 CONNECTION FEES 55,445.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 55,445.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.00% 0.00% 0.00

42 Total Income from Operations 4,305,775.00 2,507,631.14 3,908,876.61 3,947,933.26 13,780.00 11,962.50 17,943.75 18,123.20 4,319,555.00 2,519,593.64 3,926,820.36 3,966,056.44 -8.18% 1.00%

44 Expense 1.5% 1.5%

50 WATER PURCHASES 354,927.00 47,493.51 240,740.27 244,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 354,927.00 47,493.51 240,740.27 244,500.00 -31.11% 1.56% 3,759.73

62 SALARIES & BENEFIT 1,652,255.00 1,038,511.68 1,557,767.52 1,542,985.35 158,990.00 89,651.85 134,477.78 160,052.01 1,811,245.00 1,128,163.53 1,692,245.30 1,703,037.34 -5.97% 0.64% 10,792.04

68 BOARD COMPENSATIONS 36,748.00 40,790.38 63,835.57 64,253.10 6,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 43,348.00 40,790.38 63,835.57 64,253.10 48.23% 0.65% 417.53

77 PROFESSIONAL FEE 321,482.00 182,780.94 307,171.41 351,778.98 26,766.00 6,636.09 9,954.14 10,103.45 348,248.00 189,417.03 317,125.55 361,882.43 3.92% 14.11% 44,756.88

106 SERVICE AND SUPPLIES 745,857.00 392,946.63 693,919.95 720,502.69 39,885.00 22,969.09 40,453.64 56,559.59 785,742.00 415,915.72 734,373.58 777,062.28 -1.10% 5.81% 42,688.70

110 RENT 46,994.00 35,067.45 43,834.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46,994.00 35,067.45 43,834.31 0.00 -100.00% -100.00% (43,834.31)

117 UTILITIES - Electric/Phone/Gas 1,028,025.00 598,092.50 902,138.75 915,670.83 27,882.00 15,747.84 25,121.76 25,498.59 1,055,907.00 613,840.34 927,260.51 941,169.42 -10.87% 1.50% 13,908.91

122 OTHER- Depreciation/Amort, etc. 792,693.96 830,574.08 1,245,861.12 1,364,549.04 25,274.04 36,800.00 55,200.00 56,028.00 817,968.00 867,374.08 1,301,061.12 1,420,577.04 73.67% 9.19% 119,515.92

123 Total Expense 4,978,981.96 3,166,257.17 5,055,268.89 5,204,240.01 285,397.04 171,804.87 265,207.31 308,241.65 5,264,379.00 3,338,062.04 5,320,476.20 5,512,481.61 4.71% 3.61% 192,005.41

124 Net Income from Operations (673,206.96) (658,626.03) (1,146,392.29) (1,256,306.74) (271,617.04) (159,842.37) (247,263.56) (290,118.45) (944,824.00) (818,468.40) (1,393,655.84) (1,546,425.17) 63.67% 10.96% (152,769.32)

125 Other Income/Expense

126 Other Income -10%

139 PROPERTY TAXES 0.00 1,774.34 2,661.51 2,661.51 991,526.00 529,027.53 953,541.30 858,187.17 991,526.00 530,801.87 956,202.81 860,848.68 -13.18% -9.97% (95,354.13)

142 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 328,244.00 239,664.25 359,496.38 359,496.38 328,244.00 239,664.25 359,496.38 359,496.38 9.52% 0.00%

146 STATE / COUNTY ASSISTANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 116,854.00 716,854.00 716,854.00 0.00 116,854.00 716,854.00 716,854.00 0.00 -100.00% -100.00% (716,854.00)

150 PENALTIES & OTHER FEE 95,710.00 55,510.37 83,265.56 84,098.21 35,531.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131,241.00 55,510.37 83,265.56 84,098.21 -35.92% 1.00%

153 INVESTMENT INCOME 144,886.00 61,245.35 91,868.03 92,786.71 16,165.00 (44.46) (66.69) (67.69) 161,051.00 61,200.89 91,801.34 92,719.01 -42.43% 1.00%

157 OTHER INCOME 5,258.00 3,449.21 5,173.82 5,225.55 61.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,319.00 3,449.21 5,173.82 5,225.55 -1.76% 1.00%

158 Total Other Income 245,854.00 121,979.27 182,968.91 184,771.98 1,488,381.00 1,485,501.32 2,029,824.98 1,217,615.75 1,734,235.00 1,607,480.59 2,212,793.89 1,402,387.83 -19.14% -36.62% (810,406.06)

159 Other Expense

165 Other Expense 146,204.00 69,074.34 103,611.51 124,223.30 4,145.00 1,851.72 2,777.58 2,819.24 150,349.00 70,926.06 106,389.09 127,042.54 -15.50% 19.41%

166 Total Other Expense 146,204.00 69,074.34 103,611.51 124,223.30 4,145.00 1,851.72 2,777.58 2,819.24 150,349.00 70,926.06 106,389.09 127,042.54 -15.50% 19.41%

167 Net Other Income 99,650.00 52,904.93 79,357.40 60,548.68 1,484,236.00 1,483,649.60 2,027,047.40 1,214,796.51 1,583,886.00 1,536,554.53 2,106,404.80 1,275,345.29 -19.48% -39.45% (831,059.51)

Net Income (573,556.96) (605,721.10) (1,067,034.89) (1,195,758.06) 1,212,618.96 1,323,807.23 1,779,783.85 924,678.05 639,062.00 718,086.13 712,748.95 (271,079.88) -142.42% -138.03% (983,828.83)

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS TOTAL ALL FUNDS 11/12 Budget vs. 

Est YEColumn E 

compared to 

column D

Column E 

compared to 

column C

2011 2012 Budget Final, Summary All Funds  Page 9



97.10% 

0.07% 

0.01% 

0.46% 

2.36% 

0.00% 

Income from Operations 

WATER SALES 

METER INSTALLATION 

PERMITS & INSPECTION 

PARKS 

OTHER SERVICE INCOME 

CONNECTION FEES 
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4.44% 

30.89% 

1.17% 
6.56% 

14.10% 

17.07% 

25.77% 

Expenses from Operations 

 WATER PURCHASES 

SALARIES & BENEFIT 

BOARD COMPENSATIONS 

PROFESSIONAL FEE 

SERVICE AND SUPPLIES 

UTILITIES - Electric/Phone/Gas 

OTHER- Depreciation/Amort, etc. 
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61.38% 

25.63% 

6.00% 

6.61% 

0.37% 

Non-Operational Income 

PROPERTY TAXES 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

PENALTIES & OTHER FEE 

INVESTMENT INCOME 

OTHER INCOME 
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89.36% 

7.87% 

2.22% 
0.55% 

Non-Operational Expenses 

Interest Expense 

Loan Administrator Fee 

Tax Deduction 

Net Incr/Decr in Fair Value 

Other Expenses 
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BUDGET DETAIL ALL FUNDS



2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

1 40 · WATER SALES

2 40A · WATER CONSUMPTION

3 40010 Water Sales - Residential - C 2,272,451.71 0.00 2,272,451.71

4 40020 Water Sales - Commercial - C 13,062.00 0.00 13,062.00

5 40030 Water Sales - Fire Protection-C 199.77 0.00 199.77

6 40060 Water Sales - Multiple Res - C 2,681.77 0.00 2,681.77

7 40070 Water Sales - School - C 94,071.85 0.00 94,071.85

8 40090 Water Sales - Construction - C 14,036.99 0.00 14,036.99

9 40110 Water Sales - Adjustment - Wtr (1,359.67) 0.00 (1,359.67)

10 Total 40A · WATER CONSUMPTION 2,395,144.43 0.00 2,395,144.43

11 40B · WATER METER CHARGE

12 41010 Water Sales - Residential - M 1,398,381.03 0.00 1,398,381.03

13 41020 Water Sales - Commercial - M 6,578.30 0.00 6,578.30

14 41030 Water Sales - Fire Protection-M 1,017.47 0.00 1,017.47

15 41060 Water Sales - Multiple Res - M 1,468.34 0.00 1,468.34

16 41070 Water Sales - School - M 15,787.27 0.00 15,787.27

17 41090 Water Sales - Construction - M 826.30 0.00 826.30

18 Total 40B · WATER METER CHARGE 1,424,058.70 0.00 1,424,058.70

19 40C · WATER SALES - MISC

20 42010 Water Sales - Residential -Misc 30,754.50 0.00 30,754.50

21 42020 Water Sales - Commercial-Misc 53.03 0.00 53.03

22 42030 Water Sales - Fire Protection-F 327.24 0.00 327.24

23 42040 Water Sales - School - F 654.48 0.00 654.48

24 Total 40C · WATER SALES - MISC 31,789.25 0.00 31,789.25

25 Total · WATER SALES 3,850,992.37 0.00 3,850,992.37

26 42 · METER INSTALLATION

27 45300 Meter Installation 2,941.97 0.00 2,941.97

28 Total · METER INSTALLATION 2,941.97 0.00 2,941.97

29 44 · PERMITS & INSPECTION

30 45400 Permits & Inspections 270.00 0.00 270.00

31 Total · PERMITS & INSPECTION 270.00 0.00 270.00

32 46 · PARKS

33 47600 Park & Recreation Fee 0.00 18,123.19 18,123.19

34 Total · PARKS 0.00 18,123.19 18,123.19

35 49 · OTHER SERVICE INCOME

36 48200 Other Services Incomes 78,003.21 0.00 78,003.21

37 48700 Administrative Fees 15,725.70 0.00 15,725.70

38 Total · OTHER SERVICE INCOME 93,728.91 0.00 93,728.91

39 76 · CONNECTION FEES

40 45500 Connection Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00

Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 

Final Approved Budget 2011/2012 - Detail

TOTAL ALL FUNDSTOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS
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2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET

TOTAL ALL FUNDSTOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS

41 Total · CONNECTION FEES 0.00 0.00 0.00

42 Total Income 3,947,933.26 18,123.20 3,966,056.44

43 Gross Profit 3,947,933.26 18,123.20 3,966,056.44

44 Expense

45 50 · WATER PURCHASES

46 50010 MWA WM Admin. & Bio Fee 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00

47 50020 MWA WM Make Up Water 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00

48 50030 MWA WM Replacement Water 215,000.00 0.00 215,000.00

49 50040 Water Purchases - Other 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

50 Total · WATER PURCHASES 244,500.00 0.00 244,500.00

51 51 · SALARIES & BENEFIT

52 51110 Salaries & Wages 884,159.49 103,147.38 987,306.87

53 51120 Vacations 44,699.92 2,368.46 47,068.38

54 51130 Holiday 41,522.68 2,605.31 44,127.99

55 51140 Sick Pay 45,297.47 2,842.16 48,139.62

56 51150 Misc Earn 22,000.00 400.00 22,400.00

57 51170 Overtime 90,000.00 2,500.00 92,500.00

58 51210 Payroll Taxes 29,058.99 2,301.69 31,360.67

59 51220 Worker's Compensation 46,168.22 7,962.56 54,130.77

60 51230 Employee Group Insurance 177,472.92 16,965.96 194,438.88

61 51240 Retirement 162,605.66 18,958.49 181,564.15

62 Total · SALARIES & BENEFIT 1,542,985.35 160,052.01 1,703,037.34

63 52 · BOARD COMPENSATIONS

64 52110 Board Director's Fee 36,000.00 0.00 36,000.00

65 52210 Board Exp - Auto Expense 4,945.75 0.00 4,945.75

66 52220 Board Exp - Meals & Lodging 19,867.01 0.00 19,867.01

67 52230 Board Exp - Education/Training 3,440.34 0.00 3,440.34

68 Total · BOARD COMPENSATIONS 64,253.10 0.00 64,253.10

69 53 · PROFESSIONAL FEE

70 53110 Auditing & Accounting Fees 38,901.64 0.00 38,901.64

71 53120 Legal Services 43,952.67 1,741.36 45,694.03

72 53130 Engineering 19,170.81 0.00 19,170.81

73 53140 Laboratory Analysis 9,921.37 0.00 9,921.37

74 53150 Outside Service 168,634.63 7,276.55 175,911.18

75 53160 Permits & Fees 11,934.82 1,085.54 13,020.36

76 53170 Software Support 59,263.03 0.00 59,263.03

77 Total · PROFESSIONAL FEE 351,778.98 10,103.45 361,882.43

78 54 · SERVICE AND SUPPLIES

79 54110 Advertising 782.50 2,035.73 2,818.24

80 54140 Auto Expense 2,654.98 0.00 2,654.98

81 54170 Auto Allowance 8,411.81 0.00 8,411.81

82 54200 Credit Card Fee & Bank Charges 11,121.54 0.00 11,121.54

83 54230 Dues & Subscriptions 31,085.64 479.59 31,565.23

84 54260 Education & Training 22,779.14 0.00 22,779.14

85 54290 Employment Expense 1,032.76 0.00 1,032.76

86 54320 General Maintenance 1,629.47 0.00 1,629.47
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2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET

TOTAL ALL FUNDSTOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS

87 54350 Insurance 84,615.58 2,595.07 87,210.65

88 54380 Insurance - Vehicle 26,424.33 1,543.21 27,967.53

89 54410 Fuel Costs 86,031.63 2,655.06 88,686.69

90 54440 Meeting, Seminar & Supplies 4,735.68 460.04 5,195.71

91 54470 Travel Expense 9,355.34 0.00 9,355.34

92 54500 Operating Supplies 52,538.40 3,696.23 56,234.63

93 54530 Office Supplies 24,322.04 112.57 24,434.62

94 54620 Repair & Maintenance 154,283.89 14,642.38 168,926.28

95 54650 Small Tools 13,197.46 611.91 13,809.37

96 54680 Uniforms 17,586.21 1,195.35 18,781.56

97 54710 Vehicle Maintenance 36,123.84 55.05 36,178.90

98 54740 Easement Lease 627.19 0.00 627.19

99 54770 Computer & Equip Maintenance 7,658.96 0.00 7,658.96

100 54800 Programs (Wtr Conservation,etc) 29,613.23 25,184.89 54,798.11

101 54830 State & County Fees & Services 23,934.73 152.25 24,086.98

102 54860 Postage & Mailing 22,063.07 55.66 22,118.73

103 54890 Printing 5,883.15 0.00 5,883.15

104 54920 Public Relation 20,228.46 0.00 20,228.46

105 57110 Equipment Rental/ Lease 21,781.65 1,084.60 22,866.25

106 Total · SERVICE AND SUPPLIES 720,502.69 56,559.59 777,062.28

107 57 · RENT

108 57210 Rent 0.00 0.00 0.00

109 57310 Storage Rent 0.00 0.00 0.00

110 Total · RENT 0.00 0.00 0.00

111 58 · UTILITIES - Electric/Phone/Gas

112 58010 Telephone 19,959.52 421.88 20,381.41

113 58110 Utilities - Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00

114 58111 Utilities - Street Lights 0.00 15,716.25 15,716.25

115 58110 Utilities - Operations - Other 895,711.31 9,360.45 905,071.76

116 Total 58100 · Utilities 895,711.31 25,076.70 920,788.01

117 Total · UTILITIES - Electric/Phone/Gas 915,670.83 25,498.59 941,169.42

118 59 · OTHER- Depreciation/Amort, etc.

119 59310 Other Operating Expenses 23.57 0.00 23.57

120 59110 Property Taxes 241.47 0.00 241.47

121 59120 Depreciation & Amortization 1,364,284.00 56,028.00 1,420,312.00

122 Total · OTHER- Depreciation/Amort, etc. 1,364,549.04 56,028.00 1,420,577.04

123 Total Expense 5,204,240.01 308,241.65 5,512,481.61

124 Net Ordinary Income (1,256,306.74) (290,118.45) (1,546,425.17)

125 Other Income/Expense

126 Other Income

127 70 · PROPERTY TAXES

128 71110 Property Taxes - Curr Sec 0.00 704,316.61 704,316.61

129 71120 Property Taxes - Curr Unsec 0.00 57,090.28 57,090.28

130 71130 Property Taxes - Curr Supplimen 127.08 (4,486.73) (4,359.65)

131 71140 Property Taxes - Curr Unitary 0.00 18,637.22 18,637.22

132 71150 Property Taxes - Curr Other 0.00 8,544.00 8,544.00
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2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET 2011/2012     BUDGET

TOTAL ALL FUNDSTOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS

133 72110 Property Taxes - Prior Sec 0.00 37,699.22 37,699.22

134 72120 Property Taxes - Prior Unsec 0.00 1,022.03 1,022.03

135 72130 Property Taxes - Prior Supplimn 1,077.14 6,241.14 7,318.28

136 72150 Property Taxes - Prior Other 0.00 894.43 894.43

137 73160 Property Taxes - Homeowner 1,015.82 8,276.45 9,292.26

138 73170 Tax Penalties & Others 441.48 19,952.50 20,393.98

139 Total · PROPERTY TAXES 2,661.51 858,187.17 860,848.68

140 71 · SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

141 74110 Special Assessments 0.00 359,496.38 359,496.38

142 Total · SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 0.00 359,496.38 359,496.38

143 72 · STATE / COUNTY ASSISTANCE

144 84110 County Assistance - Park 0.00 0.00 0.00

145 84130 Share of County's Pooled Equip. 0.00 0.00 0.00

146 Total · STATE / COUNTY ASSISTANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00

147 75 · PENALTIES & OTHER FEE

148 86110 Penalties & Other Fees - Adm 0.00 0.00 0.00

149 86120 Penalties & Other Fees 84,098.21 0.00 84,098.21

150 Total · PENALTIES & OTHER FEE 84,098.21 0.00 84,098.21

151 78 · INVESTMENT INCOME

152 87110 Interest Income 92,786.71 (67.69) 92,719.01

153 Total · INVESTMENT INCOME 92,786.71 (67.69) 92,719.01

154 791 · OTHER INCOME

155 88120 Other Income - Water Other 5,225.55 0.00 5,225.55

156 88150 Other Income - County 0.00 0.00 0.00

157 Total  · OTHER INCOME 5,225.55 0.00 5,225.55

158 Total Other Income 184,771.98 1,217,615.75 1,402,387.83

159 Other Expense

160 796 · Other Expense

161 91010 Interest Expense 113,524.06 0.00 113,524.06

162 92010 Loan Administrator Fee 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

163 93010 Tax Deduction 2.86 2,819.24 2,822.11

164 95010 Net Incr/Decr in Fair Value 696.38 0.00 696.38

165 Total · Other Expense 124,223.30 2,819.24 127,042.54

166 Total Other Expense 124,223.30 2,819.24 127,042.54

167 Net Other Income 60,548.68 1,214,796.51 1,275,345.29

Net Income (1,195,758.06) 924,678.05 (271,079.88)
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 CIP PROJECTS



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

ESTIMATE

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/LOCATION 2010/2011

1 Master Plan Boosters 3C Booster A & B Upsize 8,000.00           

2 * Emergency Power Plugs Install emergency power plugs at 4 sites 75,000.00         

3 Tank Rehabs 10-Year Contract 215,000.00       

4 Level Control & Pump Valves Possible rebuilds of equipment 40,000.00         

5 Well Rehabs Rehabilitation of wells 120,000.00       

6 Booster Rehabilitation Rehabilitation of  booster pumps 50,000.00         

7 Tank Exterior Blast and Paint 95,000.00         

8 SCADA Upgrade of 6 of the remaining sites 15,000.00         

9 Site 2B Upgrade New Buildings, boosters, cans, plumbing & elect. 10,000.00         

10 PRV Stations Inspect and possible rebuild of 30 stations 40,000.00         

11 * Solar Power Project To suppliment District power costs 250,000.00       

12 * Adjudication of Water Rights 250,000.00       

13 ** Electronic Sign Warbler/Sheep Creek 30,000.00         

14 ** GIS/Mapping Convert GIS and mapping to new system 25,000.00         

1,223,000.00$  

15 */** Pinon Hills Park Improvements 175,000.00       

175,000.00       

TOTAL PROJECTS 1,398,000.00    

*Carry over from prior year budget

**Not on Matrix.

PROJECT LIST

2011/2012 CIP Projects
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CAPITAL PURCHASES



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

2011/2012 CAPITAL PURCHASES

DESCRIPTION

1 WATER OPERATIONS

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS 0.00

10 METER MAINTENANCE/CONSERVATION

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 TOTAL METER MAINTENANCE/CONSERVATION 0.00

19 VEHICLES:

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 TOTAL VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 0.00

29 ENGINEERING

30 Software Updates - H2o Net, ESRI, Trimble GPS 7,000.00

31 Nobel - GIS Support Software - new software for GIS conversion/interface 15,000.00

32

33

34

35

36

37

38 TOTAL ENGINEERING 22,000.00

39 OFFICE

40 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48 TOTAL OFFICE 0.00

49 TOTAL CAPITAL PURCHASES 22,000.00$      
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CASH FLOW



Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Net Profit (Loss) 2011/2012 (271,079.88)$      

Depreciation 1,420,312.00

Cash available from operations 2010/2011 1,149,232.12$    

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Projects 2011/2012 (1,398,000.00)$   

Capital Purchases 2011/2012 (22,000.00)

Total Investment Activity 2011/2012 (1,420,000.00)$   

FINANCE ACTIVITIES

CIEDB Loan (Principal) (108,000.00)$      

Total Finance Activity 2011/2012 (108,000.00)$      

NET CASH FROM 2011/2012 ACTIVITIES $ (378,767.88)

CASH IN BANK

Cash in Bank Beginning Balance 11,369,600.00$  

Board Approved Reserves * (6,733,905.00)

Cash Available for 2011/2012 Activities $ 4,635,695.00

Net Cash $ 4,256,927.12

*Reserves average of Directors suggestions per workshop

CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS
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Budget Forecast



Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District

Budget 2011/2012

Assumptions 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Rate Increase 3.0% 3.5% 4.0% 5.0%

Merit 1.5% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Expenses 2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 3.0%

2011/2012 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

1 Operating Revenue

2    Water Sales 3,850,992$        3,966,522$         4,105,350$         4,269,564$         4,483,043$         

3    Other Services 96,941               96,941                96,941                96,941                96,941                

4       Total Operating Revenues 3,947,933$        4,063,463$         4,202,291$         4,366,505$         4,579,984$         

5

6 Operating Expenses

7    Water Purchases 244,500 249,390              255,625              263,293              271,192              

8    Professional Services 351,779             358,815              367,785              378,818              390,183              

9    Salaries and Benefits - Enterprise 1,542,985          1,566,130           1,597,453           1,629,402           1,661,990           

10    Services and Supplies - Enterprise 720,503             734,913              753,286              775,884              799,161              

11    Rents and Leases -                    -                      -                     -                     -                     

12    Utilities 915,671             466,992              239,333              246,513              253,909              Note A

13    Depreciation 1,364,284          1,391,570           1,558,403           1,622,070           1,707,236           Note B

14    Other 964                    984                     1,008                  1,038                  1,070                  

15    Board Compensation 64,253               65,538                67,177                69,192                71,268                

16       Total Operating Expenses 5,204,939$        4,834,331$         4,840,069$         4,986,211$         5,156,008$         

17

18       Net Operational Income (Water & Admin) (1,257,006)$       (770,868)$           (637,778)$           (619,706)$           (576,025)$           

19

20 Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

21    Investment Earnings 92,719               92,719                92,719                92,719                92,719                

22    Investment Expense (123,524)            (123,524)             (123,524)             (123,524)             (123,524)             

23    Property Taxes 860,849             860,849              860,849              860,849              860,849              

24    Special Assessments 359,496             359,496              359,496              359,496              359,496              

25    Other Taxes -                    -                      -                     -                     -                     

26    State/County Assist (Incl County Equipment) -                    -                      -                     -                     -                     

27    Penalties 84,098               84,098                84,098                84,098                84,098                

28    Other Income 5,226                 5,226                  5,226                  5,226                  5,226                  

29    Connection Fees -                    -                      -                     -                     -                     

30    Ordinary Income Government Funds 18,123               18,123                18,123                18,123                18,123                

31    Ordinary Expense Government Funds (308,242)            (314,406)             (322,267)             (331,935)             (341,893)             

32    Other Income/Expenses Government Funds* (2,819)               (2,819)                 (2,819)                 (2,819)                 (2,819)                 

33       Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 985,926$           979,761$            971,901$            962,233$            952,275$            

34

35 Net Income (271,080)$          208,893$            334,123$            342,527$            376,250$            

36

37 Depreciation 1,420,284$        1,447,570$         1,614,403$         1,678,070$         1,763,236$         

38 Loan Principal Payments (108,000)            (110,000)             (115,000)             (119,000)             (123,000)             

39 Net Cash Avail for Projects/Reserves 1,041,204$        1,546,463$         1,833,526$         1,901,597$         2,016,487$         

40

41 Beginning Cash in Bank (in Forcast Years = Cash Balance from Prior Year + Reserves Prior Year)11,369,600.00$    10,990,804.08$      7,510,267.05$        7,411,793.22$        6,736,389.94$        

42 RESERVES -6,733,905.00 -6,845,745.00 -7,246,145.00 -7,398,945.00 -7,603,345.00 Note C

43 CIP PROJECTS -1,398,000.00 -5,005,000.00 -1,910,000.00 -2,555,000.00 -2,160,000.00

44 CAPITAL PURCHASES -22,000.00 -22,000.00 -22,000.00 -22,000.00 -22,000.00

45 CASH BALANCE = AVAILABLE CASH FOR NEXT YEAR'S PROJECTS4,256,899.08$      664,522.05$           165,648.22$          (662,555.06)$         (1,032,468.39)$      

Note A:  Assumes that the Solar Project will save 1/2 of the utility costs in the first year and 3/4 thereafter.

Note B: Depreciation changes based on the additional assets (CIP Projects) added in the prior year.

Forecast Model

PPHCSD Forecast

Note C:  Based on average of reserve levels recommended by Directors + Assumes additional assets each year x .08 

= additional reserves

2011 2012 Budget Final Page 26



Step Ranges

JOB TITLE Level MINIMUM MAXIMUM

ADMINISTRATIVE TECH I 50 16.38 20.46

ADMINISTRATIVE TECH II 60 18.06 22.56

ADMINISTRATIVE TECH III 80 21.96 27.42

PARKS MAINTENANCE I 40 14.86 18.56

PARKS MAINTENANCE II 60 18.06 22.56

PARKS OPERATIONS SUPVSR 85 23.05 28.79

CUST. SERVICE/METER TECH I 60 18.06 22.56

CUST. SERVICE/METER TECH II 75 20.91 26.11

CUST. SERVICE/MTR SUPVSR 90 24.21 30.23

WATER SYSTEM OPERATOR I 60 18.06 22.56

WATER SYSTEM OPERATOR II 75 20.91 26.11

WATER OPERATIONS SUPVSR 95 25.42 31.74

BOARD SECTY/HR/RISK MGMT 95 25.42 31.74

ENGINEERING TECH/INSPECTOR 95 25.42 31.74

OPERATIONS MANAGER 110 33.63 41.99

PROJECT COORDINATOR 105 32.03 40.00

ADMIN. SVCS MGR/TREASURER 125 44.49 55.56

GENERAL MANAGER

Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District
JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Salary Range

CONTRACT

2011 2012 Budget Final, Job Classifications,  10/26/2011, 11:11 AM Page 27 



SALARY RANGES



Step: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Level

5 8.00 8.20 8.41 8.62 8.83 9.05 9.28 9.51 9.75 9.99

1,386.67 1,421.33 1,456.87 1,493.29 1,530.62 1,568.89 1,608.11 1,648.31 1,689.52 1,731.76

10 8.40 8.61 8.83 9.05 9.27 9.50 9.74 9.98 10.23 10.49

1,456.00 1,492.40 1,529.71 1,567.95 1,607.15 1,647.33 1,688.51 1,730.73 1,773.99 1,818.34

15 8.82 9.04 9.27 9.50 9.74 9.98 10.23 10.48 10.75 11.01

1,528.80 1,567.02 1,606.20 1,646.35 1,687.51 1,729.70 1,772.94 1,817.26 1,862.69 1,909.26

20 9.26 9.49 9.73 9.97 10.22 10.48 10.74 11.01 11.28 11.57

1,605.24 1,645.37 1,686.51 1,728.67 1,771.88 1,816.18 1,861.59 1,908.13 1,955.83 2,004.72

25 9.72 9.97 10.22 10.47 10.73 11.00 11.28 11.56 11.85 12.14

1,685.50 1,727.64 1,770.83 1,815.10 1,860.48 1,906.99 1,954.67 2,003.53 2,053.62 2,104.96

30 10.21 10.47 10.73 11.00 11.27 11.55 11.84 12.14 12.44 12.75

1,769.78 1,814.02 1,859.37 1,905.86 1,953.50 2,002.34 2,052.40 2,103.71 2,156.30 2,210.21

35 10.72 10.99 11.26 11.55 11.83 12.13 12.43 12.74 13.06 13.39

1,858.27 1,904.72 1,952.34 2,001.15 2,051.18 2,102.46 2,155.02 2,208.89 2,264.12 2,320.72

40 14.86 15.23 15.61 16.00 16.40 16.81 17.23 17.66 18.11 18.56

2,575.86 2,640.25 2,706.26 2,773.92 2,843.26 2,914.35 2,987.20 3,061.88 3,138.43 3,216.89

45 15.60 15.99 16.39 16.80 17.22 17.65 18.10 18.55 19.01 19.49

2,704.65 2,772.27 2,841.57 2,912.61 2,985.43 3,060.06 3,136.56 3,214.98 3,295.35 3,377.74

50 16.38 16.79 17.21 17.64 18.08 18.54 19.00 19.48 19.96 20.46

2,839.88 2,910.88 2,983.65 3,058.24 3,134.70 3,213.07 3,293.39 3,375.73 3,460.12 3,546.62

55 17.20 17.63 18.07 18.53 18.99 19.46 19.95 20.45 20.96 21.48

2,981.88 3,056.42 3,132.83 3,211.15 3,291.43 3,373.72 3,458.06 3,544.51 3,633.13 3,723.95

60 18.06 18.51 18.98 19.45 19.94 20.44 20.95 21.47 22.01 22.56

3,130.97 3,209.24 3,289.47 3,371.71 3,456.00 3,542.40 3,630.96 3,721.74 3,814.78 3,910.15

65 18.97 19.44 19.93 20.42 20.94 21.46 22.00 22.55 23.11 23.69

3,287.52 3,369.71 3,453.95 3,540.30 3,628.80 3,719.52 3,812.51 3,907.83 4,005.52 4,105.66

70 19.91 20.41 20.92 21.45 21.98 22.53 23.10 23.67 24.26 24.87

3,451.89 3,538.19 3,626.65 3,717.31 3,810.25 3,905.50 4,003.14 4,103.22 4,205.80 4,310.94

75 20.91 21.43 21.97 22.52 23.08 23.66 24.25 24.86 25.48 26.11

3,624.49 3,715.10 3,807.98 3,903.18 4,000.76 4,100.78 4,203.30 4,308.38 4,416.09 4,526.49

80 21.96 22.50 23.07 23.64 24.24 24.84 25.46 26.10 26.75 27.42

3,805.71 3,900.86 3,998.38 4,098.34 4,200.80 4,305.82 4,413.46 4,523.80 4,636.89 4,752.81

85 23.05 23.63 24.22 24.83 25.45 26.08 26.74 27.40 28.09 28.79

3,996.00 4,095.90 4,198.30 4,303.25 4,410.83 4,521.11 4,634.13 4,749.99 4,868.74 4,990.45

90 24.21 24.81 25.43 26.07 26.72 27.39 28.07 28.77 29.49 30.23

4,195.80 4,300.69 4,408.21 4,518.42 4,631.38 4,747.16 4,865.84 4,987.49 5,112.17 5,239.98

95 25.42 26.05 26.70 27.37 28.06 28.76 29.48 30.21 30.97 31.74

4,405.59 4,515.73 4,628.62 4,744.34 4,862.95 4,984.52 5,109.13 5,236.86 5,367.78 5,501.98

100 30.50 31.26 32.04 32.85 33.67 34.51 35.37 36.26 37.16 38.09

5,286.71 5,418.87 5,554.35 5,693.20 5,835.53 5,981.42 6,130.96 6,284.23 6,441.34 6,602.37

105 32.03 32.83 33.65 34.49 35.35 36.23 37.14 38.07 39.02 40.00

5,551.04 5,689.82 5,832.06 5,977.86 6,127.31 6,280.49 6,437.51 6,598.44 6,763.41 6,932.49

110 33.63 34.47 35.33 36.21 37.12 38.05 39.00 39.97 40.97 41.99

5,828.59 5,974.31 6,123.67 6,276.76 6,433.68 6,594.52 6,759.38 6,928.37 7,101.58 7,279.11

115 35.31 36.19 37.10 38.02 38.97 39.95 40.95 41.97 43.02 44.09

6,120.02 6,273.02 6,429.85 6,590.60 6,755.36 6,924.24 7,097.35 7,274.78 7,456.65 7,643.07

120 42.37 43.43 44.51 45.63 46.77 47.94 49.14 50.36 51.62 52.91

7,344.03 7,527.63 7,715.82 7,908.71 8,106.43 8,309.09 8,516.82 8,729.74 8,947.99 9,171.68

125 44.49 45.60 46.74 47.91 49.11 50.33 51.59 52.88 54.20 55.56

7,711.23 7,904.01 8,101.61 8,304.15 8,511.75 8,724.55 8,942.66 9,166.23 9,395.38 9,630.27

130 46.71 47.88 49.08 50.30 51.56 52.85 54.17 55.53 56.91 58.34

8,096.79 8,299.21 8,506.69 8,719.36 8,937.34 9,160.78 9,389.80 9,624.54 9,865.15 10,111.78

135 49.05 50.27 51.53 52.82 54.14 55.49 56.88 58.30 59.76 61.25

8,501.63 8,714.17 8,932.03 9,155.33 9,384.21 9,618.81 9,859.28 10,105.77 10,358.41 10,617.37

140 51.50 52.79 54.11 55.46 56.85 58.27 59.72 61.22 62.75 64.32

8,926.71 9,149.88 9,378.63 9,613.09 9,853.42 10,099.76 10,352.25 10,611.06 10,876.33 11,148.24

145 54.08 55.43 56.81 58.23 59.69 61.18 62.71 64.28 65.89 67.53

9,373.05 9,607.37 9,847.56 10,093.75 10,346.09 10,604.74 10,869.86 11,141.61 11,420.15 11,705.65

150 56.78 58.20 59.65 61.14 62.67 64.24 65.85 67.49 69.18 70.91

9,841.70 10,087.74 10,339.94 10,598.43 10,863.40 11,134.98 11,413.35 11,698.69 11,991.16 12,290.93

Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District

2011/2012 SALARY RANGES - 2.5% between steps Includes 1.3% COLA
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
Phelan, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Phelan Pinon Hills 
Community Services District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.   

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District as 
of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in net assets and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

As described in Note 1.B to the basic financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 24, 2011, 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in 
considering the results of our audit. That report can be found on page 31. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report, continued 
 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

 
 
 
Charles Z. Fedak and Company, CPA’s – An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
October 24, 2011
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District (District) provides an introduction to the financial 
statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

 Net assets increased 2.28% or $773,044 to $34,693,544 as a result of this year's operations. 

 Total revenues decreased 7.22% or $452,599 in 2011 due primarily to a $147,646 decrease in 
other non-operating revenue in the water fund as a result of a prior year gain on sale of disposed 
assets and a $183,038 decrease in other income in the park fund from fiscal year 2010. 

 Total expenses increased by 3.73% or $181,355 in 2011 due primarily to a increase in the water 
fund expenses of $127,534 from fiscal year 2010. 

Using This Financial Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities provides information about the activities and performance of the District using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies.  The Statement of Net Assets 
includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities).  
It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All of the current year’s revenue and 
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities.  This statement measures the success of the 
District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine the District’s profitability and credit 
worthiness.   

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities report information about the District in a way that helps answer this question. These statements 
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in them. Think of the District’s net 
assets – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure the District’s financial 
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other 
non-financial factors; however, such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the types of grants 
the District applies for to assess the overall financial health of the District. 
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Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower that that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be 
found on pages 16 through 30. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Statement of Net Assets 

The following table is a summary of the statement of net assets at June 30, 2011. 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total District

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 3,072,421      1,882,460    10,360,518  11,792,531  13,432,939    13,674,991  
Non-current assets 129,876         126,400       -               -               129,876         126,400       
Capital assets, net 2,062,298      2,104,045    22,572,994  21,885,230  24,635,292    23,989,275  

Total assets 5,264,595      4,112,905    32,933,512  33,677,761  38,198,107    37,790,666  

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 13,324           116,006       727,077       908,120       740,401         1,024,126    
Non-current liabilities 5,126             2,105           2,759,036    2,833,935    2,764,162      2,836,040    

Total liabilities 18,450           118,111       3,486,113    3,742,055    3,504,563      3,860,166    

Net assets:
Investment in capital assets, 
 net of related debt 2,062,298      2,104,045    19,762,550  18,971,254  21,824,848    21,075,299  
Unrestricted 3,183,847      1,890,749    9,684,849    10,954,452  12,868,696    12,845,201  

Total net assets $ 5,246,145      3,994,794    29,447,399  29,925,706  34,693,544    33,920,500  

 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
In the case of the District, assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $34,693,544 as of June 30, 2011. 
Compared to prior year, net assets of the District increased 2.28% or $773,044.  The District's net assets 
are made-up of two components:  (1) net investment in capital assets and (2) unrestricted net assets.     
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Statement of Activities 

The following table is a summary of the statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

Condensed Statement of Activities

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total District

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ -                 142,601         3,932,214      3,860,371      3,932,214      4,002,972      
Capital grants and contributions 600,000         300,000         151,582         176,546         751,582         476,546         

General revenues:
Property taxes 907,485         1,108,201      -                 14,631           907,485         1,122,832      
Interest earnings 10,967           11,191           81,866           147,916         92,833           159,107         
Other 20,622           183,538         113,131         325,470         133,753         509,008         

Total revenues 1,539,074      1,745,531      4,278,793      4,524,934      5,817,867      6,270,465      

Expenses:
Parks and recreation 274,856         229,139         -                 -                 274,856         229,139         
Street lighting 12,867           13,963           -                 -                 12,867           13,963           
Water -                 -                 4,757,100      4,620,366      4,757,100      4,620,366      

Total expenses 287,723         243,102         4,757,100      4,620,366      5,044,823      4,863,468      

Change in net assets 1,251,351      1,502,429      (478,307)        (95,432)          773,044         1,406,997      

Net assets, beginning of year 3,994,794      2,492,365      29,925,706    30,021,138    33,920,500    32,513,503    

Net assets, end of year $ 5,246,145      3,994,794    29,447,399  29,925,706  34,693,544    33,920,500  

 

Net assets increased by 2.28% or $773,044 due in part to an increase in capital contributions of $275,036 
from the prior year and the result of operations. 

Total revenues decreased 7.22% or $452,598 in 2011 due primarily to a $147,646 decrease in other non-
operating revenue in the water fund as a result of a prior year gain on sale of disposed assets and a 
$183,038 decrease in other income in the park fund from fiscal year 2010. 

The District’s total expenses increased by 3.73% or $181,355 in 2011 due primarily to a increase in the 
water fund expenses of $127,534 from fiscal year 2010. 

Capital Asset Administration 
Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total District

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 1,246,197      1,233,329    2,972,869    1,625,829    4,219,066      2,859,158    
Depreciable assets 1,069,849      1,069,849      34,751,392    34,164,754    35,821,241    35,234,603    

     Total capital assets 2,316,046      2,303,178      37,724,261    35,790,583    40,040,307    38,093,761    

Accumulated depreciation (253,748)        (199,133)      (15,151,267) (13,905,353) (15,405,015)   (14,104,486) 

     Total capital assets, net $ 2,062,298      2,104,045    22,572,994  21,885,230  24,635,292    23,989,275  

 

At the end of fiscal year 2011, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $24,635,292 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, building 
improvements, furnishings and equipment, collection and distribution systems, tanks, wells, water 
transmission and distribution systems and construction-in-process. The capital assets of the District are 
more fully analyzed in Note 4 to the basic financial statements. 
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Long-Term Debt Administration 
Long-term Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Long-term debt:
Long-term debt $ -                 -               2,810,444    2,913,976    2,810,444      2,913,976    

 
Long-term debt decreased due to regular debt payments. The long-term debt position of the District is 
more fully analyzed in Note 6 to the basic financial statements. 

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

Management is unaware of any conditions, which could have a significant impact on the District’s current 
financial position, net assets or operating results in terms of past, present and future. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.  
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact the District’s Administrative Services Manager at 4176 
Warbler Road, Phelan, California 92371or (760) 868-1212. 
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Governmental Business-type
Assets Activities Activities Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 3,030,481          $ 9,244,514          12,274,995        
Accrued interest receivable -                     332                    332                    
Accounts receivable – water sales and services -                     807,840             807,840             
Accounts receivable – other -                     9,548                 9,548                 
Property taxes and assessments receivable 41,940               60,042               101,982             
Materials and supplies inventory -                     95,006               95,006               
Prepaid expenses and other assets -                     143,236             143,236             

Total current assets 3,072,421          10,360,518        13,432,939        

Non-current assets:
Note receivable - property tax from state (note 3) 129,876             -                     129,876             
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 4) 1,246,197          2,972,869          4,219,066          
Capital assets – being depreciated, net (note 4) 816,101             19,600,125        20,416,226        

Total non-current assets 2,192,174          22,572,994        24,765,168        

Total assets 5,264,595          32,933,512        38,198,107        

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,513                 267,887             272,400             
Accrued salaries and related payables 3,685                 195,815             199,500             
Customer deposits and deferred revenue -                     53,169               53,169               
Accrued interest on long-term debt -                     47,302               47,302               
Long-term liabilities – due within one year:

Compensated absences (note 5) 5,126                 55,748               60,874               
Long-term debt (note 6) -                     107,156             107,156             

Total current liabilities 13,324               727,077             740,401             

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note 5) 5,126                 55,748               60,874               
Long-term debt (note 6) -                     2,703,288          2,703,288          

Total non-current liabilities 5,126                 2,759,036          2,764,162          

Total liabilities 18,450               3,486,113          3,504,563          

Net assets:
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt (note 8) 2,062,298          19,762,550        21,824,848        
Unrestricted (note 9) 3,183,847          9,684,849          12,868,696        

Total net assets $ 5,246,145        $ 29,447,399       34,693,544      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and
Capital Changes in Net Assets

Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:
Parks and recreation $ 274,856        -               600,000       325,144       -                 325,144       
Street lighting 12,867          -               -               (12,867)        -                 (12,867)        

Total governmental 287,723         -                 600,000         312,277         -                 312,277         

Business-type activities:
Water 4,757,100     3,932,214    151,582       -               (673,304)        (673,304)      

Total business-type 4,757,100      3,932,214      151,582         -                 (673,304)        (673,304)        

                Total $ 5,044,823     3,932,214    751,582       312,277       (673,304)        (361,027)      

General revenues:
Property taxes $ 907,485       -                 907,485       
Interest earnings 10,967         81,866           92,833         
Other 20,622         113,131         133,753       

    Total general revenues 939,074       194,997         1,134,071    

    Change in net assets 1,251,351    (478,307)        773,044       

Net assets, beginning of year 3,994,794    29,925,706    33,920,500  

Net assets, end of year $ 5,246,145    29,447,399    34,693,544  

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Parks Total
and Street Governmental

Recreation Lighting Activities

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,030,481      -                 3,030,481        
Property taxes and assessments receivable 41,940           -                 41,940             

Total assets 3,072,421    -                 3,072,421      

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,513             -                 4,513               
Accrued wages and related payables 3,685             -                 3,685               

Total liabilities 8,198             -                 8,198               

Fund balance:
Assigned 10,252           -                 10,252             
Unassigned 3,053,971      -                 3,053,971        

Total fund balance 3,064,223      -                 3,064,223        

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 3,072,421    -                 3,072,421      
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Reconciliation:

Fund balance of governmental funds $ 3,064,223        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is different because:

Non-current assets applicable to the District are not receivable in the current period and, therefore, are
   not reported as fund assets. All assets both current and non-current, are reported in the 
   Statement of Net Assets as follows: 129,876           

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are
   not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. However, the statement of net assets includes
   those capital assets among the assets of the District as a whole. 2,062,298        

Long-term liabilities applicable to the District are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly
   are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities both current and long-term, are reported in the 
   Statement of Net Assets as follows: (10,252)            

Net assets of governmental activities $ 5,246,145      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Parks Total
and Street Governmental

Recreation Lighting Activities

Revenues:
Property taxes $ 904,009         -                 904,009           
Capital grants 600,000         -                 600,000           
Interest earnings 10,967           -                 10,967             
Other 20,622           -                 20,622             

Total revenues 1,535,598      -                 1,535,598        

Expenditures:
Parks and recreation 213,497         -                 213,497           
Street lighting -                 12,867           12,867             
Capital outlay 12,868           -                 12,868             

Total expenditures 226,365         12,867           239,232           

Net income(loss) 1,309,233      (12,867)          1,296,366        

Other financing sources(uses):
Transfers in(out) (12,867)          12,867           -                   

Total other financing sources (12,867)          12,867           -                   

Change in fund balance 1,296,366      -                 1,296,366        

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,767,857      -                 1,767,857        

Fund balance, end of year $ 3,064,223    -                3,064,223      
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Reconciliation:

Net changes in fund balance of total governmental funds $ 1,296,366        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities are not considered current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in the government funds as follows:

Accrued interest - property tax from State 3,476             

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense as follows:

Capital outlay 12,868             
Depreciation expense (54,615)            

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and are therefore not reported as expenses in the governmental fund as follows:

Net change in compensated absences (6,744)              

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,251,351      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Water
Assets Enterprise

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,244,514          
Accrued interest receivable 332                    
Accounts receivable – utilities, net 807,840             
Accounts receivable – other 9,548                 
Property taxes and assessments receivable 60,042               
Materials and supplies inventory 95,006               
Prepaid expenses and other assets 143,236             

Total current assets 10,360,518        

Non-current assets:
Capital assets – not being depreciated 2,972,869          
Capital assets – being depreciated, net 19,600,125        

Total non-current assets 22,572,994        

Total assets 32,933,512        

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 267,887             
Accrued salaries and related payables 195,815             
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 53,169               
Accrued interest on long-term debt 47,302               
Long-term liabilities – due within one year:

Compensated absences 55,748               
Long-term debt 107,156             

Total current liabilities 727,077             

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences 55,748               
Long-term debt 2,703,288          

Total non-current liabilities 2,759,036          

Total liabilities 3,486,113          

Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets 19,762,550        
Unrestricted 9,684,849          

Total net assets $ 29,447,399        

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Water
Enterprise

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales $ 2,124,831          
Monthly meter service charge 1,411,724          
Special assessment 324,650             
Other charges and services 71,009               

Total operating revenues 3,932,214          

Operating expenses:
Source of supply – water related purchases 147,596             
Pumping – utilities 752,063             
Transmission and distribution 408,278             
General and administrative 2,087,333          

Total operating expenses 3,395,270          

Operating income before depreciation 536,944             
  Depreciation (1,245,913)         

Operating loss (708,969)            

Non-operating revenues(expenses):
Interest earnings 81,866               
Interest expense – long-term debt (105,876)            
Other non-operating revenues 113,131             
Other non-operating expenses (10,041)              

Total non-operating revenues, net 79,080               

Net loss before capital contributions (629,889)            

Capital contributions:
Capital grants 151,582             

Capital contributions 151,582             

Change in net assets (478,307)            

Net assets, beginning of year 29,925,706        

Net assets, end of year $ 29,447,399        

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Water
Enterprise

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers $ 3,849,078      
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers (3,501,857)     

Net cash provided by operating activities 347,221         

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Other non-operating revenues 113,131         
Other non-operating expenses (10,041)          

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 103,090         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,934,599)     
Proceeds from capital contributions 151,582         
Principal payments on long-term debt (103,532)        
Interest payments on long-term debt (58,574)          

Net cash used in capital and financing activities (1,945,123)     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases and sales of investments, net 154,801         
Interest earnings 81,534           

Net cash provided by investing activities 236,335         

Net decrease in cash (1,361,567)     

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,606,081    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 9,244,514      

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating loss (708,969)        

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,245,913      
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable – water sales and services (179,462)        
Accounts receivable – other 12,341           
Property taxes and assessments receivable 83,985           
Materials and supplies inventory 23,125           
Prepaid expenses and other assets 21,426           

Increase(decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (273,608)        
Accrued salaries and related payables 4,341             
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 45,785           
Compensated absences 72,344           

   Total adjustments 1,056,190      

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 347,221         

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Service District (District) was established through an election on 
February 5, 2008. With an 81% approval rating, the voters approved the formation of the District as a 
consolidation of three San Bernardino County Special District Service Areas of: Zone-L70 Water, CSA-9 
Phelan Parks and Street Lighting and CSA56-F1 Piñon Hills Parks. The San Bernardino County Special 
District Service Areas named above transferred $31,439,131 in net assets to form the District. 

This consolidation enabled the communities of Phelan and Piñon Hills to establish a form of self-
governance while maintaining their individual rural integrity. The 128 square mile District is the largest 
Community Service District in San Bernardino County. 

The primary component of the District is water service to the approximately 6,700 customers. Parks and 
recreation are a vital component to any community. As part of the District there are two community 
centers. These centers are utilized for a wide range of activities and are available to the community for a 
nominal fee. Adjacent to the centers are two parks that have picnic tables and playgrounds. They are 
available from morning until dusk. The street lights serve primarily the business district of Phelan. The 
street lights are not owned by the District, but the District pays for the electricity use costs for the street 
lights. 

The District normally conducts two monthly general meetings of the Board of Directors which are held on 
the first and third Wednesdays of the month in the Phelan Community Center.  

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (an amendment of No. 14). The District is the 
primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected 
by the citizens in a general election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the 
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially 
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to 
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.  The District has 
no blended or discretely-presented component units. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

B. New Accounting Pronouncements 

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District implemented Government Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. 
The requirements of this statement are effective for the financial statement periods beginning after June 
15, 2010.  

GASB 54 enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied, and it clarifies the existing governmental fund type 
definitions. It establishes balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to 
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in the 
governmental funds. These classifications are described in the Fund Equity section of Note 1.D.8. 

GASB 54 also provides guidance for classifying stabilization amounts on the face of the balance sheet 
and requires disclosure of certain information about stabilization arrangements in the notes to the 
financial statements. The definitions of the general fund, special revenue fund type, capital projects fund 
type, debt service fund type, and permanent fund type are also clarified by the provisions in this 
statement.  

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The basic financial statements of the District are composed of the following: 

 Government-wide financial statements 

 Fund financial statements 

 Notes to the basic financial statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

These statements are presented on an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting for both governmental and business-like activities. Accordingly, all of the District’s assets and 
liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The 
Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset 
used, such as, unbilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end.  The Statement of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the operating expenses of a given function are offset by operating 
revenues. Operating expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. The types of 
transactions reported as operating revenues for the District are charges for services directly related to the 
operations of the District. Charges for services include revenues from customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the District. Taxes, 
operating grants and other items not properly included among operating revenues are reported instead as 
non-operating revenues. Contributed capital and capital grants are included as capital contributions.  
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued 

Fund Financial Statements 

These statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances for all major governmental funds. Accompanying these statements is a schedule to 
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net assets 
presented in the Government-wide Financial Statements.  

Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities are included 
on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances present 
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in 
net current assets. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. 
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60-days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary sources susceptible to accrual 
for the District are property tax, interest earnings, investment revenue and operating and capital grant 
revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fund liability is incurred. However, exceptions to this rule include principal and interest on debt, 
which are recognized when due. 

The accrual basis of accounting is followed by the proprietary enterprise funds. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred 
or economic asset used, such as, unbilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Revenues are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period 
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Operating revenues and expenses, such as 
water sales and purchases of water, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal 
activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considered 
operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above categories, such as interest 
income and interest expense, are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are 
generally followed in both the government-wide and propriety fund financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.  The District has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established for the purpose of carrying out specific 
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued 

Funds are organized into two major categories: governmental and proprietary categories. An emphasis is 
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if 
it is the primary operation fund of the District or meets the following criteria: 

a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
proprietary fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type; and 

b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund 
or proprietary fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and 
proprietary funds combined. 

c) The entity has determined that a fund is important to the financial statement user. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

Parks and Recreation – This fund is used to account for all parks and recreation activities within the 
District. 

Street Lighting – This fund is used to account for all street lighting activities within the District. 

Enterprise Funds 

Water – This fund accounts for the water transmission and distribution operations of the District. 

D. Financial Statement Elements 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts.  The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

2. Accounts Receivable – Water Sales and Services 

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management reviews all 
accounts receivable as collectible. 

3. Property Taxes and Assessments 

The San Bernardino County Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the 
County each year. The San Bernardino County Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the District’s 
share of property taxes and/or tax assessments. The San Bernardino County Treasurer’s Office remits 
current and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in 
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 

Property taxes and assessments receivable at year-end are related to property taxes and special 
assessments collected by the San Bernardino County, which have not been credited to the District's 
cash balance as of June 30. The property tax calendar is as follows:  

Lien date March 1 
Levy date July 1 
Due dates November 1 and February 1 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Financial Statement Elements, continued 

4. Materials and Supplies Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipe fittings for 
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system.  Inventory is 
valued at cost using a weighted average method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time 
that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed. 

5. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation and/or historical cost. Upon retirement or other disposition of 
capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances 
and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

 Infrastructure, street lighting – 30 to 40 years 
 Vehicles and equipment – 5 to 10 years 

Business-Type Activities 

 Facility and systems – 10 to 40 years 
 Vehicles and equipment – 5 to 10 years 

7. Net Assets/Fund Balances 

The government-wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation.  Net assets categories are 
as follows: 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net 
assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 Unrestricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Financial Statement Elements, continued 

8. Fund Equity 

The financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to 
honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent. 

 Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
spendable in form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

 Restricted fund balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions enabling legislation. 

 Committed fund balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined 
by formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of 
Directors) and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying 
action that imposed the limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting 
period. 

 Assigned fund balance – amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for 
specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision-making, 
or by a body or an official designated for that purpose. This is also the classification for 
residual funds in the District’s special revenue funds.  

 Unassigned fund balance – the residual classification for the District’s general fund that 
includes amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned 
classification is used only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts 
restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes.  

The Board of Directors established, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments 
by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent 
budget amendments that occur throughout the year. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, followed by the unrestricted, committed, assigned and unassigned resources 
as they are needed. 

Fund Balance Policy 

The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be 
retained by the District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial 
base, the District needs to maintain an unrestricted fund balance in its funds sufficient to fund cash 
flows of the District and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue 
shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances are considered 
unrestricted. 

The purpose of the District’s fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources 
to protect against reducing service levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue 
shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Financial Statement Elements, continued 

9.  Water Sales and Services 

Water sales are billed on a bi-monthly basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through June 30 has 
been accrued at year-end for the enterprise funds. 

10. Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property 
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital connection 
expenditures or capacity commitment. 

11. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 2011

Cash on hand $ 500                  
Deposits held with financial institutions 11,994,381      
Depoists held with California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 280,114           

Total $ 12,274,995      

As of June 30, the District's authorized deposits had the following maturities:

Deposits held with California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 237 days
 

 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

The District’s investment policy authorizes investments in Certificates-of-deposit and the California 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District’s investment policy does contain specific provisions 
intended to limit its exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit 
risk.  

Local Agency Investment Fund 

The District is a voluntary participant in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by California Code Section 16429 under oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. 
Each agency in the fund may invest up to $40 million and may invest without limitation in special bond 
proceeds accounts. Amounts held with LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash 
within a twenty-four hour period without loss of accrued interest. Credit and market risk is unknown.
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(2) Cash and Investments, continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the 
District’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental 
units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral 
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. Of the District’s bank 
balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance 
with the code. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Code and the District’s investment 
policy contain legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments 
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment 
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools.  

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The longer the maturity an investment has the greater its fair value has sensitivity to changes 
in market interest rates. The District’s investment policy follows the Code as it relates to limits on 
investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District’s investment policy does not contain various limitations on the amounts that can be invested 
in any one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the California Government 
Code. The District’s deposit portfolio with governmental agencies such as the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) was 2% of the District’s total depository and investment portfolio as of June 30, 2011. 
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(3) Note Receivable – Property Tax from State 

Under the provisions of the State of California Proposition 1A and as part of the 2010 fiscal year State of 
California budget package passed by the California State Legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of 
California borrowed 8.0% of the amount of property tax revenue apportioned to cities, counties and 
special districts. The State of California is required to repay this borrowing plus interest by June 30, 2013. 
After repayment of this initial borrowing, the California State Legislature may consider only one 
additional borrowing within a ten-year period. The amount of the borrowing plus interest pertaining to the 
District was $129,876. The borrowing by the State of California was recognized as a note receivable in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

(4) Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities: 

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2010 Additions Transfers 2011

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 1,180,743      -                 -                  1,180,743       
Construction in progress 52,586           12,868           -                  65,454            

   Total non-depreciable assets 1,233,329        12,868             -                   1,246,197        

Depreciable assets:
Land improvements 1,057,004      -                 -                  1,057,004       
Equipment 12,845           -                 -                  12,845            

   Total depreciable assets 1,069,849      -                 -                  1,069,849       

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (197,153)        (53,973)          -                  (251,126)         
Equipment (1,980)            (642)               -                  (2,622)             

   Total accumulated depreciation (199,133)        (54,615)          -                  (253,748)         

   Total depreciable assets, net 870,716           (54,615)            -                   816,101           

   Total capital assets, net $ 2,104,045      2,062,298       

 
Major governmental capital asset additions during fiscal year 2011 include additions to non-depreciable 
construction in progress.  
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(4) Capital Assets, continued 

Enterprise Funds: 

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2010 Additions Transfers 2011

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 780,835         -                 (1,011)             779,824          
Construction in progress 844,994         1,936,501      (588,450)         2,193,045       

   Total non-depreciable assets 1,625,829        1,936,501        (589,461)          2,972,869        

Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 17,189,515    -                 -                  17,189,515     
Reservoirs 4,187,496      -                 -                  4,187,496       
Pumping Station 4,114,808      -                 -                  4,114,808       
Wells 4,442,165      247,950         -                  4,690,115       
Tanks 1,463,404      -                 -                  1,463,404       
Hydrants and telemetry control 191,669         -                 -                  191,669          
Meters 1,921,146      -                 -                  1,921,146       
Planning and development -                 319,427         -                  319,427          
Vehicles and equipment 654,551         19,261           -                  673,812          

   Total depreciable assets 34,164,754    586,638         -                  34,751,392     

Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains (9,096,530)     (467,485)        -                  (9,564,015)      
Reservoirs (1,517,428)     (159,247)        -                  (1,676,675)      
Pumping Station (2,084,447)     (111,265)        -                  (2,195,712)      
Wells (675,615)        (119,658)        -                  (795,273)         
Tanks (160,588)        (38,611)          -                  (199,199)         
Hydrants and telemetry control (121,028)        (38,334)          -                  (159,362)         
Meters (48,029)          (192,115)        -                  (240,144)         
Planning and development -                 (1,331)            -                  (1,331)             
Vehicles and equipment (201,688)        (117,868)        -                  (319,556)         

   Total accumulated depreciation (13,905,353)   (1,245,914)     -                  (15,151,267)    

   Total depreciable assets, net 20,259,401      (659,276)          -                   19,600,125      

   Total capital assets, net $ 21,885,230    1,277,225      (589,461)         22,572,994     

 
Major enterprise capital asset additions during fiscal year 2011 include additions to non-depreciable 
construction in progress and depreciable wells, planning and development, and vehicles and equipment.  

(5) Compensated Absences 
 

Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation leave that accrue when benefits are fully vested and are 
determined annually.  Compensated absences turn-over each year, therefore, the compensated absence 
balance of the District is considered a current liability on the Statements of Net Assets. 

The changes to compensated absences balances at June 30, were as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within Due in more
2010 Earned Taken 2011 One Year than one year

$ 42,660             216,728           (137,640)        121,748         60,874         60,874          
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(6) Long-term Debt 

Changes in long-term debt were as follows:

Balance Balance
2010 Additions Payments 2011

CA Infrastructure & Economic Dev. Bank $ 2,913,976        -                   (103,532)          2,810,444        

Total loan payable 2,913,976      -                 (103,532)         2,810,444       

Less: current portion (100,040)          (107,156)          

$ 2,813,936      2,703,288       
 

California Infrastructure & Economic Development Bank – Revenue Bonds Payable 

The San Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, entered into an Installment 
Loan Agreement (Agreement) dated December 17, 2002 with the California Infrastructure and Economic 
Development Bank (CIEDB) to fund water system improvements in County Service Area 70, Zone L - 
Water Tank Project. According to the Agreement, the CIEDB is expected to issue a total amount of 
$5,001,000 in Infrastructure State Revolving Fund Program Revenue Bonds (Bonds) to the San 
Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, on a reimbursement basis. The San 
Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, has agreed to make installment 
payments to the CIEDB on the Bonds, secured by a pledge of first lien on all the pledged net system 
revenue and all amounts in the San Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L.  

Total amounts reimbursed by the CIEDB from inception to June 30, 2009 was $3,537,908 and the 
principal amount paid by the San Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L on 
the Bond was $457,244. The remainder of the loan payable balance was assumed by the Phelan-Piñon 
Hills Community Service District per LAFCO resolution No. 2989 as of March 18, 2008. The balance of 
the CIEDB loan assumed was $3,110,664. 

The term of the agreement is thirty years from December 17, 2002 at an interest rate of 3.50%. Principal 
and interest payments are due on the Bonds each February 1st.   

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 107,156          113,524         220,680          
2013 110,906          109,774         220,680          
2014 114,788          105,892         220,680          
2015 118,805          101,875         220,680          
2016 122,964          97,716           220,680          

2017-2021 682,467          420,932         1,103,399      
2022-2026 810,557          292,842         1,103,399      
2027-2030 742,801          126,038         868,839          

Totals 2,810,444       1,368,593      4,179,037      

Less: current portion (107,156)         

Total non-current $ 2,703,288       
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(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing 
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS act as a 
common investment and administrative agent for participating public agencies within the State of 
California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and the Agency. 
Copies of CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained form their executive Office: 400 P Street, 
Sacramento, CA, 95814. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan is 8% of 
their annual covered salary. The Agency makes these contributions required of Agency employees on 
their behalf and for their account.  Also, the Agency is required to contribute the actuarially determined 
remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The required employer contribution 
rates are equal to the annual pension costs (APC) percentage of payroll for fiscal year 2011 as noted 
below. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute, and the 
employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.  For fiscal year 2011, the 
Agencies annual contribution for CalPERS and were equal to the Agencies required and actual 
contribution for each fiscal year as follows:   

Three Year Funding Information: 

Annual Percentage Net APC
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension Percentage 
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation of Payroll

2009* $ -                      100% - 0.000%
2010 200,484           100% - 10.309%
2011 170,288           100% - 10.309%

The Districts defined benefit pension plan was implemented in fiscal year 2010.  

 
(8) Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Governmental Business-type
The balance consists of the following: Activities Activities Total   

Capital assets – not being depreciated $ 1,246,197      2,972,869      4,219,066        
Capital assets – being depreciated, net 816,101         19,600,125    20,416,226      
Long-term debt – current portion -                 (107,156)        (107,156)          
Long-term debt – long-term portion -                 (2,703,288)     (2,703,288)       

Total $ 2,062,298      19,762,550    21,824,848      
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(9) Unrestricted Net Assets 
 

Governmental Business-type
Net assets are designated as follows: Activities Activities Total   

Parks and recreation $ 3,182,388      -                  3,182,388        
Street lighting -                 -                  -                  
Materials and supplies inventory -                 95,006           95,006             
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,459             143,236         144,695           
Water operations and capital replacement -                 9,446,607      9,446,607                                            

Total $ 3,183,847      9,684,849      12,868,696      
 

(10) Fund Balance 

Fund balances are presented in the following categories: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned (See Note 1.D.8 for a description of these categories). A detailed schedule of fund 
balances and their funding composition at June 30, 2011 is as follows: 
 

Fund Balance Category

Assigned:
Compensated absences $ 10,252           

Unassigned fund balance: 3,053,971      

Total fund balance $ 3,064,223      
 

(11) Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the 
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California special districts. The purpose of the 
SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance 
coverage. At June 30, 2011, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA 
as follows: 

 General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk 
financing self-insurance limits of $2,500,000, combined single limit at $2,500,000 per 
occurrence.  

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage: 

 Employee dishonesty coverage up to $400,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty, 
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance and destruction coverage’s.  

 Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within two years after 
the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1.0 billion per 
occurrence, subject to a $2,000 deductible per occurrence.  

 Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $100 million per occurrence, 
subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. 

 Public officials personal liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of 
$500,000 per each elected/appointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the terms, 
with no deductible per claim.  
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(11) Risk Management, continued 

 Workers’ compensation insurance with statutory limits per occurrence and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage up to $5 million. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in the last fiscal years. There were no 
reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal year 2011 and 2010. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable 
that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective 
insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported 
(IBNR). There were no material IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. 

(12) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June 
30, 2011, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.  

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 60 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements.  This standard address how to account for and report service concession 
arrangements (SCAs), a type of public-private or public-public partnership that state and local 
governments are increasingly entering into.  This statement is effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the 
District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.61, The Financial Reporting Entity, Omnibus.  This 
standard is designed to improve financial reporting for governmental entities by amending the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and local Governments.  
This statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The 
impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed 
at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  This standard is designed to improve 
financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by 
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.  This statement is effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The impact of the implementation of this 
Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments:  Application of Hedge 
Accounting Termination Provisions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53.  This standard is 
designed to improve financial reporting by clarifying the circumstances in which hedge accounting should 
continue when a swap counterparty, or swap counterparty’s credit support provider, is replaced.  This 
statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The impact 
of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this 
time. 
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(13) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, 
will not materially affect its financial condition. 

Grant Awards 

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audit could lead to 
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.  
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant. 

(14) Subsequent Event 

Events occurring after June 30, 2011 have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial 
statements or disclosure as of October 24, 2011, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District  
Phelan, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 
2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audits, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
Charles Z. Fedak and Company, CPA’s – An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
October 24, 2011 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Pifion Hills Connnunity Services District 
Phelan, California 

We have audited tlie acco~npanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Phelan Pifion Hills 
Community Services District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively 
colnprise tlie District's basic fina~icial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
011 these basic fi~~ancial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrzineizt Artditing Stuizclnrds, 
issued by the Colnptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reaso~rable assurance about whether the basic financial statelnents are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significa~lt estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial 
statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic fiuancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all laaterial respects, the 
respective fillancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate re~nai~iing fund infonnation of the Phelan Pifion Hills Community Services District as 
of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in net assets and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for 
the year then ended in confor~nity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Goveri'~ii.ent Auditing Sta~zrlurds, we have also issued a report dated October 18, 2010 
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the sesolts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial rel~orting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Governmerzt Azrditirzg Staizclards and should be read in conjunction with this report in 
considering the results of our audit. 

Management's discussion and analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statelnents but is 
supplementary information required by the Governlnental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied 
limited procedures, which colisisted principally of inquiries of managelnent regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supple~nentary infor~nation. However, we did not audit the 
infor~nation and express 110 opi~iion on it. 

October 18,2010 
Cypress, California 

1 

Member of: American institute of Certified Public Accountants California Society of Certified Public Accountants 
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Phelan Pifion Hills Comn~unity Services District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Phelan Picon Hills Co~nmunity Services District (District) provides an introductio~~ to the finaucial 
statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to cousider the 
information presented here in conjunctio~~ with the basic financial statements and related notes, which 
follow this section. 

Mnancial Highlights 

a Net assets increased 4.33% or $1,406,997 to $33,920,500 as a result of this year's operations 

Total revenues decreased 12.26% or $876,339 in 2010 due primarily to a $528,360 decrease in 
charges for services as a result of a one-time adjustment to receivables related to the transition 
from the County of San Bernardino financial records to the District's billi~lg system and a 
$220,666 decrease in service illcome from fiscal year 2009. 

Total expenses decreased by 19.91% or $1,208,964 in 2010 due primarily to a decrease in the 
water fund expenses of $1,243,824 from fiscal year 2009. 

Using This Financial Report 

This annual report consists of a series of fina~icial statemnents. The Statement of Net Assets aud the 
Statement of Activities provides information about the activities and performa~ice of the District using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. The Statement of Net Assets 
includes all of the District's investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities). 
It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the current year's revenue and 
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities. This statement measures the success of the 
District's operations over the past year and call be used to determine the District's profitability and credit 
worthiness. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Statemelit of Net Assets aud Stateme~~t of Activities 

One of the nlost i~nportant questions asked about the District's finances is, "Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year's activities?' The Statement of Net Assets aud the Statement of 
Activities report information about the District in a way that helps answer this question. These stateulellts 
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accozmti~tg, which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's i'et assets and changes in thern. Think of the District's net 
assets - the difference betweell assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the District's fina~lcial 
health, or fiiiaii.cia1 positiorz. Over time, irzcreases or clecreases in the District's net assets are one 
indicator of whether its firzancial lzeulth is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other 
non-financial factors; however, such as changes in the District's property tax base and the types of grants 
the District applies for to assess the o~~erallfirzancial lzealtlz of the District. 
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Fund financial Statements 

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenoes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Gover~imenlal fiinds are used to accoulit for essentially the same functions reported as go~~ernmeli.tal 
activities iu tlie government-wide filiallcial statements. However, unlike the government-wide fillaucial 

statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on mar-term inflows and outflows uf spendable 
reso~~rces, as well as 011 bala~ices of sl)e17ckrble resources available a1 the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information ]nay be useful in evaluating a government's near term finat~cing requiremnents. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower that that of the government-wide fil~allciill 

statements, it is useful to conipare the information presented for gover-niie~ital fiittds with similar 
iliforlnation presented for govemniental activities in the govemlnent-wide fi~iallcial datelnents. By doing 
so, readers niay better understand tlie long-term impact of the gover~iment's near term fi~~anciug 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balalice sheet and the governinental fuud statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
g o v e r n m e ~ i t a l ~ l s  and goi~ern~iiental nctil~ities. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide aud fund financial statements. The notes to the basic filial~cial statements can be 
found on pages 15 through 26. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Statement of Net Assets 

The following table is a sulnlnary of tlie state~nent of net assets at June 30, 2010. 

Cundenscd Stnlcn~cnl nl'Net Assets 

Gove~.nmenbd Aetivitics Bush~ess.lype iLctir.itics Total Di~trlet 

2010 20119 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Assets: 
Currerll i l ~ ~ d  olller ~ S S B ~ S  F 1,882.460 1.588.336 11,792.531 14,812,212 13.674.991 16,400,548 
Noll-corral1 assets 126.400 126.400 
Capitol assets, )let 2,104,045 951,513 21,885,230 19,208,838 23,989,275 20,160,151 

Tolnl assets 4.1 12,905 2,539,849 33,677,761 34,021,050 37,790,666 36,560.899 

Linblllties: 
Cul.rent liabilities 116,006 47.484 918,120 1,052,008 1,034,126 1.099.492 
NO,,-CIIIICII~ liabilities 2.105 2,833,935 2,947,904 2,836,040 2,947.904 

Total llnbllltles 118,111 47,484 3,752,055 3,999,912 3,870,166 4,047,390 

Net assets: 
Net inuesunent in capital assets 2.104.045 951,513 18.971.254 16,194,822 21,075,299 17,146,335 
Ulirestricted 1,890,749 1,540.852 10,954,452 13.826.316 12,845,201 15,367.168 

Total net assets $ 3.994.794 2,492,365 29,925,706 30,021,138 33,920,500 32,s 13.503 

As uoted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govern~nent's finallcia1 position. 
In the case of the District, assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $33,920,500 as of June 30, 2010. 
Co~npared to prior year, ]let assets of the District increased 4.33% or $1,406,997. The District's uet assets 
are made-up of two colnponents: (1) uet i~lveslment in capital assets and (2) unrestricted net assets. 
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Statement of Activities 

The following table is a summary of the statement of activities for the year ended June 30,2010, 

Caodcnscd Statentent of Activities 

Gorerol~nentnl Activities Busi~toss-type Aclivitics Total District 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Revenues: 
P~.ogmm revesucs: 

Cllalges lot services $ 142.601 19,109 3,860,371 4,732,889 4,002,972 4,751,998 
Capital grants and co~~liibulioos 300,000 176,546 80,698 476,546 80,698 

Gcnernl rcvcnaca: 
I'loperty tares 
lntaest earnings 
Oliler 

'Total revcnaes 

Expesses: 
Parks awl reerealion 
Stroo1 lisi,Iing 
Wi~ler 

Totnl cnprnscs 

Chnngc in ~ c t  assets 

Net .assets, beginning of year 2,492,365 1,213,514 30,021,138 30,225,617 32,513,503 31,439,131 

Net assets, and of year $ 3,994,794 2,492,365 29,925,706 10,021,138 33,920,500 32.5J3.503 

Government and business-type activities increased the District's net assets by $1,406,997 thereby 
a c c o u n t i l l g  for the 4.33% illcrease in the net assets of the District. 

Total revenues decreased 12.26% or $876,339 i n  2010 due primarily to a $528,360 decrease in charges 
for services as a result of a one-time adjustment to receivables related to the transition from the C o u i l t y  of 
San Bernardino financial records lo the District's billiug systemn and a $220,666 decrease in service 
income from fiscal year 2009. 

The District's total e x p e l ~ s e s  decreased by 19.91% or $1,208,964 in 2010 due primarily to a decrease in 
the water fund expenses of $1,243,824 from fiscal year 2009. 

Capital Asset Administration 
Capital Assets 

Governmw~tal Activities Business-lypc Acllvitiev Total District 

2010 2009 2010 2009 201 0 2W9 

Cepitnl assets: 
Non-depreciable asseis $ 1,233,329 54,453 1,625,829 869,252 2,859,158 923,705 
Depleciobie assets 1,069.849 1,042,407 34,164,754 31,243,454 35,234,603 32,285,861 

Total capital wets  2,303,178 1,096,860 35,790,583 32,112,70(l 38,093,761 33,209,566 

Acco~mlatcd depreciation (199,131) (145,347) (13,905,353) (12,903,868) (14,104,486) (13,049,215) 

Total capitnl nwcts, nct 6 2,104,WS 951,513 21,885,230 19,208,838 23,989,275 20,160,35 1 

At the em~d of fiscal year 2010, the District's i n v e s t l l l e n t  in capital assets amnounted to $23,989,275 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This i~~vestmem~t in capital assets includes land, buildings, building 
improvements, furnishings aud equipment, collection and distribution systems, tanks, wells, water 
transmissioil a i l d  distribution s y s t e l n s  and construction-in-process. The capital assets of the District are 
more fully analyzed in Note 4 to the basic financial statemnents. 
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Long-Term Debt Administration 
Long-tenn Debt 

Gavenlmenlnl Acti~itic5 I%usiness.'rype Activities Total 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Long-lenn debt: 
Long-te1.111 deb1 $ 2,9 13,976 3,014,016 2,913,976 3,014,016 

Long-term debt decreased due to regi~lar debt payments. The long-lerm debt position of the District is 
Inore fully analyzed in note 6 to the basic financial statements. 

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

Ma~iageme~lt is uliaware of any conditions, which could have a significant impact 011 the District's current 
fiuancial position, net assets or operating results in terms of past, present and future. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District's fullding sources, customers, stakeholders and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition. 
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report 01. wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact the District's Administrative Services Manager at 4037 
Phelan Road, Suite C-I, Phela~i, California 9237lor (760) 868-1212. 
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Phelan Pifion Hills Community Services District 
Statenlent of Net Assets 

June 30,2010 

Govern~ne~~tal  
Assets Activities 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 1,847,221 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable - water sales and services 
Accounts receivable - other 
Propcrty taxcs and asscss~ncnls rcccivablc 33,780 
Materials and sopplics i~ive~~lory 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,459 
Due from other fhnds 

Total current assets 1,882,460 

Non-cursent assets: 
Note receivable -property tax from state (note 3) 126,400 
Capital assets - not being depreciated (note 4) 1,233,129 
Capital assets - heing depreciated, net (note 4) 870,716 

Tolal non-cursent assets 2,230,445 

Total assets 4.1 12,905 

Linbilities nrtd Net Assets 

Cu~.rcnt liabililics: 
Accounls payablc and accrocd expenscs 
Accr~~cd salaries and related 11ayables 
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 
Accrued interest on long-term debt 
Due to other f~mds 
Long-Lenn liabililics - duc within one ycar: 

Compcnsalcd absc~lccs (notc 5) 
Long-term debt (note 6) 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabililics: 
Long-lcrtn liabilities - duc in ~norc Lhan onc ycar: 

Cornpcnsated abscnces (notc 5) 
Long-term debt (note 6) 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Net investment in capital assets (note 8) 
Unrestricted (note 9) 

Total net assets 

Ilosisess-type 
Activities Total 

See accotnpanyi~ig notes to the basic financial statements 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 

FunctionsIProgmms Expenses 

Governn~ental activities: 
Parks and recreation $ 229,139 
Street lighting 13,963 

Total governmental 243,102 

Business-type activities: 
Wate~ 4,620,366 

Total bosiness-type 4,620,366 

Total $ 4,863,468 

Program Revenues 
Capital 

Charges for Grants and 
Services Contributio~~s 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Char~ges in Net Assets 

Goverl~me~ltal Rusiness-type 
Activities Activities Total 

General revenues: 
P~.openy taxes $ 1,108,201 14,631 1,122,832 
Interest earnings 11,191 147,916 159,107 
Other 183,538 325,470 509,008 

Total general revenues 1,302,930 488,017 1,790,947 

Change in net assets 1,502,429 (95,432) 1,406,997 

Net assets, beginning of ycar 2,492,365 30,021,138 32,513,503 

Net assets, end of year $ 3,994,794 29,925,706 33,920,500 

I Scc accompanying notes to [he basic Financiill statements 



Phelan Pifion Hills Comrnu~~ity Services District 
Balance Sheets - Governrne~~tal Funds 

June 30,2010 

Parks Total 
aud Street Governlnelital 

Recreation Ligliting Activities 

Assets: 
Cash and cash cquivalcnts 
Property taxes and assesslneiils lece~vable 
Prepaid expenses and olhcr dcposils 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts l~ayable aild accri~cd cxpcnses 
Accrucd wagcs and relaled payables 
Customer deposits and deferred re.e\,cnue 
Due lo other Ti~nds 

Total liabilities 

Punid balance: 
Reserved for provision ibr parks and recreation 
Reserved for prepaid expeiises 
Reserved for compeiisalctl absc~ices 
Rcscrvcd ibr slreel lighting 

Total fulld balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheets of Govern~nental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2010 

Reconciliation: 

Fu~id balance oi'govern~iienlal funds 

Amounls reported for governmental activities in tlie statelne~il of lie1 assets is different because: 

Non-current assels applicable to tlie District are not receivable in the curre~il period and, therefore, are 
not reported as fund assets. All assets both c u ~ e n l  and lion-cu~~ent, are reported in the 
Slale~nent of Net Assets as follows: 126,400 

Capital assels used in governmenlal activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are 
not reported in tlie govemtnental funds balance sheet. However, tlie statement of net assets includes 
those capilal assets among the assets of the District as a whole. 2,104,045 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the Distdct are iiol due and payable in tlie current period and accordingly 
are 1101 re]el,orled as fi~lld liabilities. All liabilities holh currenl and long-term, are reported in the 
Slatemen1 of Nel Assets as Sollows: (3,508) 

Ncl asscls o l  governmental activities 

See accolnpanyi~ig ~ioles to the basic financial statements 



Phelan Piiion Hills Commui~ity Services District 
Statelnents of Revenues, Expendi tures  a n d  Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental  Fonds 

For the  Fiscal Y e a r  Ended  June  30,2010 

Parks Total 
and Street Governmental 

Recreatiou Lighting Activities 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Spccial asscsslllcllts 
Capital grants 
Inleresl earnings 
Othe~ 

Total revellues 

Expentlitures: 
Parks and recrealion 
Strccl lighting 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net income(loss) 

Other fil~anciug sources(uses): 
Transfers in(ou1) 

Told other fina~~cing sources 

Change in fund bala~lce 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Irul~d balance, end of year 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of 

Goveru~nental Fuuds to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Reconciliation: 

Net changes in fund balance of total goveln~nental fbnds 

Amounts reporled for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activilies are not considered current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in the govenlment funds as follows: 

Note recievable -property tax from stale 

Governmental funds reporl capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, 
the cost of tl~ose assets is alloca~ed over their estimated useful lives as depreciatioll expense as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Some expenses reported in the Statemeut of Activities do not require thcnse ol'cu~.rent financial 
rcsourccs and arc Lhercl'ore no1 yepotled as expenses in the governmental f~md as follows: 

Net change in compe~isalcd abscnccs 

Change in net assets of gover~imental activities 

See accompanying notes lo the basic financial stalcmc111s 



Phelan Piiion IIills Coniniunity Services District 
Statements of Net Assets - E~iterprise Funds 

June 30,2010 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accou~lts receivable - utilities, net 
Acco~u~ts receivable - other 
Property raxes and assessments receivable 
Materids and supplies inventory 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Due from other fuuds 

Total current assets 

NOII-curre~~t assets: 
Capital assets - not being depreciated 
Capital assets - beiug depreciated, net 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities arzd Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accou~~ts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related payables . . 

Customer deposits a ~ ~ d  deferred revenue 
Accrued interest on long-tenn debt 
Long-tenn liabilities -due within one year: 

Co~~lpe~isated absences 
Long-tenn debt 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year: 

Co~npe~isated absences 
Long-term debt 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Water 
Enterprise 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stateme~~ts 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Water 
Enterprise 

Operating revenues: 
Water consumption sales 
Monthly meter service charge 
Special assessment 
Other charges and services 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Source of supply - water related purchases 
Pumping - utilities 
Transmission and distribution 
General and administrative 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income before depreciation 
Depreciation 

Operating loss 

Non-operating revenues(expenses): 
Interest earnings 
Property taxes 
Interest expense - long-term debt 
Other non-operating revenues 
Other non-operating expenses 

Total tlon-operating revenues, net 

Net loss before capital col~tributio~is 

Capital contributions: 
Counectio~~ fees 
Capital grants 

Capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompanyi~lg notes to the basic financial statements 



Phelan Pifion Hills Collilnunity Services District 
State~nents of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Water 
Enterprise 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receipts from cuslomcrs 
Casl~ paid to vendors and sol~pliers 

Ncl cash i~scd in operating activities 36,865 

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities: 

Other non-operating revenues 
Other non-operaling expenses 

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 

Casli flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition and co~~strucl io~i  of capital assets 
Proceeds from cal~ital contribullons 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest payments on long-lenn debt 

Nel cash used in capital ancl financing activities 

Casli Slows li.om investing activities: 
Plirchases ancl sales of investments, lie1 
Intcrest earnings 

Net cash used in invcstlng activitics 

Net decreese in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 13,938,962 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 10,606,081 

Rcconcilialioli of opelaling loss to net cash used in operating activities: 

Operating loss 

Adjustments to recuncile operating loss Lo net cash 
uscd in operating activities: 

Depreciation ex l~c~isc  
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(11icrease)decrease in assets: 
Accou~its rcccivable w a t e r  sales and services 
Accounts receivable - other 
Pmperty taxes and assessrne~~ts receivable 
Materials and s ~ q ~ p l i e s  Inventory 
Prepaid ex],enses and other assets 

Increase(decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable ancl accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related payables 
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 
Colupe~isaled abse~ices 

Total adjustments 659,319 

Net cas l~  used in operating activilies 16 36,865 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30,2010 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Phelan Piiion Hills Comlnu~~ity Service District (District) was established through a11 election on 
February 5, 2008. With an 81% approval rating, the voters approved the formation of the District as a 
co~~solidatio~l of three Sa11 Bernardino County Special District Service Areas of: Zone-L70 Water, CSA-9 
Pheliu~ Parlts and Street Lighting and CSA56-F1 Pifion Hills Parlts. The San Bernardino County Special 
District Service Areas named above tra~ansferred $31,439,13 1 in net assets to form the District. 

This consolidation enabled the communities of Phelan and Piiion Hills to establish a form of self- 
governance while maintaining their individual rural integrity. The 128 square mile District is the largest 
Community Service District in Sat] Bernardino County. 

The primary component of the Distsict is water service to the approximately 6,700 customers. Parks and 
recreation are a vital component to any community. As part of the District there are two community 
centers. These centers are utilized for a wide range of activities and are available to the co~nmunity for a 
nomi~lal fee. Adjacent to the centers are two parks that have picnic tables and playgrounds. They are 
available from morning until dusk. The street lights serve primarily the business district of Phelan. The 
street lights are not owned by the District, but the District pays for the electricity use costs for the street 
lights. 

The District normally co~lducts two monthly general meetings of the Board of Directors which are held 011 

the first and third Wednesdays of the month in the Phelan Community Center. 

The criteria used in determilling the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Gover~nnental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Finaizcial Reportirzg Erztity, and No. 39, Deter-riiirting 
Whether Certain Organizatiorts Are Coinponent Urzits (an amendment of No. 14). The District is the 
primary gover~~mental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected 
by the citizens in a general election. Component units are legally separate organizatio~ls for which the 
elected officials of the primary government are fi~lancially accountable. The District is final~cially 
accou~~table if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and: I )  It is able to 
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. The District has 
110 blended or discretely-presented component units. 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30,2010 

(1) Reporting Enti ty a n d  S u m m a r y  of Significant Account i i~g Policies, continued 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The bnsicfinalicinl stnteriielifs of the District are co~nposed of the following: 

Government-wide fina~icial statements 

Fund financial statements 

Notes to tlie basic financial statements 

Governstent-rvidc Firznrzcial Sfatemerzfs 
These statements are presented on an ecorzoinic resources ~neasurement focus aud the accrual basis of 
accomiting for both governmental aud business-like activities. Accordingly, all of the District's assets and 
liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The 
Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incorred or economic asset 
used, such as, unbilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end. The State~nent of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which tlie operating expenses of 21 given function are offset by operating 
revenues. Operating expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a speciric function. The types of 
transactions reported as operating revenues for the District are charges for services directly related to the 
operations of tlie District. Charges for services include reveuues from customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the District. Taxes, 
operating grants and other i tem not properly included among operating revenues a1.e reported instead as 
lion-operating revenues. Contributed capital and capital grauts are iucluded as capital contributions. 

Fund Fiilalzcial Statei?zents 
These statements iuclude a Bala~ice Sheet aud a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fuud Balances for all major govern~nental funds. Accompa~lyi~ig these state~iients is a schedule to 
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balauces as presented in these statements to the net assets 
presented in tlie Government-wide Finallcia1 Statements. 

Govwn~nental funds are accounted for on a spending or cu~~rz.rztfinarzcicd resonr-ccs measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities are included 
on tlie Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balauces present 
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) ill 

net culrent assets. U~ider modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recogoized in the accounting 
period in which tliey become lneasurable and available to finance expenditures of the currelit period. 
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60-days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary sources susceptible to accrual 
for tlie District are property tax, i~iterest earnings, invest~ilent revenue and operating and capital grant 
revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accouuting when tthe 
related fund liability is incurred. However, exceptio~ls to this rule include principal and interest on debt, 
which are recognized when due. 
The accrual basis of accounting is followed by tlie proprietary enterprise funds. Under the accri~al basis of 
accounting, revenues are recoguized when earned and expenses are recorded when tlie liability is incurred 
or econoniic asset used, such as, u~ibilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end. 

Propdetary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Revenues are 
recognized in tlie accounting period in which tliey are earned and expenses are recog~~ized in the period 
incurred, regardless of when tthe related cash flows take place. Operating revenues and expenses, such as 
water sales a~id purchases of water, result from exchange transactions associated with the priucipal 
activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essetitially equal values. Management, admi~~istration aud depreciation expenses are also considered 
operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not i~icluded in the above categories, such as iuterest 
illcome and interest expense, are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Staten~ents, continued 

June 30,2010 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued 

Private sector standards of accounting and finallcia1 reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are 
generally followed in both the government-wide and propriety fund financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accou~lti~lg Standards 
Board. Governments also have the option of followi~lg subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

The accoinlts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accou~lti~ig entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established for the purpose of carrying out specific 
activities or attaining ce~tain objectives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. 

Funds are organized into two major categories: govern~nental and proprietary categories. An emphasis is 
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is co~~sidered major if 
it is the primary operation fund of the District or meets the followi~ig criteria: 

a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
proprietary fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type; and 

b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expe~iditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund 
or proprietary fund are at least 5 percent of the co~sesponding total for all governmental and 
proprietary funds combined. 

c) The entity has determined that a filnd is important to the financial statement user, 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Goverizitzental Funds 

Parks and Recreation -This fund is used to account for all parks and recreation activities within the 
District. 

Street Lighting - This fund is used to accoinlt for all street lighting activities within the District. 

Enterprise Funds 

Water - This fund accounts for the water trans~llissio~l and distributio~~ operations of the District. 

C. Financial Statement Elements 

1. Cash and Cash Equivaleuts 

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

2. Accounts Receivable - Water Sales and Services 

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management reviews all 
accounts receivable as collectible. 



Phelan Pifion Hills Conimllnity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Staten~enls, conti~~ned 

June 30,2010 

(1) Reporting Entity and Su~limary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Financial Statement Elements, continned 

3. Property Taxes and Assessments 

The Sa11 Bernardino Coti~lty Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the 
Co~lnty each year. The San Bernardino County Tax Collector's Office bills a i~d collects the District's 
share of property taxes andlor tax assessments. The Sau Bernardino Coullty Treasurer's Office remits 
current and delinquent property tax collectio~~s to the District tl~roughout the year. Property tax in 
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Co~lstitution at one percent (I%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 

Property taxes and assessments receivable at year-end are related to property taxes and special 
assessmnents collected by the San Bernardino County, which have not been credited lo the District's 
cash balance as of June 30. The property tax calendar is as follows: 

Lien date March 1 
Levy date July I 
Due dates Nove~nber 1 and February 1 
Collectio~l dates December 10 and April I0 

4. Materials and Supplies I~lvei~tory 

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipe fittings for 
construction and repair to the Dislrict's water t ra~ls~niss io~~ and distribution system. Iiiventosy is 
valued at cost using a weighted average method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time 
that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed. 

5. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accou~~ting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statemeilts. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired a11dlor constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalizatio~~ threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Douated assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation and/or historical cost. Upon retirement or other dispositiou of 
capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances 
aud any gains or Losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded 011 a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Goverrznte~ztal Activities 

Infrastructure, street lighting - 30 to 40 years 
Vehicles and equipment - 5 to I0 years 

Business-Type Activities 

Facility and systems - 10 to 40 years 
Vehicles and equipment - 5 to 10 years 



Phelan Pifion Hills Comnmnity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Financial Statement Elements, continued 

7. Net AssetsEund Balances 

The government-wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets categories are 
as follows: 

Net Investn~ent in Capital Assets -This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Assets -This component of net assets consists of net assets that are restricted 
for a specific use and are not available for the general use of the District. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not 
meet the definition of restricted or net irzvestriierzt irz cal~ital assets. 

In the fund financial statements, reserves and desiguations segregate portions of fuud balauces that 
are either not available or have been earrnarlied for specific purposes. Reservations aud designations 
of fund balance are described below: 

Reserved - Some of the assets reported in govern~neutal funds are uot available for spellding 
in the subsequeut year's budget. Fund balance also is reserved to indicate situations where a 
position of fund balance is not available for spending 011 any and all purposes of the fund. 

Unreserved Designated - Designatious essentially reflect a governtnent's self imposed 
limitations on the use of otherwise available currellt financial resources. 

8. Water Sales and Services 

Water sales are billed on a bi-monthly basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through June 30 has 
been accrued at year-end for the enterprise funds. 

9. Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property 
owners, grauting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital conneclion 
expenditures or capacity commitmnent. 

10. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic fiuaucial statements in conformity w ~ t h  generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates aud assumptions that affect the reported a~nounts 
of assets aud liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fiuancial 
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 



Phelan Pifion Hills Com~nunity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(2) Cash and Ii~vestn~ei~ts 

Cash and cash eqtiivale~its consist ofthe ibllowing: 2010 

Cash on hand 9; 1.300 
Deposits held with financial instilolions 12,173.287 
Depoisls held with California Local Age~icy I ~ i v e s t ~ u e ~ ~ t  Fu~id (LAIF) 278,715 

Total $ 12,453,302 

As of June 30, [lie Disl~.ict's authorized deposits had thc following matorilies: 

Deposits l~cld with California Local Agency hivestment Fund (LAIF) 203 days 

Autlzorized Deposits and Zrzvestmerzts 

The District's invesl~nenl policy authorizes investments in Certificates-of-deposit and the California 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District's investment policy does contain specific provisio~ls 
intended to li~iiit its exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit 
risk. 

Local Agency Zrzvestmerzt Furzd 

The District is a voluntary participant in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAlF) that is 
regulated by California Code Section 16429 under oversight of tlie Treasurer of the State of California. 
Each agency in the fund lnay invest up to $40 million and may invest without limitation in special bond 
proceeds accounts. Atnounts lield with LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash 
withill a twenty-four hour period without loss of accrued interest. Credit and market risk is unknown. 

Custodial Credit Rislc 

Custodial credit risk for rleposits is the risk that, in the event of tlie failure of a depository financial 
institution, a govenl~nent will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are i n  the possession of an outside party. The California Govemmnent Code and the 
District's invest~nent policy does uot co~itaiu legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk foi deposits, other than the followi~ig provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires tliat a financial institutio~~ secure deposits made by state or local governmental 
units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 
(unless so waived by the govertimental unit). The market value of the pledged securities iu the collateral 
pool  nus st equal at least 1 10°h of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. Of the District's bank 
balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured and the re~iiaini~lg balance is collateralized in accordance 
with the code. 

The custodial credit risk for investnients is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the couuter~~arty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities tliat are in the possessio~l of another party. The Code aud the District's invest~nent 
policy contain legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments 
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local gover~lment's indirect investnie~lt 
in securities through the use of mutual fii~lds or governlnent invest~ne~~t pools. 

Irzterest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is tlie risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investmnent. The longer the ~naturity an investlneut has the greater its fair value has sensitivity to changes 
in market interest rates. The District's iuvestment policy follows the Code as it relates to li~nits on 
investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 
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Phelan Pi i io~i  Hills Comnlunity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(2) Cash and Cash  Equivalents, continued 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligatio~~ to the l~older of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 

Concerztratiort of Credit Rislc 

The District's invest~nent policy does not contain various limitations on the amounts that call be invested 
in ally one govern~ne~~tal ageucy or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the Califor~lia Government 
Code. The District's deposit portfolio with governmental agencies such as the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) was 2% of the District's total depository aud invest~nent portfolio as of June 30, 2010. 

(3) Note Receivable - Property Tax  f r o m  State  

Under the provisions of the State of California Proposition 1A and as part of the 2010 fiscal year State of 
California budget package passed by the Califos~lia State Legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of 
California borrowed 8.0% of the amount of property tax revenue apportioned to cities, counties and 
special districts. The State of California is required to repay this borrowing plus iuterest by June 30, 2013. 
After repaymeut of this initial borrowing, the California State Legislature may consider ouly one 
additional borrowing within a ten-year period. The amount of the borrowing pertaiuiug to the District was 
$126,400. The hor~.owing by the State of California was recognized as a note receivable in the 
accornpanyi~lg financial statements. 

(4) Capital  Assets 

Goverrzmental Activities: 

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows: 

Non-depreciable assets: 
Land 
Co~lstructio~l in progress 

Tolal non-depreciable assets 

Depreciable assets: 
Land improvemenls 
Equipment 

Total depreciable assets 

Accumnt~lated depreciation: 
Land improvcmwlts 
Equipment 

Total accumn~ilated depreciation 

Total depreciable assets, net 

Total capital assels, net 

Balance 
2009 Additions 

Deletions/ Balance 
Tral~sfers 2010 

Major governmental capital asset additions during fiscal year 2010 include additious to non-deprec~able 
land and depreciable laud improvemne~lts. 



Phelan Piiion Hills C o n i ~ n u n i t y  Services Distr ict  
Notes to the Rasic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(4) Capital  Assets, continued 

Enterprise Funds: 

Changes in capilal assets for the year were as Sollows: 

Balance 
2009 

NOII-depreciable assels: 
Land $ 340,434 
Conslruclion in progress 528,818 

Total non-dcpreciablc asscls 869,252 

Depreciable assets: 
Transmission and distribution lmlins 16,947,819 
Rcscrvoirs 4.1 87,496 
Pumping Station 1,935,081 
Wells 3.91 1,795 
Tanks I ,418,853 
Hydrants and telenlelry conlrol 186,054 
Meters 
Vehicles a ~ ~ d  cquil~mcnl 656,356 

Total depreciable assets 31,243,454 

Accumulated depreciation: 
T~-ansmissioo and distribution mains (8,635,606) 
Reservoirs (1,358,181) 
Pmnping Station (1,984,165) 
Wells (572.21 9) 
Tanks (123,698) 
Hydrants and leleluetry conlrol (83,724) 
Mcta-s 
Vehicles and eqoipment (146,275) 

Total acculnulated depreciation (12,903,868) 

Total depreciable assets, nel 18,339,586 

Total capital assets, nel $ 19,208,838 

Additions 
Deletinas1 
Transfers 

Balance 
2010 

Major enterprise capital asset additions during fiscal year 2010 include additio~ls to non-depreciable land 
and depreciable transmissio~i and distribution system mains, pump stations, wells, tanks, hydrat~ts and 
telemetry control, meters, and vehicles and equipment. 

(5) Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences co~nprise u~ipaid vacation leave that accrue when benefits are fully vested and ate 
determined annually. Co~llpe~lsated absences turn-over each year, therefore, the co~npe~lsated absence 
balalice of the District is considered a current liability on the State~nents of Net Assets. 

The changes to coliipe~isated absences balwices a1 June 30, WIG as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Witl~i~l Due in mom 
2009 Earned Taken 2010 One Year tl1a11 one year 

$ 45,237 58,913 (6 I ,490) 42,660 17,W 25,596 



Phelan Pifion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30.2010 

(6) Long-term Debt 

Changes in long-term debt were as follows: 

Balance Balance 
2009 Additions Payments 2010 

Bonds payable: 
CA Infiastmcture & Economic Dev. Rank $ 3,014,016 (100,040) 2,913,976 

Total loan payable 3,014,016 (100,040) 2,911,976 

Less: cutrent portioo (100,040) (101,532) 

$ 2,911,976 2,810,444 

Cal~orrzia I~zfrastructure & Ecoitontic Development Bask - Revenue Bonds Payable 

The San Bemardino County Special District Cou~ity Service Area 70, Zone L, entered into an Installment 
Loan Agreement (Agreement) dated December 17, 2002 with the California Infrastructure and Econornic 
Development Bank (CIEDB) to fund water system improvements in County Service Area 70, Zone L - 

Water Tank Project. According to the Agreement, the CIEDB is expected to issue a total amount of 
$5,001,000 in Infrastructure State Revolving Fund Program Revenue Bonds (Bonds) to the San 
Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, on a reimbursement basis. The San 
Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, has agreed to make installment 
payments to the CIEDB on the Bonds, secured by a pledge of first lien on all the pledged net system 
revenue and all amounts in the San Bernardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L. 

Total amounts reimbursed by the CEDE fro111 inception to June 30, 2009 was $3,537,908 and the 
pl.incipa1 alnount paid by the Sa11 Bernardino Co~uity Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L on 
the Bond was $457,244. The remainder of the loan payable balance was assumed by the Phelan-Pi5011 
Hills Community Service District per LAFCO resolutio~l No. 2989 as of March 18, 2008. The balance of 
the CIEDB loan assuined was $3,110,664. 

The term of the agreement is thirty years from December 17, 2002 a1 an interest rate of 3.50%. Principal 
and interesl payments are due on the Bonds each February IS'. 

Fiscal Year 

201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014 
2015 

20 16-2020 
2021-2025 
2026-2030 

Totals 

Principal 

$ 103,532 
107,156 
I1 0,906 
114,788 
11 8,805 
659,389 
783,147 
916,253 

2,913,976 

Interest 

117,148 
113,524 
109,774 
105,892 
101,874 
444,010 
320,252 
173,266 

1,485,740 

Lcss: current portio~~ (103,532) 

Tolal non-cun.ci11 $ 2,810,444 



Phelan  Piiion Hills C o m m u n i t y  Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(7) Defined Benefit  Pension P l a n  

Pla11 Description 

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement Systein (CaIPERS), a cost-sharing 
multi-employer defined benefit pension pla~i.  CalPERS provides retire~nent and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan me~iibers and beneficiaries. CalPERS act as a 
colnlnon investment and ad~ni~~istrative agelit for participating public agencies within the State of 
Califor~~ia. Benefit provisio~is E I I I ~  all other requirements are established by state statute and the Agency. 
Copies of CalPERS annual fi~ia~icial report may be obtained form their executive Office: 400 P Street, 
Sacramento, CA, 95814. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan is 8% of 
their annual covered salary. The Agency makes these coutributiolis required of Agency en~ployees 011 
their behalf and for their account. Also, the Agency is required to contribute the actuarially determined 
~.emaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The required employer contribution 
rates are equal to the annual peusion costs (APC) percentage of payroll for fiscal year 2010 as noted 
below. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute, and the 
employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. For fiscal year 2010, the 
Age~icies an~iual co~ltributio~i for CalPERS and were equal to the Agencies required and actual 
contributio~i for each fiscal year as follows: 

Three Year Furzdirzg I~lforr~zatiorz: 

Anoual Percentage Net APC 
Fiscal Pension of APC Pe~lsion Percentage 
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation of Pay roll 

2008" $ 100% 0.000% 
2009" 100% 0,000% 
2010 200,484 100% 10.309% 

The Districts defined be~iefit pension plan was ilnl~lemented in fiscal year 2010. 

(8) Net Inves tment  in Capi ta l  Assets 

Go~-ern~reetal Business-type 
The balance consisls of the following: Activities Activities Total 

Capilal assets - not being depreciated $ 1,211,329 1,625,829 2.859.1 58 
Capilal assets - being deprecialed, net 870.71 6 20,259,401 21,130.1 17 
Long-tenn debt - curmnl portion (103,532) (103,532) 
Long-lerm deb1 - loog-terrn porlion (2,810,444) (2,810,444) 

Tolal $ 2,104,045 18,971,254 2 1.075,299 



Phelan Piiion Hills Conlmunity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Fi~ia~icial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(9) Unrestricted Net Assets 

G o v e r ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ e n t u l  Business-type 
Net assets are designated as follows: Activities Activities Total 

Parks and recreation h 1,889,290 1,889,290 
Street lighting 
Materials acid supplies i~iventory 118,131 118,131 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,459 108,933 110,392 
Water operations and capital replacement 10,727,388 10,727,388 

Total $ 1,890,749 10,954,452 12,845,201 

(10) Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destr~lction of 
assets; errors aud omnissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the 
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), a11 intergovernme~~tal risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-iusurance programs for California special districts. The purpose of the 
SDRMA is to arrauge and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance 
coverage. At June 30, 2010, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA 
as follows: 

Geueral and auto liability, public officials and employees' errors aud omissions: Total risk 
financing self-insurance limits of $2,500,000, combined single limit at $2,500,000 per 
occurrence. 

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insura~ice coverage: 

Employee dishonesty coverage up to $400,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty, 
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance aud destructio~l coverage's. 

Property loss is paid at the replace~nent cost for property 011 file, if replaced within two years after 
the loss, otherwise paid 011 a11 actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1.0 billion per 
occurrence, subject to a $2,000 deductible per occurrence. 

a Boiler aud machinery coverage for the replace~nent cost up to $100 mi l l io~~  per occurrence, 
subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. 

Public officials perso~ial liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of 
$500,000 per each electedlappointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the terms, 
with no deductible per claim. 

Workers' co~npensation insurance with statutory limits per occurreuce and Employer's Liability 
Coverage up to $5 million. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage alnouuts in the last fiscal years. There were ]no 
reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal year 2010 and 2009. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable 
that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasouably estin~ated net of the respective 
insurance coverage. Liabilities include all amoulit for claims that have been incurred but uot reported 
(IBNR). There were no material IBNR claims payable as of Julie 30, 2010 and 2009. 



Phelan Pifion Hills Comnlunity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

June 30,2010 

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

The Governmental Accou~iting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronounce~nents prior to June 
30, 20 10, tliat has erfective dates that may impact future financial presentations. 

Govcrrzrizc~zfal Accou~ztirzg Staridards Board Statenzerzt No. 54 

In February 2009, tlie GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting atid Gover~l~ne~ital Fund 
Type Definitions. The objective of this statement is to enhalice the usefulness of fund balance i~~for~na t io~ l  
by providing clearer fund balance classifications tliat call be more consistently applied and by clarifying 
the existing gover~imental fund type definitions. This statement establislies fund balance classificatio~is 
tliat comprise a hierarchy based primarily on tlie extent to which a governlilelit is bound to observe 
co~istraints imposed up011 the use of tlie resources reported in govern~ne~ital funds. This stalenlellt is not 
effective for this District uutil the fiscal year elided June 30, 201 I .  The statement is not expected to have a 
sig~~ificant impact on the presentation of the District's financial statements. 

Governnzcatal Accourztirzg Standards Board Staterlzerzt No. 59 

I11 June 2010, the GASB issued State~ilent No. 59, Finn~zcinl Ifistr~mie~zts Ofiilzib~is. This statement 
i~llproves existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure reqiiirements of certain financial 
instrume~~ts and external investment pools. This statemelit is not effective for this District until the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 201 1. This state~nent is not expected to have a significant impact on the presentatio~i 
of the District's financial statements. 

(12) Commitnieiits and Contingencies 

Litigatiorz 

I11 tlie ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 
After consultation with legal cou~~sel ,  the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, 
will not materially affect its financial conditioii. 

Grarzt A~vards 

Gra~it funds received by the District are subject to audit by the gralltor agencies. Such audit could lead to 
requests for rein~bursements to tlie grantor ilgencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. 
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant. 
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Indepe~ident Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Phelan, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Phela~i Pillon Hills Commu~iity Services District 
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30,2010, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 
2010. We conducted our audit in accorda~ice with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goi~errzme~~f Auditing 
Starzdarrls, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

I~zterizal Coiztrol Over liinarzcial Reporting 
111 pla~itiing and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal coiitrol over financial 
reporting as a basis for desiguing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal co~ltrol over fi~iancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of tlie District's internal control over fillancia1 reporting. 

A coiltrol deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managernelit or 
employees, in the ~ior~nal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a colltrol deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or 
report fina~icial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there 
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District's financial statements that is more 
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. A material 
weakness is a significant deficiency, or c o ~ n b i ~ ~ a t i o ~ ~  of significa~it deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that a material mnisstatement of the fi~~ancial statements will not be prevented or 
detected by the District's internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporti~ig 
was for the limited purpose described in tlie first paragraph of this section and wooid not necessarily 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significa~lt deficie~icies or material wealuiesses. 
We did not identify any deficie~~cies in internal co~itrol over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Conzpliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its collipliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncomnpliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of finaxial statenlent amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not all objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results OF our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that ase required to be reported under 
Gol)ernni.ent A~tditiizg Stal~~lar~ls. 
This repor1 is inte~lded solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and rnauagement and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by a ~ ~ y o ~ i e  other than these specified parties. 

October 18,2010 
Cypress, California 

Member of: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants . California Society of Certified Public Accountants 





Phelan Pifion Hills Community Services District 
4037 Phelan Road, Sulte C-1.P. 0. Box 294049.Pheian. CA 92329-4049*(760j1868-1212*~ax (760) 868-5072 

D EGEDWE ' JAN 13 2010 

January 11,2010 

Kathleen Rollings-McDonald, Executive Officer 
215 North "D" Street, Suite 204 
San Bernardino, CA 92415-0490 
RE: Requested information 

UFCO 
San Bernardino County 

Dear Kathleen: 

Enclosed is the Information you requested: PPHCSD June 2009 Audited Financial Statements. At this 
time we are not requesting any change in the sphere of Influence. 

The Dlstrict has only had one audit to date. Prior to June 30, 2009, the audit was performed by the 
County. 

Please advise if there is anything else we can provide, 

Sincerely, 

73 => 
Don Bartz, General Manager 

Encl: June 30,2009 Audited Financial Statements 
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Independent Auclitor's Report 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Phelan, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial stateme~~ts of the governme~ital activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Phelan Piiion Rills 
Corn~nunity Services District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these basic financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govcrn~llent Aurlitir'g Stanrlc~rcls, 
issued by the Co~nptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstateme~lt. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosi~res in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overaU basic financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present f?irly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District as 
of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in net assets and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Co~~errtment Auditing Srantlards, we have also issued a report dated October 20,2009 
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other mattem. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
repol-ting and co~npliance and the results of that testiug, and not to provide an opinion on the inteunal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accorda~~ce with Govcrnnl~.rit Auditirlg Standards and should be read in co~ijunction with this report in 
coasidel.ing the results of our audit. 

The District has not presented the Management's Disc~rssiorz anrl Arlalysis that the Govern~nental 
Accounting Standards Board has determined is necessary to supplemnent, although not required to be a 
part of, the basic financial statements because this is the District's first fiscal yea? in operation. See Note I 
- Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity for further information. 

October 20,2009 
Cypress, California 

1 

Member of: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants a Caiifornia Sociely of Certified Public Accountants 
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Basic Financial Statements 



Phelan Piiio11 Hills Commu~~ity Services District 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2009 

Governmental 
Assets Activities 

Cunent assets: 
Casli and casln equivalents (note 2) $ I C120.954 
Accrued iinterest receivable 7.192 
Accounts receivable - water sales and services 
Accounls receival>le - other 
Property taxes nnd assessme~nts receivable 160,190 
Materials and supplies inventory 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Tolal chnlrent assels 1,588,336 

Non-current assets: 
Capital assets - not being depreciated (note 3) 54.453 
Capital assets - being depreciated, net (note 3) 897,060 

Total non-cur~tnt assets 951.513 

Total assets 2,539,849 

Liabilities arrrl Net Asrets 

Current liabilities: 
Accoilnts payable and accrued expenses 47,484 
Accrued salaries aind related payables 
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 
Accrued interest on lo~ng-term debl 
Long-term lial>ilities - due within one year: 

Compensated absences 
Long-term debl (nole 4) 

Total current liabilities 47.484 

Non-current liabilities: 
Long-term liabilities - duein more than one yeor 

Compensated absences 
Long-term debt (note 4) 

Total inon-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 47,484 

Net assets; 
Nel i~nvestment in capital assets (note 5) 951,513 
Unrestricted (inole 6) 1.540.852 

Total net assets $ 2,492,365 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

See accompanying notes to the hasic A~lancial statements 



finctionslk'rograms 

Governmental activities: 
Parks and recreation 
Street lighting 

Total governmental 

Business-type activities: 
Water 

Total business-type 

Total 

Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Capital Chongcs in Net Assets 

Charees for Grants and Governmental Buslness.tvve - -. 
Expenses Services Ca~~tributiolw Activities Aetivities Total 

General revenue61 
Propelty taxes 
Interest earnings 
Other 
Transfen 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompnnying notes to llle basic financial statements I 
I 



Phelai~ Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Balance Sheets - Governmental Funds 

June 30,2009 

Assets: 
Cash and cash eqnivalenls 
Accrued inleresl receivable 
Pmperty taxes and assessments receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabililies 

Fund balnoce: 
Reserved For parks and recl-enlion 
Reserved for stlael liglicing 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund bnla~ice 

Paris 
and Stl.eet 

Recreation Lighting 

Total 
Gove~nmental 

Activities 



Phelaa Pifion IIills Community Services District 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheets of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2009 

Reconciliation: 

l3111d balance of governmental fi~nds $ 1,540,852 

Amounts reported for govemniertal aclivities in tlie statement of net assets is differel11 because: 

Capital assets used in govern~nenlal activities are not current fi~luncial resources and, therefore, are 
not reported in Uie governmental funds balalice sheet. However, the statement of nel assets incllldes 
those capital assets amolip Ole assets of Lhe District as a whole. 951513 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 2,49?.,365 

See nccompanyinp notes lo tlie basic fi~~alrcial stnleme~~ts 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Parks Total 
and Street Governmental 

Recreation Lighting Activities 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Charges for services 
Intelesl earnings 
Other 

Total revenus 

Expenditures: 
Parks nod recreation 
Street lighting 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Other financing sources(nses): 
Transfers in(ou0 

Total other financing sources 

Change in fund balance 

Rund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 



Phelan Pifion Hills Com~nunity Services District 
Reconciliatioi~ of tlie Statements of Revenues, Expenditures asid Changes in Fund Balance of 

Governmental Funds to tl~e~tatesnent of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Reconciliation: 

Net changes in fund balance of total governmental funds $ 1,313,830 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statelnenl of activities are different because: 
Governn~esral runds repo1.l capital autlay as expenditures. However. in the statement of activities, 
~ e ' c o s t  of tllose assets is allocated over their esti~nnted useful lives as depreciation expense as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Change in !net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 



Phelan Piiion I-Iills Com~nunity Services District 
Statements of Net Assets - Enterprise Funds 

June 30,2009 

Assets 

Cun'enl assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable - utilities, ~nel 
Accounts receivable - otiier 
Materials and supplies inveatory 
Prepnid expenses and other assets 

Total current assee 

Nan-current assets: 
Capital assets - not being depreciated 
Capital assels - being deprecinled, nel 

Total nail-current assets 

Total assets 

Linbilities mid Ner Assets 

Cur~nnt liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries al1d related payables 
Customer deposits nnd deferred revenue 
Accrued inlerest on long-term debl 
Long-tern1 linbilities - due within one year: 

Compensated absences 
Longtcrm debl 

Total current liabilities 

Non-clin-enl Liabilities: 
Long-term lial>ilities - due in more tila11 one year: 

Collipensaled nbselices 
Lonplerln debl 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Net investmelit in capilal assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Wntcr 
Enterprise 

See accompanying notes lo the basic t'inn~icial slatemenls 



Plielan PiAon Bills Community Services District 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Operating revenues: 
Water consumption sales 
Monthly meter service cilarge 
Special assesslnenl 
Other charges and services 

Total operating reveliues 

Operating expenses: 
Source of snpply - water related purcliases 
Pumping -utilities 
Tra~lsmission and distribution 
General and administrative 

Total operatine expenses 

Operating loss before depreciatio~i 
Depreciation 

Operating loss 

Non-operaling revenues(expeases): 
Inte~est earnings 
1nterest.expense - long-term debt 
Other non-operaling revenues 
Other non-operating expalses 

Total non-operating revenues, net 

Net loss before capital contributions 

Capital contributions: 
Connection fees 

Capital contributions 

Other financing sources: 
Trnnsfers in(out): 

Total other financing sources 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of yea1 

Water 
Enterprise 

See accompanying notes to the basic li~iancial statements 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Statements of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Cash flows from operatingnctivities: 
Cash receipts from customers 
Cash paid to vendors a~ui suppliers 

Net casli used in operating nclivities 

Cash flows from non-capital linancing activities: 

Other nnn-operating revenues 
Other ~non-operating expcnses 

Net cash provided by non-eapifnl financing activities 

Casll flows From capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisitio~i and construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from capital contributio~~s 
Principal paynients 011 long-term debt 
Inle~-esl payments or long-terln debt 

Net casli used in capital nnd financing activities 

Cash flows fro111 investing activities: 
Purchases and sales of inveslme~ils, net 
Intel5st earllings 

Net cash used in investing aclivities 

Net decrease ill casll 

Cash and casli equi!'alents, begi~lning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of ol~eraling loss to net cash ~ ~ s e d  ill operating activities: 

Operarilig loss 

Adj i~st~ne~~ts  to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
used in operaring activities: 

Deprecialion expalse 
Changes in assets and linbililics: 

(111crease)decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable - water sales and services 
Accounts receivable -other 
Materials and supplies il~ve~itory 
Prepaid expenses and othn assets 

Increase(decreose) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expeilses 
Accrued salaries and related pnyables 
Custo~ner deposits and deferred revenue 
Con~pensaled absences 

Total adjjustn~ents 

Net used in operati~~g activities 

Water 
Enterprise 

See accoapa~iyil~g notes m the bnsic financial statements 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary  of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Phelan Pifion Hills Community Service District (District) was established through an election on 
February 5, 2008. With an 81% approval rating, the voters approved the formation of the District as a 
consolidation of three San Bernardino County Special District Service Areas of: Zone-L70 Water, CSA-9 
Phelan Parks and Street Lighting and CSA56-F1 PiRon Hills Parks. The San Bernardino County Special 
District Service Areas named above transferred $31,439,131 in net assets to form the District. 

This consolidation enabled the comlnunities of Phela11 and Pifion Hills to establish a form of self- 
governance while ~naintaining their individual rural integrity. The 128 square mile District is the largest 
Co~nmunity Service District in San Bernardino County. 

The primary component of the District is water service to the approximately 6,700 customers. Parks and 
recreation are a vital component to any community. As part of the District there are two community 
centers. These centers are utilized for a wide range of activities and are available to the community for a 
nominal fee. Adjacent to the centers are two parks that have picnic tables and playgrounds. They are 
available from morning until dusk. The street lights serve primarily the business district of Phelan. The 
street lights are not owned by the District, but the District pays for tlie electricity use costs for the street 
lights. 

The District normally conducts two monthly general meetings of the Board of Directors which are held on 
the first and third Wednesdays of tlie month in the Phelan Co~nmunity Center. 

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporti~ig entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Firzancial Reportirag Entity, and No. 39, Deterntinirzg 
Whether Certain Orga~zizatiorzs Are Conzyorzent Units (an ameudment of No. 14). The District is the 
primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected 
by the citizens in a general election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the 
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially 
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and: 1) It is able to 
impose its will on that organization, 01. 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens ou, the primary government, The District has 
no blended or discretely-presented component units. 



Phelan PiAon Hills Con~munity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For tlie Year Ended June 30,2009 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The basic,fE~urii.cial sfafentenfs of the District are composed of the following: 

Government-wide financial statements 

* Fund financial statements 

Notes to the basic financial statements 
Goverrt~nertt-vide Firtartcia1 Statert~eltts 
These statements are presented on a11 econo~tric resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting for both governmental and business-like activities. Accordingly, all of the District's assets and 
liabilities, iucluding capital assets, are iilicluded in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The 
Statemeut of Activities presents changes in uet assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses ale recorded when the liability is incurred or econo~nic asset 
used, such as, unbilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end. The Statement of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the operating expenses of a given function are offset by operating 
revenues. Operating expenses are those that ale clearly identifiable with a specific function. The types of 
tra~~sactions reported as operating reveliues for the District are charges for services directly related to the 
operatious of the District. Charges for services include revenues from customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit f~oin goods, services, or privileges provided by the District. Taxes, 
operating grants and other items ~iot properly included among operating revenues are reported instead as 
non-operating revenues. Contributed capital and capital grants are included as capital contributions. 
Fund Financial Stoterwents 
Tliese statements include a Balauce Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expe~~ditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances for all major govern~nental funds. Accompanying these statements is a schedule to 
reconcile and explain the diffeiences in fuud balances as presented in these statements to the net assets 
preserted in the Government-wide Financial Statements. 
Govern~nental funds are accoiuited for on a spending or carrent financinl resoi~rces measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, ollly current assets and liabilities are ii~cluded 
on the Balance Sheet. The State~nent of Revenues, Expeuditures and Changes in Fund Baliuices preseol 
illcreases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other finalicing uses) in 
net current assets. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accouuting 
period in which they become measurable and available to finance expeiiditures of the curre~it period. 
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60-days after year-end) are recognized when due. The priinary sources susceptible to accrual 
for the District are property tax, interest earnings, invest~neut revenue and operating and capital grant 
revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fu~id liability is incurred. However, exceptions to this rule include principal and iuterest on debt, 
which are recog~~ized when due. 
The accrual basis of accounti~lg is followed by the proprietary enterprise funds. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earlled and expenses ale recorded when the liability is incur~ed 
or econoniic asset used, such as, unbilled but utilized utility services are recorded at year end. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Reveuues are 
recoguized ia the accounting period in which they alE earned and expenses are recognized in the period 
incurred, regardless of when tlie related cash flows take place. Operating revenues and expenses, such as 
water sales and purchases of water. ~.esult from exchange transactions associated with the principal 
activity of tlie District. Excllaiige t~ansactions are those in which each palty receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considered 
operating expenses. Other revenues and expeuses not included in the above categories, snch as interest 
income and interest expense, are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 



Phelan Piiion Hills Conimunity Services District 
Notes to tlie Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(1) Reporting Entity and  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued 

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are 
generally followed in both the govcr~~ment-wide and propriety fund financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Gover~iments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to th'is same limitation. The District has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established for the pnrpose of carrying out specific 
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. 

Funds are organized into two major categories: governlnental and proprieta14y categories. An emphasis is 
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if 
it is the primary operation fund of the District or meats the following criteria: 

a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditi~reslexpenses of that individual governine~ltal or 
proprietary fund are at least 10 pelcent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type; and 

b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund 
or proprietary fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and 
proprietary funds combined. 

c) The entity has determined that a fund is important to the financial statement user. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governnzental Funds 

Parks and Recreation -This fund is used to account for all parks and recreation activities within the 
District. 

Street Lightiog - This fund is used to account for all street lighting activities within the District. 

Enterprise Furzds 

Water - This fund accounts for the water transmission and distribution operations of the District. 

C. Financial Statement Elements 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less lo be cash equivalel~ts. 

2. Accounts Receivable - Water Sales and Services 

The District extends credit to customers in tlie nonnal course of operations. Management reviews all 
accounts receivable as collectible. 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(1) Reporting Entity and  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Financial Statement Elenients, continued 

3. Property Taxes and Assessn~ents 

The Sao Bernardino County Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property withi11 the 
County each year. The San Belnardino County Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the District's 
share of property taxes andlor tax assessments. The Sat1 Bernardino County Treasurer's Office remits 
curreut and deli~lque~lt property tax collectio~~s to the District throughout the year. Property tax in 
Califor~iia is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 

Property taxes and assessments ceceivable at year-end are related to property taxes and special 
assess~nents collected by the Sari Bernardino County, which have not been credited to the District's 
cash balance as of June 30. The prope~ty tax calendar is as follows: 

Lien date March l 
Levy date July I 
Due dates November 1 and February I 
Collectio~i dates December I 0  and April 10 

4. Materials and Supplies Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipe fittings for 
consb.action and repair to the District's water transmission and distribution system. 1nvento1.y is 
valued at cost using a weighted average method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the ti~iie 
that individual itenls are withdrawn from inventory or consumed. 

5. Prepaicl Expenses 

Certaio payments to vendors ieflect costs or deposits applicable to future accou~~ting pe~iods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired andlor constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalizatio~i tllreshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated 
fair nlarket value at the date of donation andlor historical cost. Upon retirement or other dispositio~~ of 
capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed fro~n the respective balances 
and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciatioo is recorded on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated ~~se fu l  lives of the assets as follows: 

Governnzental Activities - Infinstructure, street ligl~ting - 30 to 40 years 
Vehicles and equipment - 5 to 10 years 

Business-ope Activities 

e Facility atid systems - I0 to 40 years 
9 Vehicles and equipment - 5 to I0 years 



Phelan Piiion FIills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

C. Financial Statement Elements, continued 

7. Net AssetrlFund Balances 

The government-wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets categories are 
as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Assets -This component of net assets consists of net assets that are restricted 
for a specific use and are not available for the geneval use of the District. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do uot 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 

III the fund financial statements, reserves and designations segregate portions of fund balances that 
are either not available or have been earmarlced for specific purposes. Reservations and designations 
of fund balance are described below: 

* Reserved - Some of the assets reported ill governinental funds are not available for spending 
in the subsequent year's budget. Fund balance also is reserved to indicate situations where a 
position of fond balance is not available for spending 011 any and all purposes of the fund. 

* Unreserved Designated - Designations essentially reflect a government's self imposed 
l i~~ ta t ions  on the use of otherwise available current financial resources. 

8. Water Sales and Services 

Water sales are billed on a bi-monthly basis. Estimated nnbilled water revenue through June 30 has 
been accrued at year-end for the enterprise funds. 

9. Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property 
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital connection 
expenditures or capacity commitment. 

10. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accoiinting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actnal results could 
differ from those estimates. 



Phelan Pieon Hills Comn~uni ty  Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(2) Cash aud Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the Following: 21109 

Cash on hand $ 1,300 
Deposits held with financial institutions 548,802 
Certificate-of-deposit due J anna~y  2010 1.152.060 
Depoisrs held wilh California Local Age~~cy Inveslluent R~iid (LAIP) 13,657,754 

Total $ 15,359,916 

As of June 30. the District's authorized del~osits liad the followinp maturities: 

Deposits held with California Local Agency lnvestlnent ljund (LAIP) 235 days 

Autltorized Deposits and btvestnzer~ts 

The District's invest~neut policy aitthorizes investments in Certificates-of-deposit and the California 
Local Agency Investn~ent Fund (LAIF)'). The District's investment policy does contain specific provisions 
intended to limit its exposure to interest rate risk, cl.edit risk, custodial risk, and conceritratio~~ of credit 
risk. 

Local Agerzcy Zrzvcstr#zertt Furtd 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Califo~.nia Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by Caljfor~lia Code Section 1.6429 under oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. 
Each agency in the fund tnny invest up to $40 million and tnay invest without limitation in special bond 
proceeds accounts. Amounts held with L A F  are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash 
within a twenty-four hour period without loss of accrued intei~st. Credit and market risk is unknown. 

C~astodial Credit Rislc 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository fiuancial 
institution, a gove~nment will ~iot  be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Califo~nia Governme~~t Code and the 
District's investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Goveni~nent Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state 01. local governmental 
units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral 
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amoin~t deposited by the public agencies. The Distl.ict had 
deposits with a bank balance of $650,510 as of June 30,2009 that are FDIC insured up to $250,000. The 
bank balances of $650,510 are also collateralized by the bank with pledged securities. 

The custodial credit risk for irtvestn?ents is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transactio~i, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possessioii of another party. The Code and the District's investme~~t 
policy contai~is legal and policy requiremnents that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk geuerally applies only to direct investments 
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investmet~t 
in securities through the use of mutual funds or governtnent investment pools. 

hiterest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
isvestmnent. The longer the ~naturity an investmnent has the greater its fair value has sensitivity to changes 
in market interest rates. The District's investment policy follows the Code as it relates to limits on 
iilvestme~lt nlaturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 

16 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(2) Cash and Cash  Equivalents, continued 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuev of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of tlie 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a  atio ion ally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 

Concentration of Crerldl Risk 

The District's investment policy does not contain various limitatio~is on the amounts that can be invested 
in any one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the California Government 
Code. The District's deposit portfolio with governmental agencies such as the Local Agency Invest~ne~~t 
Fund (LAIF) was 89% of the District's total depository and iuvestlnelit portfolio as of June 30, 2009. 

(3) Capital Assets 

Goverttineittul Activities: 

Changes in capital assets For the year were as follows: 

Non-depreciable assets: 
Land 
CO11~tructio11 in progress 

Total non-depreciable assets 

Dep~wiable assets: 
Land improvements 
Equipn~cnl 

Total depreciable assets 

Accum~llated depreciation: 
Land improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depl.eciatio11 

Tolal depreciable assets, net 

Told capital assets, net 

Balance 
2008 Additions 

Deletions1 
Transfers 

Balance 
2009 

43,026 
11,427 

54,455 

1,029,562 
12,845 

1,042,407 

(144,009) 
(1.338) 

(145,347) 

897,060 

951,513 
P 



Phelan Pi f io~~ Hills Comn~unity Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(3) Capital Assets, continued 
Elzteraprise Funds: 

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows: 

Balance D$etionsl Balance 
2008 Additions Transfers 2009 

Nan-depreciable assets: 
Land $ 340,434 . , 340.434 
Construction i n  prng~ress 2,636,052 424,338 (2,53 1,572) 528.8 18 

Total non-deprecisble assets 2.976.486 424,338 (2,531,572) 869,252 

Depreciable assets: 
Transmission and distrib~~tion ~nnai~ls 15.321.698 1,626,121 16,947.819 
Reservoirs 4,187,496 4,187.496 
Pu~nping Stntio~~ 3,927,984 7,097 1,935,081 
Wells 2.161.928 1,749.867 3.91 1,795 
Tanks 317.822 1,101,031 1.418.853 
Hydrants and telemetry control 186,054 186.054 
Vehicles and eqi~ipmenl 113.715 542,641 656,356 

Total depreciable assets 26,216,697 5,026,757 31,241,454 

Accumulat~depreciation: 
Transmission and distribution nlains (8,196,553) (419,053) (8,635.606) 
Resetvoi~s (1,198,934) (159,247) (1,358,181) 
Pumping Station (1,885,099) (99.066) ( 1  .984,165) 
Wells (492.182) (80037) (572,219) 
Tanks (1 06,408) (1 7.290) (123.698) 
Hydrants and lelenletry co~~tlal (46.513) (37.21 1) (83,724) 
Vcl~icles and equip~nanl (91.393) (54,882) (146.275) 

Total accunlulated deprccialio~~ (12,017,082) (886,786) (12,903.868) 

Tote1 depreciable assets, lnef 14,199.615 4,139.971 18,339,586 

Total capital assets, ~nel $ 17.176,lOl 4.564.309 (2,531.572) 19,208,838 



Phelan Piiion FIills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(4) Long-term Debt 

Changes in long-term debt were as follows: 
Balance Balance 

2008 Additlals Payments 2009 

Bonds payable: 
CA lnfrastruclure & Economic Dev. Bank 3,110,664 (96,648) 3,014.016 

Total loan payable $ 3,110,664 (96,648) 3,014,016 

Less: curxen~ porlion (96.648) (100,040) 
$ 3,014,016 2,913,976 

California I~tj?astructrrre & Econont.ic Developrtzent Bank - Reverzrie Bortds Payable 

The San Bernardino County Special Dislrict County Service Area 70, Zone L, entered into an I~istallment 
Loan Agreement (Agreement) dated December 17, 2002 with the Califomnia Infrastructure and Eco~~omic 
Development Bank (CIEDB) to fund water system improvements in County Service Area 70, Zone L - 
Water Tank Project. Accordiug to the Agreement, the CIEDB is expected to issue a total amount of 
$5,001,000 in Infrastructure State Revolving Fund Program Revenue Bonds (Bonds) to the San 
Berna~~dino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, or  a reimnbursement basis. The San 
Bernardiuo Couilty Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L, has agreed to make i~lstallment 
payments to the CEDB on the Bonds, secured by a pledge of first lien on all the pledged net system 
revenue and all amounts in the Sa~i  Bermlardino County Special District County Service Area 70, Zone L. 

Total amounts reimbursed by the CIEDB from inceptioll to June 30, 2009 was $3,537,908 and the 
principal amount paid by the San Bernardino Cou~lty Special District County Service Area 70, Zone Lon 
the Bond was $457,244. The remainder of the loan payable balailce was assumed by the Phelan-Piiion 
Hills Comm1111ity Service District per LAFCO resolution No. 2989 as of March 18, 2008. The balance of 
the CIEDD loan assumed was $3,110,664. 

The term of the agreement is thirty years from December 17, 2002 at an interest rate of 3.50%. Principal 
and interest payments are due on the Bonds each February IS'. 

As of June 30, 2009, the District has not requested any further reimbursements from the CEDB and the 
District is currently working with CEDB to close out the project and have the loan repayment schedule 
revised to reflect paynieot terms on tlie current remaining principal balance due. Therefore, as of the date 
of this report, a CIEDB loan repayment schedule has not been received and a loan repayment schedule 
has not been reflected in this report. Current loan principal and iutewst accrual amouuts have been 
estimated a~id reflected in the statement of net assets for fiscal year 2010 CIEDB loan payments. 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continned 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(5) Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Gove~,nn~ental nusiriess-type 
The balance consists of the followiog: Activities Activities 

Capital assets -)lot being depreciated 8 54.453 869.252 
Capital assets - being del)reciatcd, net 897,060 18,339,586 
Long-term dehl - cul.ref11 porliorl (100.040) 
Long-term debt - long-tern1 porlio~~ (2,913,976) 

Total 8 951.513 16,194,822 -- 
(6) Unrestricted Net Assets 

Governmcntsl Busisess-type 
Net assets are designated us follows: Activities Activities 

Wrks and recrealiori $ 1,540,852 
Street lighting 
Materials and supplies inventory 72,432 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 27.348 
Water operations and capital rreplacernent 13,726,536 

Total $ 1.540.852 13,826,316 

Totsl 

923,705 
19.236.646 

( IOO.040) 
(2,9 13.976) 

17,146,335 

Total 

1.540,852 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Staten~ents, continued 

For tlie Year Ended June 30,2009 

(7) Risk Management 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the 
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California special districts. The purpose of the 
SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance 
coverage. At June 30,2009, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA 
as follows: 

General and auto liability, public officials and employees' errors and omissions: Total risk 
financing self-insurance limits of $2,500,000, combined single limit at $2,500,000 per 
occurrence. The District purchased additional excess coverage layers: $7,500,000 for general, 
auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted 
above. 

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage: 

e Employee dishonesty coverage up to $400,000 per loss i~~cludes public e~nployee dishonesty, 
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance and dest~uctiot~ coverages. 

Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if ~eplaced within two years after 
the loss, otherwise paid OII an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1.0 billion per 
occulTelice, subject to a $5,000 deductible per occurrence. 

e Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $100 million per occurrence, 
subject to a $5,000 deductible per occurrence. 

e Public officials personal liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aguegate of 
$100,000 per each electedlappoi~~ted official to which this coverage applies, subject to the tenns, 
with a deductible of $500 per claim. 

8 Workers' compensation insurance up to $200 ~ni l l io~~ per occurrence and Employer's Liability 
Coverage up to $5 millioo. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in the last fiscal years. There were no 
reductions in insurance coverage in  fiscal year 2009. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a 
loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective 
i~isurnnce coverage. Liabilities include an ainount for claims that have been incurred but not reported 
(IBNR). There were no material IBNR claims payableas of June 30,2009. 



Phelan Piiion Hills Community Services District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(8) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June 
30, 2009, that have effective dates that may impact future fiua~icial presentations. 

Govenamental Accortnting SMlidarads Board Staterner~t No. 51 

In June 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accourztirzg and Fi~artcial Repovting for hltarzgible 
Assets. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions 
be classified as capital assets. This statement is not effective for this District u~itil the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2010. This statement is not expected to have a significant impact on the prese~itatiori of the 
District's financial statements. 

Goverrtntertfal Accountirzg Starzdards Board Stater~rent No. 53 

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accotrritirzg mzd Financial Reporting for Derii~ative 
Iristrtm~.erzts. This statement addresses the recognition, ineasure~ne~~t, and disclosu~.e of information 
regarding derivative instruments entered illto by state aiid local governments. This statement is not 
effective for this District li~itil the fiscal year ended Julie 30, 2010. This statement is iiot expected to have 
a sig~~ificant impact on the prese~itation of the District's financial statements. 

(9) Commitments and  Contingencies 

Litigation 

,In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to clai~ns and litigation from outside parties. 
After consultatio~i with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if aoy, 
will not ~naterially affect its fina~lcial condition. 

(10) Subsequent Event 

CalPeRS Defined Bellefit Pensiort. Plait 

The District lias elected to participate in the CalPERS Defined Beiiefit Pension Plan with o beliefit of 
2.5% at 55 years-of-age. The District will begin co~itributiiig to the CalPERS Defined Benefit Pensiou 
Plau in fiscal year 2010. 
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Paul J Kaymah, CPA 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance witli Government Auditing Startdards 

Board of Directors 
Phelan Pifion Hills Community Services District 
Phelan, California 

We have audited the basic financial staterne~its of the Phelan Piiion Hills Co~n~nuuity Services District 
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30,2009, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 
2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gover~zment Auditing 
Stardards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Firtancia[ Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control. over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effective~iess of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 
A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the ~iormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or 
report financial data 1:eliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there 
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District's financial statements that is more 
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by. the District's internal control. A material 
weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected by the District's internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily 
identify all deficiencies in interoal control that might be significant deficie~icies or material weaknesses. 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 
Contpliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliauce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance witli which could have a direct and material effect 011 the 
determination of financial statemelit amounts. However, providing an opi~~ion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do uot express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Goverrrntent Auditing Standards. 
This report is intended solely for the informatio~~ and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
is not intended to be and should not he used by anyone other than these specified pal'ties. 

October 20,2009 
Cypress, California 

Member of: Amerlcan institute of Certified Public Accountants California Society of Certified Public Accountants 
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1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 PURPOSE AND UWMP SUMMARY  
 
An Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP or Plan) prepared by a water purveyor is 
intended to ensure the appropriate level of reliability of water service sufficient to meet 
the needs of its various categories of customers during normal, single dry or multiple dry 
years. The California Water Management Planning Act of 1983 (Act), as amended, 
requires urban water suppliers to develop an UWMP every five years in the years ending 
in zero and five. Under normal circumstances, all 2010 UWMPs would have been due for 
submittal to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) by December 31, 2010; 
however, Senate Bill (SB) 7-7 (or SBX7-7) provided an additional six months to retail 
urban water supply agencies to allow them to conduct additional required water 
conservation analyses.  Thus, the District’s 2010 UWMP must now be adopted by July 1, 
2011 and submitted to DWR within 30 days of adoption. 
 
The legislature declared that waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource 
subject to ever increasing demands; that the conservation and efficient use of urban water 
supplies are of statewide concern; that successful implementation of plans is best 
accomplished at the local level; that conservation and efficient use of water shall be 
actively pursued to protect both the people of the state and their water resources; that 
conservation and efficient use of urban water supplies shall be a guiding criterion in 
public decisions; and that urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water 
management plans to achieve conservation and efficient use.  
 
The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District (PPHCSD or District) 2010 UWMP 
has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Act, as amended to 20101 
(Appendix A), and includes the following: 

• District Service Area  
• District Facilities 
• Water Sources and Supplies  
• Water Quality Information 
• Water Reliability Planning 
• Water Use Provisions 
• Water Demand Management Measures 
• Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
• Water Recycling  
 

1.2 UWMP UPDATE PREPARATION 
 
The District’s 2010 UWMP was prepared by Psomas for the District and incorporates 
changes enacted by recent legislation including SB 1087 (2005), AB 1376 (2007), AB 

                                                           
1California Water Code, Division 6, Part 2.6; §10610, et. seq. Established by Assembly Bill 797 (1983). 
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1465 (2010), and SBX7-7 (2010). A brief summary of each of these legislative changes, 
as well as other related legislative changes, follows: 

• SB 1087 (2005) – Requires retail water suppliers to include single family and 
multiple family projections for lower income and affordable households in their 
UWMPs. This legislation is intended to assist the water agencies in complying 
with the requirements Government Code Section 65589.7, which requires water 
suppliers to grant a priority for provision of service to housing units affordable to 
lower income households. 

• AB 1376 (2007) – Requires each urban water supplier to notify the Planning 
Department of any City or County within which the supplier provides water with 
at least 60 days prior notice that the supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to it. 

• AB 1465 (2010) – Clarifies that urban water suppliers that are members of the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) and comply with the 
provisions of the “Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water 
Conservation in California”2 dated December 10, 2008, as it may be amended 
(MOU), may submit their annual reports required under the CUWCC MOU as 
evidence of compliance without the need for any additional documentation in 
their UWMPs. 

• SBX7-7 (2010) – Requires urban water suppliers to include the following 
information in their 2010 UWMPs with respect to a targeted 20 percent water 
conservation reduction by 2020: (1) baseline daily per capita use; (2) urban water 
use target; (3) interim water use target; and (4) compliance daily per capita water 
use, including technical bases and supporting data for those determinations. 

• SBX7-7 (2010) – Extends the deadline for adoption of urban retail water suppliers 
2010 UWMPs until July 1, 2011, to provide sufficient time to prepare the 
additional required water conservation analyses described in the previous bullet. 

Other legislation, which does not directly impact UWMPs, but affects eligibility for 
grants and loans, includes: 

• AB 1420 (2007) – This legislation contains several provisions relating to urban 
water management plans, including: 

o Conditions eligibility for State grant and loan funding to an urban water 
supplier awarded or administered by DWR, the State Water Resources 
Control Board, or California Bay-Delta Authority or its successor agency on 
the following factors: (1) the implementation of water demand management 

                                                           
2  The Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California (MOU) was 

adopted in September 1991 by a large number of water suppliers, public advocacy organizations and 
other interested groups and most recently amended on December 10, 2008.  The MOU created the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council and established 16 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
for urban water conservation, recently refined to 14 BMPs. 
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measures, including the extent of compliance with conservation measures 
described in the previously referenced “Memorandum of Understanding 
Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California.” 

o Requires DWR, in consultation with the State Water Resources Control Board 
and the California Bay-Delta Authority or its successor agency, to develop 
eligibility requirements to implement the foregoing grant and loan conditions. 

o Requires DWR, in consultation with the CUWCC, to convene a technical 
panel no later than January 1, 2009 to provide information and 
recommendations to the Department and the Legislature on new demand 
management measures, technologies and approaches. The panel and DWR 
must report to the legislature on their findings no later than January 1, 2010 
and each five years thereafter. 

• SBX3-27 (2009) – Exempts projects funded by the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) from the conditions placed on state funding 
for water management to urban water suppliers regarding implementation of 
water conservation measures that were implemented under AB 1420. 

• SBX7-7 – Repeals the existing grant funding conditions of AB 1420 on July 1, 
2016 if they are not extended or altered prior to this date. After July 1, 2016, 
urban water retail water suppliers are required to be in compliance with the 20 
percent by 2020 water use reduction goals to be eligible for state water 
management grants or loans. 

The UWMP also incorporates water use efficiency efforts the District has implemented or 
is considering implementing pursuant to the previously referenced Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California (MOU). The 
PPHCSD became signatory and adopted the MOU on December 19, 2000. 

The sections in this Plan correspond to the outline of the Act, specifically Article 2, 
Contents of Plans, Sections 10631, 10632, and 10633. The sequence used for the required 
information, however, differs slightly in order to present information in a manner 
reflecting the unique characteristics of the District’s water utility. 

To assist DWR staff in reviewing this UWMP, a copy of the DWR’s suggested checklist 
entitled Urban Water Management Plan Checklist, Organized by Subject3 is provided in 
Appendix H. The left hand column of the checklist notes where the applicable 
information described to the right can be found within the body of this Plan. 
 
Plan Adoption 

The 2010 UWMP was adopted by resolution of the Phelan Piñon Hills Community 
Services District Board on June 22, 2011 following a public hearing. The Plan was 
                                                           
3 Checklist provided in DWR’s Final Guidebook to Assist Urban Water Suppliers to Prepare a 2010 Urban 
Water Management Plan, March 2011 and available on DWR website at: 
http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement/guidebook/ 
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submitted to the California Department of Water Resources and the State Library and a 
copy of the Plan was provided to the County of San Bernardino within 30 days of District 
Board approval. Copies of the Notice of Public Hearing and the Resolution of Plan 
Adoption are included in Appendix B. Draft copies of the Plan were made available to 
the public within 30 days following District Board approval.  
 
Agency Coordination 
 
This Plan was developed by the PPHCSD staff, in coordination with the County of San 
Bernardino for land use information, the Mojave Water Agency (MWA) for population 
and usage data projections, and with overall coordination and assistance from Psomas 
staff in coordination with IDModeling staff, who is preparing the District’s Water Master 
Plan. A summary of the District’s coordination with the appropriate agencies is shown in 
Table 1.2-1. 

The intent of this plan is to focus on specific issues unique to the District’s water service 
area. While some regional UWMP issues are introduced in this Plan, more 
comprehensive regional information is presented in MWA’s Regional UWMP.4 

To assist District staff in preparation of the 2010 UWMP, District staff and/or consultants 
to the District for preparation of the UWMP attended the following workshops facilitated 
by DWR:  

• DWR: Various on-line webinars held on November 30, 2010, December 16, 
2010, January 5, 2011 and January 12, 2011. 

• DWR: 2010 UWMP Workshop at the Irvine Ranch Water District, March 8, 
2011. 

  

Table 1.2-1 Coordination with Appropriate Agencies 

 Participated 
in 

Developing 
Plan 

Commented 
on Draft 

Plan 

Attended 
Public 

Meetings 

Was 
Contacted 

for 
Assistance 

Was Sent 
a Copy of 
Draft Plan 

Was Sent 
Notice of 
Intention 
to Adopt1 

PPHCSD X X X X   
County of San 
Bernardino[1] X  X   X 

Mojave Water 
Agency   X X X X 

General Public       
[1] Letter mailed on April 15, 2011 to notify County of San Bernardino of June 15, 2011 public hearing and 
plan to adopt UWMP.  
 

                                                           
4   A copy of the April 2011 Draft of the MWA UWMP is available at: 

http://www.mojavewater.org/home/documents/UWMP2010FINALDRAFT.pdf  
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The District is regulated by the Watermaster and MWA through their responsibilities as 
manager of the groundwater basin and their imported water capacity in the State Water 
Project, which runs through the District. The groundwater basin was the subject of a court 
ordered adjudication in 1993, in which the Court appointed MWA as Watermaster of the 
Mojave Basin Area. All of the District's water supply planning relates to the policies, 
rules, and regulations of MWA and the adjudication. Development of the District’s 
UWMP was therefore coordinated closely with MWA, who serves as the wholesaler of 
water received from the SWP and who manages the groundwater basin in accordance 
with the adjudication. 
 
This UWMP details the specifics as they relate to the Phelan Piñon Hills Community 
Services District and its service area and will refer to MWA throughout. The UWMP is 
intended to serve as a general, flexible, and open-ended document that periodically can 
be updated to reflect changes in the regional water supply trends, and conservation and 
water use efficiency policies. This Plan, along with the District’s Water Master Plan and 
other District planning documents, will be used by District staff to guide the District’s 
water use and management efforts through the year 2015, when the UWMP is next 
required to be updated. 

 
1.3 PPHCSD WATER SERVICE AREA 
 
Location 
 
The PPHCSD is located in the High Desert area of San Bernardino County between 
Palmdale and Victorville. In general, the area lies north and south of Highway 138 and 
west of Interstate 15 and the Cajon Pass. The western boundary is the San 
Bernardino/Los Angeles County line and the eastern boundary is Caughlin Road and 
Baldy Mesa Road. The area runs north from the Angeles National Forest to just north of 
Highway 18 as shown in Figure 1-1.  
 
The District’s water service area is approximately 118.7 square miles. It is located in the 
foothills to the north of the San Gabriel Mountains. Elevations in the service area range 
from approximately 3,200 feet at the northeast side, up to approximately 5,350 feet closer 
to the mountains on the southwest side. The District’s customers are predominately 
residential, with only approximately 65 commercial and industrial businesses in the 
service area. An area of about 10 square miles centered at the south end of the District’s 
service area is serviced by the Sheep Creek Mutual Water Company.  
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Figure 1-1 
PPHCSD Water Service Area 

 
 
Climate Characteristics 
 
The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District is located in an area known as the 
Mojave Desert Air Basin (MDAB). The MDAB is classified as a dry-hot desert climate, 
with portions classified as dry-very hot desert. Prevailing winds in the MDAB are out of 
the west and southwest. These prevailing winds are due to the proximity of the MDAB to 
coastal and central regions and the blocking nature of the Sierra Nevada Mountains to the 
north. Air masses are pushed on shore in Southern California by differential heating and 
are channeled through the MDAB. Most desert moisture arrives from infrequent warm, 
moist, and unstable air masses from the south.  

The average annual temperature varies throughout the Basin, averaging approximately 61 
degrees Fahrenheit where the District’s service area is located. January and December are 
usually the coldest months while July and August are typically the hottest months of the 
year. Annual average relative humidity is 42 percent. Annual precipitation is typically 5 
to 6 inches, occurring mostly between November and April. Average temperature and 
precipitation information for the District’s area is summarized in Table 1.3-1. 
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Table 1.3-1 
PPHCSD Average Temperatures and Rainfall5 

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Annual 

Temp 
(oF) 

Max 58.7 62.1 67 74.1 82.5 91.6 98.3 97.1 91.1 80.2 67.4 59.4 77.5 

Min 29.8 33.1 36.6 41.5 47.7 54.2 60.8 60 53.9 44.3 34.5 29.2 43.8 

Rainfall 
(inches) 0.96  1.06  0.82  0.36 0.13 0.04 0.13 0.20 0.24 0.32  0.50  0.80 5.56 

Snowfall 
(inches) 0.9  0.0  0.1  0.0 0.0  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0  0.2  0.1 1.4 

 
Evapotranspiration 

Evapotranspiration (ET) is the loss of water to the atmosphere by the combined processes 
of evaporation (from soil and plant surfaces) and transpiration (from plant tissues). It is 
an indication of how much water crops, lawn, garden, and trees need for healthy growth 
and productivity. 

For ET to take place, the following conditions have to be met. First, water has to be 
present at the surface. Second, there must be some form of energy to convert the liquid 
water into a water vapor. Third, there must be a mechanism to transport the water vapor 
away from the evaporating surface. 

Precipitation and irrigation are the two primary sources of water that plants use. Plant 
leaves and soil surfaces temporarily retain some part of the water applied to the soil. This 
part is readily available for evaporation. The remaining part infiltrates into the soil. Plants 
extract the infiltrated water through their roots and transport it up to their leaves for 
photosynthesis, a process by which plants produce glucose (sugar). 

Many factors affect ET including: 

• Weather parameters such as solar radiation, air temperature, relative humidity and 
wind speed;  

• Soil factors such as soil texture, structure, density and chemistry; and 

• Plant factors such as plant type, root depth, foliar density, height and stage of 
growth. 

                                                           
5  Data obtained from Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC), Desert Research Institute, Reno, Nevada 

(http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?ca9325); WRCC program administered by the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA); data extracted from monitoring Station 049325 at 
Victorville, CA (closest WRCC station to PPHCSD Service Area) covering the period January 1, 1917 
through July 31, 2009.  
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Although ET can be measured using such devices as lysimeters, estimating ET using 
analytical and empirical equations is a common practice because measurement methods 
are expensive and time consuming. Most ET equations were developed by correlating 
measured ET to measured weather parameters that directly or indirectly affect ET. Since 
there are so many factors affecting ET, it is extremely difficult to formulate an equation 
that can produce estimates of ET under different sets of conditions. Therefore, the idea of 
a reference crop evapotranspiration was developed by researchers. Reference ET is the 
ET rate of a reference crop expressed in inches or millimeters. 

Reference crops are either grass or alfalfa surfaces whose biophysical characteristics have 
been studied extensively. ET from a standardized grass surface is commonly denoted as 
ETo whereas ET from a standardized alfalfa surface is denoted as ETr. The American 
Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) recommends the use of ETos and ETrs, respectively, 
where “s” stands for standardized surface conditions. The logic behind the 
evapotranspiration idea is to set up weather stations on standardized reference surfaces 
for which most of the biophysical properties used in ET equations are known. ET from 
such surfaces can then be estimated using these known parameters and measured weather 
parameters. Then a crop factor, commonly known as the “crop coefficient” of “Kc” is 
used to calculate the actual evapotranspiration (ETc) for a specific crop in the same 
microclimate as the weather station site. 

The California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS), Department of 
Water Resources, Office of Water Efficiency is using well-watered actively growing 
closely clipped grass that is completely shading the soil as a reference crop at most of its 
over 130 weather stations. Therefore, reference evapotranspiration is mostly referred to 
as ETo on the CIMIS website, although there are a few notable exceptions with ETr. 
There are many theoretical and empirical equations around the world to estimate ETo. 
The choice of any one method depends on the accuracy of the equation under a given 
condition and the availability of the required data. For reference surfaces with known 
biophysical properties, the main factors affecting ETo include solar radiation, relative 
humidity/vapor pressure, air temperature and wind speed. Therefore ETo can be 
estimated quite accurately using a model (a series of mathematical equations). 

The monthly average ETo data shown in Table 1.3-2 has been extracted from the CIMIS 
Victorville station (#117), which is the closest station to the PPHCSD service area 
(located at an elevation of 2,890 feet). This station was activated on February 1, 1994.6 

                                                           
6   For additional information, refer to the CIMIS website at: 

http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov/cimis/frontStationDetailData.do?stationId=117 
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Table 1.3-2 
Average Evapotranspiration (ETo) Rates for PPHCSD Area 

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

ETo 
(inches)  2.02  2.61  4.55  6.19  7.30 8.85 9.77 8.99 6.52 4.66  2.68  2.05 66.19

Data based on CIMIS station #117 in Victorville, CA, the closest station to PPHCSD water service area; go to this 
website, establish a password and log into station 117 data:  
http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov/cimis/frontMonthlyEToReport.doc 
Averages are based on the period this station has been in service, i.e., October 1994 through April 2011.

 
Demographics 

The population of the District’s water service area is currently estimated at 20,873 and 
has experienced very little growth over the last two years, possibly because of the 
economic downturn. The District provides water to almost 6,800 service connections. 
The PPHCSD water service area is almost entirely single family residential with 
approximately 99 percent of water service connections serving single-family residences.   

Table 1.3-3 lists the District’s population projections in five-year increments to the year 
2035. Population projections are from data prepared by MWA based on service 
connections and population figures from Census, Department of Finance (DOF), and 
Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG).  

Table 1.3-3 
PPHCSD Water Service Area Population Projections 

 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

PPHCSD 
Population 20,873 23,191 25,509 27,923 30,338 32,753 

% Change/Period - 11.11% 10.00% 9.46% 8.65% 7.96% 

Source: Mojave Water Agency (equates to 1.5 to 2.0 percent per year, compounded) 

 
1.4 PPHCSD WATER SYSTEM AND FACILITIES 

PPHCSD was established through San Bernardino County LAFCO Reorganization 3070 
to include detachment from County Service Area (CSA) 56, and the dissolution of three 
Special Districts: CSA 9, CSA 56 Improvement Zone F-1, and CSA 70 Improvement 
Zones L and P-4. The reorganization formed the largest community services district in 
San Bernardino County with a total land area of 128 square miles and a water service 
area of 118.7 square miles. Elections were held in February 2008 and the installation 
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meeting for the purpose of swearing in the Board of Directors of PPHCSD was held on 
March 19, 2008.  

The District’s water distribution system consists of approximately 353 miles of pipelines 
ranging from 4-inch to 16-inch in diameter. The District obtains its water supply from the 
local groundwater aquifer through the use of 11 active wells that pump directly into the 
distribution system or into storage reservoirs. The District purchases replacement water 
from MWA, who replenishes the used groundwater primarily with imported water from 
the State Water Project (SWP). There are currently five inactive wells within the system. 
The depth, design flow and production data for the active wells and wells not in use are 
summarized in Section 2. 

The District’s system is divided into 16 pressure zones and contains 35 storage reservoirs, 
32 pressure reducing stations, and 24 booster pump stations. The District has three 
interties, one intertie with each the City of Victorville, Sheep Creek Mutual Water 
Company, and San Bernardino County CSA 70J. These interties are typically only used 
to allow sharing of supplies during short-term emergencies or during planned shutdowns 
of a primary source, not during normal operating conditions when regular supplies are 
available. The District operates and maintains its wells, reservoirs, pump stations, 
pressure reducing stations, distribution pipelines, fire hydrants, water meters and related 
infrastructure. They also perform meter reading and billing to their customers. The 
District’s water service area and supply facilities are shown in Figure 1-2.  

The District establishes and manages an annual operation budget. Revenues are received 
from monthly water use and connection fees billed to water customers. The annual 
budget includes programs for Engineering, Administration, Water Quality, Water 
Production, Water Maintenance, Water Meters, and Water Billing. Personnel, operating 
and capital outlay/equipment replacement costs are determined for each program. In 
addition, a capital projects budget is designed to address primarily replacements and 
upgrades of various water facilities and pipelines. 
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Figure 1-2 
PPHCSD Water Service Area and Supply Facilities7 

 
 

 

 

                                                           
7 Map from Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 2010 Water Facilities Master Plan, Fig. 2.1. 
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2 WATER SOURCES AND SUPPLIES 
 
2.1 WATER SOURCES 
 
The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District typically obtains all of its water 
supply from the local groundwater in the Mojave River Basin. The Mojave Basin Area 
was the subject of a court ordered adjudication in 1993 due to the rapid growth within the 
area, increased withdrawals, and lowered groundwater levels. The court’s Judgment 
appointed MWA as Watermaster of the Mojave Basin Area. The District is one of ten 
major retail purveyors that provide the majority of water in the Mojave Basin Area under 
MWA’s management. For management purposes under the Mojave Basin Judgment, 
MWA subdivided the Mojave River watershed and associated groundwater basins into 
five subareas (Alto, Baja, Centro, Este, and Oeste). The District lies within MWA’s Alto 
and Oeste Subareas. PPHCSD and the other purveyors in the area supply water to their 
customers from local groundwater and MWA replenishes the groundwater supply, 
primarily with imported water purchased from the SWP.  
 
The court ordered adjudication of the Mojave Basin Area allocates a variable free 
production allowance (FPA) to each purveyor within the area that supplies more than 10 
AFY, this includes the District. Each allocated FPA represents the purveyor’s share of the 
water supply available from the MWA Subarea. FPAs are determined as a percentage of 
the purveyor’s highest verified annual use from 1986 to 1990. If the District, or another 
purveyor, pumps more than its allotted FPA in any year, then they are required to 
purchase replacement water equal to the amount of production in excess of the FPA. 
Replacement obligations can be satisfied by either paying MWA, or by temporarily 
transferring unused FPA within the subarea from another party. Table 2.1-1 lists the 
District’s Basin Annual Production (BAP) and current allotted FPA from the Oeste and 
Alto Subareas, in which its service area is located.  

Table 2.1-1  
PPHCSD Allotted Free Production Allowance 

MWA Subarea Base Annual 
Production (AFY) 

Free Production 
Allowance (AFY) 

Oeste 1,416 1,346 

Alto 355 213 

Total 1,771 1,559 

 
Both Alto and Oeste have an established FPA for agricultural, municipal, and industrial 
use for the 2010 through 2011 water year that is 80 percent, 60 percent, and 70 percent of 
BAP, respectively. During normal years, the District typically exceeds MWA’s free 
production allowances from both the Oeste and Alto Subareas and is required to purchase 
replacement water. The District’s Well 14 is located in Los Angeles County and is not a 
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part of or subject to the MWA adjudication. Production from this well is not reported to 
MWA and is not associated with the District’s FPA.  
  
Mojave Water Agency (MWA)  

The Mojave Water Agency was founded July 21, 1960. It was created due to concerns 
over declining groundwater levels to ensure that sufficient water may be available to the 
people and land within its jurisdiction. MWA is one of 29 SWP contractors that provide 
Californians with drinking and irrigation water. MWA serves an area of approximately 
4,900 square miles in San Bernardino County. MWA separates its service area into six 
management areas, including the previously described five subareas of the adjudicated 
Mojave Basin Area (Alto, Baja, Centro, Este, and Oeste), and the Morongo 
Basin/Johnson Valley Area. Mojave Water Agency’s service area, its subareas, and its 
water purveyors are shown in Figure 2-1.8 

Figure 2-1 
Mojave Water Agency Service Area  

and Largest Water Purveyors 

 
                                                           
8  Service Area Map from Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP. 
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MWA has five sources of water supply; natural surface water flows, wastewater imports 
from outside the MWA service area, SWP imports, agricultural depletion from storage, 
and return flow from pumped groundwater not consumptively used. MWA considers 
agricultural depletion from storage as a supply to avoid showing demand from agriculture 
on imported water supplies. Return water includes water pumped from the ground that is 
returned to the groundwater aquifer, such as water used indoors that returns to the basin 
either by percolation from septic tanks or treated wastewater effluent, or irrigation water 
that is unused by plant materials.  

 
2.2 WATER SUPPLY 
 
In the 2010 water year, the District pumped over 99 percent of its water supply from 
groundwater wells accessing the Mojave River Groundwater Basin. A small portion of its 
supply was imported from the Victorville Water District. Typically, the District obtains 
all of its water from groundwater wells. Current and projected water supplies are shown 
in Table 2.2-1 and described in subsequent sections. 
 
 

Table 2.2-1 
PPHCSD Current and Planned Water Supplies in AFY 

Water Supply 
Sources 2010 [1] 2010 [2] 2015[3] 2020[3] 2025[3] 2030[3] 2035[3] 

Groundwater 
Supply Available 3,059 3,303 4,358 4,741 5,019 5,312 5,574 

Transfers/ 
Exchanges In 12 12 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Water 
Supply 3,071 3,315 4,358 4,741 5,019 5,312 5,574 
[1] Actual 2010 demand or supply used, refer to Appendix E. Supply assumed equal to demand. 
[2] 2010 estimated demand or available supply based on normal year, not drought condition of 2010, 

assumes GPCD usage equal to 2008 per capita usage. Supply assumed equal to demand. 
[3] Supply Available determined from water demand projections for PPHCSD provided by Mojave Water 

Agency and indicated in Table 5.2-1 of this report times supply/demand ratio (Difference as % of 
Demand) from Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP and indicated in Table 4.2-3 of this report.   

 
During normal years, the PPHCSD obtains all of its water supply from the local 
groundwater aquifer through its wells. The District does not have any surface water 
diversion facilities, desalination facilities, or recycled water facilities. Since the District is 
not located near the ocean, desalination is not a practical or economically feasible source 
of water. All customers in the District currently discharge their wastewater into septic 
tanks. There is not a wastewater treatment plant within the District, so recycled water is 
not an economically feasible source of water for the District in the near future.  

The District’s system has three available interties, one with each the Victorville Water 
District, the Sheep Creek Mutual Water Company (SCMWC), and San Bernardino 
County CSA 70J. All three interties are metered and allow the District to give or obtain 
water as required. The intertie with Victorville Water District is located at the intersection 
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of Yucca Terrace St. and Caughlin Rd. It uses a booster pump onsite to allow the transfer 
of water. The intertie with SCMWC is located near the District’s Reservoir 6-A. The 
intertie with CSA 70J is located at Mesquite St. and Baldy Mesa Rd. A booster pump is 
required for the district to obtain water. These interties provide an additional source of 
water in case of a shortage or emergency. During normal operation of the water system, 
there are no transfer exchanges of water within the PPHCSD’s service area, although the 
District purchased 15.96 acre-ft of water in 2009 and 12.27 acre-ft of water in 2010 from 
the Victorville Water District through that intertie. 

Storage Tanks 
 
The District maintains 35 storage tanks ranging from 1.0 million gallon (MG) to 0.04 MG 
with a total capacity of 11.5 MG. The District fills these tanks when demands are low and 
pumps from the tanks and pressurizes the water system during high demand periods.  
 
Groundwater 
 
Mojave River Groundwater Basin 
 
PPHCSD obtains all of its water from the Mojave River Groundwater Basin. The basin 
covers an area of approximately 1,400 square miles and has an estimated total water 
storage capacity of nearly 5 million acre-feet.9 The Mojave River Groundwater Basin 
Area is essentially a closed basin. Very little groundwater enters or exits the basin. But 
groundwater movement does occur between subareas, groundwater-surface water, and 
groundwater-atmosphere interchanges. Groundwater is primarily recharged into the basin 
by infiltration from the Mojave River and storm runoff from San Gabriel and San 
Bernardino Mountains. The Mojave River provides an estimated average of 65,000 acre-
ft per year of recharge to the Mojave River Groundwater Basin.10 Other sources of 
recharge include recharge from human activities such as irrigation return flows, 
wastewater discharge, and enhanced recharge with imported water. Groundwater is 
primarily discharged from the basin through well pumping, evaporation, transpiration, 
and seepage into lakes and the Mojave River.  
 
As previously mentioned, the Mojave Basin Area was the subject of a court ordered 
adjudication, in an interim judgment in 1993. In January of 1996 the Riverside County 
Superior Court issued a final ruling on the adjudication for the basin in the Mojave Basin 
Judgment. The Judgment allocated water rights to purveyors with groundwater usage 
higher than 10 AFY from the Mojave River Groundwater Basin and appointed MWA as 
Watermaster of the Mojave Basin Area. The Judgment was triggered by the rapid growth 
within the Mojave Water Agency service area in the early 1990’s that led to increased 
withdrawals and lowered groundwater levels. A copy of the Mojave Basin Area 1996 
Adjudication is included in Appendix C.    

                                                           
9 Mojave Water Agency – 2010 UWMP 
10 The California Water Plan Update 2009, Volume 3 Regional Update for the South Lahonton Region. 
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The Mojave River Groundwater Basin combines 31 smaller groundwater basins and sub 
basins along the Mojave River. The Department of Water Resources’ official 
departmental bulletins, California’s Groundwater Bulletin 118 Updated 2003 and Bulletin 
160, The California Water Plan Update 2009 states that the Mojave Groundwater Basin 
has experienced overdraft since the early 1950s.11 In an effort to eliminate long-term 
overdraft conditions, the Mojave Basin Judgment directed that the MWA must manage 
conservation and recharge the basin with supplemental water. MWA has reduced 
allotments to purveyors each year and has recharged the Mojave River Basin in an effort 
to eliminate overdraft.  
 
Basin Management Strategies 
 
Since the Mojave Basin Judgment, MWA has invested in a groundwater replenishment 
system (recharge facilities) and groundwater monitoring to effectively manage the basin.  
 
Groundwater Replenishment System – Since 2006, MWA has used the Mojave River 
Pipeline to recharge water to the Mojave River Basin. The pipeline can deliver up to 
45,000 AFY to the Mojave Basin to offset growing depletion of natural supplies. The 
pipeline runs approximately 76 miles from the California Aqueduct to MWA’s four 
recharge sites.12 These recharge sites are located at Hodge, Lenwood, Daggett/Yermo, 
and Newberry Springs. They provide the ability to recharge SWP water into subareas 
where replacement water is purchased. They also provide MWA the ability to bank 
excess SWP water.  

Treated wastewater imports from outside MWA are also recharged into the Mojave River 
Groundwater Basin. Wastewater imports from the Crestline Sanitation District and Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District are imported to the Alto Subarea, and effluent 
from the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency is imported to the Este Subarea. 
These wastewater imports comprise a relatively small volume in comparison to the total 
water used within the MWA service area.  
 
Groundwater Monitoring – MWA maintains a comprehensive groundwater monitoring 
program to track dynamic conditions including groundwater production, storage, 
elevations, and quality. The program consists of over 900 monitoring wells and tracks 
water production within each of its five subareas. As stated previously, the Phelan Piñon 
Community Services District lies within the Alto and Oeste subareas. The Alto subarea is 
relatively stable and as a whole appears to be in regional balance, although portions of the 
subarea have shown declining yields. In the Oeste Subarea, hydrographs have indicated a 
long-term decline in water levels, but declines in most wells appear relatively small.13  
                                                           
11 The California Water Plan Update 2009 is available on DWR’s website at: 

http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/docs/cwpu2009/0310final/v3_southlahontan_cwp2
009.pdf; 
references to groundwater challenges can be found in the Volume 3 Regional Update for the South 
Lahonton Region 

12 Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP.  
13 Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP.  
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MWA Regional Water Management Plan (RWMP)  

To maintain the Mojave Basin Area’s water supply, MWA operates under a Regional 
Water Management Plan (RWMP). The current RWMP defines MWA’s overall water 
management objectives from 2004 to 2020. The plan identifies potential projects and 
programs that might be developed to balance future water demands with available 
supplies. The RWMP projected that overdraft, combined with expected growth and 
increasing water demands will require a substantial recharge requirement by 2020. The 
RWMP notes that supply enhancement projects and/or additional management actions 
must be performed in the future to address the problems of groundwater overdraft and 
future increases in water demands. Future supply enhancement projects may involve 
additional groundwater recharge or an increase in groundwater efficiency. Management 
actions may involve additional storage conservation, storage agreements, and/or water 
transfers and water banking. MWA currently has five supply enhancement projects 
planned to supplement the existing groundwater recharge programs and facilities 
operated by MWA. For more information on MWA’s planned supply enhancement 
projects and management actions, refer to MWA’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan.  
 
District Wells  
 
Within the District, groundwater for potable use is currently produced from eleven 
operating wells, located as shown in Figure 1-2. The District’s active wells vary in depth 
from 257 feet to 1,100 feet, with production varying from 62 gallons per minute (gpm) to 
750 gpm with a total estimated system capacity of approximately 4,307 gpm, as shown in 
Table 2.2-2. 
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Table 2.2-2 PPHCSD Active Wells[1] 

 
Well 

MWA 
Subarea Discharge Location 

Well 
Depth 
(feet) 

 
Capacity 

(gpm) 
1B Oeste Zone G 470 62 

2A Oeste Zone G 450 72 

2 Oeste Well Tanks 2-1, 2-2 660 180 

3[2] Oeste Well Tanks 2-1, 2-2 680 - 

5 Oeste Well Tanks 2-1, 2-2 800 359 

6A Oeste Reservoir 1B 952 292 

6B Oeste Reservoir 1B 1,080 420 

9B Alto Reservoir 1C 1,100 263 

10 Oeste Well Tank 10-2 850 676 

11 Oeste Well Tank 10-2 778 200 

12 Oeste Well Tank 10-2 950 750 

14[3] NA Tanks 2A, 2B, 2C 1,100 707 

Total (gpm) - -  3,981 
[1] Source: PPHCSD 2010 Water Facilities Master Plan, Table 2-2. 
[2] Well recently rehabbed and capacity reduced significantly. 
[3] Well 14 is located in Los Angeles County and is not a part of the MWA adjudication area. 

   



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
Section 2 2010 Urban Water Management Plan  
 

 2-8   

Table 2.2-3 summarizes the amount of groundwater pumped by each of the District’s 
wells for the last five years.  

Table 2.2-3 Amount of Ground Water Pumped (AFY) 

Well No. 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

1B 0 25 16 14 12 

2A 52 49 16 17 14 

2 278 259 206 208 204 

3[1] 266 374 474 415 1 

4[1] 208 192 107 0 0 

5 651 636 441 264 331 

6A 236 275 294 240 121 

6B 155 300 115 382 175 

9A[1] 377 205 70 58 0 

9B 177 389 352 278 167 

10 250 383 188 171 408 

11 103 192 89 111 111 

12 584 736 723 566 413 

Subtotal[2] 3,337 4,015 3,091 2,724 1,957 

14[3] 171 37 101 421 1,102 

Total District 3,508 4,052 3,192 3,145 3,059 
[1] Well is inactive.  
[2] Subtotal within MWA adjudication area and included in MWA Watermaster Reports.  
[3] Well 14 does not lie within the MWA adjudication area and its production is not included in the MWA 

Watermaster Reports. 
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Future projections for each of the District’s active wells are listed in Table 2.2-4. 
Projections were determined using District-wide demand projections provided by MWA, 
proportioned according to 2010 usage from active wells, up to approximate maximum 
well production capacity. 
 

Table 2.2-4 Well Production Projections (AFY) 

Well No. 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

1B 16 19 21 24 26 
2A 19 22 25 27 30 
2 277 317 359 400 441 
5 450 515 582 649 716 

6A 165 188 213 237 262 
6B 238 272 308 343 379 
9B 227 260 294 327 361 
10 555 633 718 800 883 
11 151 173 195 218 240 
12 562 642 727 810 893 

Subtotal 2,660 3,041 3,438 3,835 4,231 

14 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 

Total District[2] 3,760 4,141 4,538 4,935 5,331 
[1] Subtotal within MWA adjudication area and included in MWA Watermaster Reports. 
[2] Total demand projections from Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP, including Well 14, which is not part of   

MWA adjudication area and its production is not included in MWA Watermaster Reports. 
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3 WATER QUALITY  
 
3.1 WATER QUALITY OF EXISTING SOURCES 

As required by the Safe Drinking Water Act, which was reauthorized in 1996, the District 
provides annual Water Quality Reports to its customers; also known as Consumer 
Confidence Reports (CCR). This mandate is governed by the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) to inform 
customers of their drinking water quality. In accordance with the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, the District monitors a number of regulated and unregulated compounds in its water 
supply. The results from this testing were included in the District’s 2009 Annual Water 
Quality Report, which is included in Appendix G.14 The water quality of the District’s 
groundwater currently meets state and federal standards and treatment is not required. 
The wells pump directly into the distribution system or into storage tanks. Chlorine is 
added to the water to disinfect it before it is discharged to the system from all wells, 
except Well 5, where the water is blended with chlorinated water from Well 2 before 
entering the system. 
 
3.1.1 IMPORTED WATER 

During normal operation of the water system, there are no transfers or exchanges of water 
within the PPHCSD’s service area. The District does not typically import water from the 
interties with the Victorville Water District, the SCMWC, or San Bernardino County 
CSA 70J. If the District does import water from one of the interties, the Victorville Water 
District and San Bernardino County CSA 70J both provide annual Water Quality Reports 
in accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act.15 

Although the District does not supply imported water to its customers, if the District 
exceeds its FPA and purchases replacement water from MWA, then MWA will recharge 
the basin with imported SWP water and highly treated recycled wastewater. So the 
District’s usage has a direct effect on the volume of water that MWA recharges into the 
basin. The imported SWP water and recycled wastewater are significant factors in the 
water quality of the Mojave River Groundwater Basin. Since the Mojave River Basin is 
essentially a closed basin, the contaminants from imported water will remain in the basin.  
 
3.1.2 GROUNDWATER 
 
The Mojave Water Agency maintains a comprehensive groundwater monitoring program 
consisting of over 900 monitoring wells in their service area. MWA’s 2004 Regional 
Water Management Plan indicates that there are water quality problems affecting 
drinking water supplies throughout the Mojave River Basin area. According to MWA’s 
                                                           
14 The PPHCSD 2009 Consumer Confidence Report can also be viewed on the District’s website at: 

http://www.pphcsd.org/PPHCSD%20CCR%202009%20Final.pdf 
15 Water Quality Reports for Victorville Water District and SBC CSA 70J can be found at: 
http://ci.victorville.ca.us/uploadedFiles/CityDepartments/Water  
http://www.specialdistricts.org/2/water/services, respectively 
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RWMP, key contaminants include (1) salinity, (2) arsenic, (3) chromium, (4) nitrates, (5) 
methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) (6) manganese, and (7) iron. Each of these 
contaminants constituents of concern and is addressed in further detail below. 

Salinity 

Because the Mojave River Basin is essentially a closed basin, salinity is a concern 
because salt contained in imported reclaimed wastewater and SWP supplies remain in the 
basin. Water from the SWP has a low salinity on average, however, salinity in 
wastewater imports can be high.  

Because SWP water and wastewater imports to the Mojave River Basin will be long term 
and persistent, MWA and the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board completed 
a cooperative study in 2007 to address salt balance within the MWA service area. The 
report basically showed that the importation of SWP water mitigated the long-term 
effects of increased TDS primarily caused by population increases and the associated 
larger volumes of wastewater entering into the basins. MWA monitoring from 2005 to 
2009 indicated TDS levels of 211.7 mg/L in the Alto Subarea, and 340.0 mg/L in the 
Oeste subarea.16 

Arsenic  

Arsenic, which has been linked to certain cancers and skin conditions, is a naturally 
occurring element found in rocks, soil, water, and air. Arsenic from these sources can 
enter the water supply through the natural erosion of rocks, as well as the dissolution of 
ores and minerals. Arsenic can also be found in wood preservatives, alloying agents, 
certain agricultural applications, semi-conductors, paints, dyes, and soaps. Agriculture 
and industrial discharges from these sources can contribute to elevated levels of arsenic 
in drinking water supplies. 

The maximum contaminant level (MCL) for arsenic in domestic water supplies was 
lowered to 10 μg/L (from 50 μg/L), with an effective date of January 2006 in the federal 
regulations and an effective date of November 2008 in California’s regulations for both 
groundwater and surface water supplies. In April 2004, based on reported lung and 
urinary bladder cancer risk data, California’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard 
Assessment (OEHHA) set a public health goal (PHG) for arsenic of 0.004 μg/L.   

Monitoring results reported on CDPH’s website for the period 2002-2005 showed arsenic 
is ubiquitous in drinking water sources, reflecting its natural occurrence. Those results 
also show many sources have arsenic levels above the 10 μg/L MCL (e.g., Southern 
California drinking water sources containing arsenic concentrations over 10 μg/L include 
San Bernardino (64 sources), Los Angeles (48 sources), Riverside (26 sources), Orange 
(4 sources), and San Diego (5 sources)).17 
                                                           
16 Per the Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP.  
17 Per CDPH website: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/drinkingwater/Pages/Arsenic.aspx - note 

the numbers reported on this site can change as the site is updated. 
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Although the Mojave Water Agency’s 2004 Regional Water Management Plan indicates 
that arsenic levels above 10 μg/L were detected in the Oeste and Alto Subareas, the 
arsenic levels recorded within the District’s service area between 2002 to 2005 (which 
was San Bernardino County Service Area 70L at that time) did not exceed 4 μg/L. 
Recorded arsenic levels at Wells 3, 4, 5 and 12 exceeded the state detection level for 
purposes of reporting arsenic of 2 μg/L, but these reported levels ranged from 2.3 μg/L to 
4 μg/L and were well below the MCL of 10 μg/L.  

Chromium 

Like arsenic, chromium is a naturally occurring element found in rocks, soil, plants, and 
animals. Chromium III is typically the form found in soils and is an essential nutrient that 
helps the body use sugar, protein, and fat. Chromium VI is used in a number of industrial 
applications including electroplating, stainless steel production, leather tanning, textile 
manufacturing, dyes and pigments, wood preservation and as an anti-corrosion agent. 
Chromium occurs naturally in deep aquifers and can also enter drinking water through 
industrial discharges. In drinking water, chromium VI is very stable and soluble, whereas 
chromium III is not very soluble. Chromium VI is the more toxic form and is known to 
cause lung cancer in humans when inhaled, but the human health effects from ingestion 
are still a subject of conjecture. 

There are no current drinking water standards for chromium VI. Total chromium 
(including chromium III and chromium VI) is regulated in California with an MCL of 50 
μg/L. On August 20, 2009, the OEHHA released a draft PHG of 0.06 μg/L for chromium 
VI in drinking water. The PHG is a health-protective, non-regulatory level that will be 
used by CDPH in its development of an MCL. CDPH will set the eventual MCL as close 
to the PHG as technically and economically feasible. 

The state detection level for purposes of reporting chromium VI is 1 μg/L. Between 2001 
and 2003, levels above this were recorded in the Districts service area (which was San 
Bernardino County Service Area 70L at that time) at several of the District’s wells, but 
reported levels ranged from 1 μg/L to 21 μg/L and were below the MCL for Chromium.18 
 
Nitrates 

Nitrates are one of the most common and widespread contaminants in groundwater 
supplies. High nitrate levels in water are typically associated with septic systems, 
confined animal feeding operations, or fertilizers. Nitrates are also present in treated 
wastewater. Nitrate (NO3-) is a water-soluble molecule made up of nitrogen and oxygen. 
It is formed when nitrogen from ammonia or other sources combines with oxygenated 
water.  

Nitrates can interfere with the ability of red blood cells to carry oxygen. Nitrates in 
drinking water has been known to cause methemoglobinemia, especially in infants. Some 
                                                           
18 Per CDPH website: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/drinkingwater/Pages/Chromium6timeline.aspx - note 
the numbers reported on this site can change as the site is updated. 
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scientific studies have found evidence suggesting that women who drink nitrate-
contaminated water during pregnancy are more likely to have babies with birth defects. 
Also, some experts believe that long-term ingestion of water high in nitrate may increase 
the risk of certain types of cancer.  

The maximum contaminant level (MCL) for nitrate in domestic water supplies are19: 
 
• 45 (mg/L) for nitrate as NO3 (equivalent to 10 mg/L for nitrate as N)  
• 10 mg/L for nitrate plus nitrite as N  
• 1 mg/L for nitrite as N  

Monitoring data sent to CDPH from 2002 to 2005 showed that many sources in 
California have high nitrate levels above MCLs. Nitrate as NO3 was detected at least 
once above its MCL in 731 sources (San Bernardino with 82 sources), nitrate + nitrite as 
N was detected at least once above its MCL in 169 sources (San Bernardino with 38 
sources), and nitrite as N was detected at least once above its MCL in 21 sources. 
However, MWA sampling data from 2005 to 2009 indicates NO3 levels of 6.09 mg/L for 
the Alto Subarea, and 3.23 mg/L for the Oeste Subarea, which are well below the MCL.20 
Because all of the District’s wastewater is currently treated with septic tanks, nitrates 
could become an issue in the future as population increases.  

Methyl Tertiary-Butyl Ether (MTBE) 

MTBE was the primary oxygenate in virtually all the gasoline used in California, prior to 
discovering it contaminated groundwater supplies and was found in surface water 
supplies. Following that discovery, MTBE was banned in California as of December 31, 
2003 and was subsequently replaced by ethanol which is now the primary oxygenate in 
use. CDPH has adopted a primary MCL of 13 μg/L for MTBE based on carcinogenicity 
studies in animals. MTBE has a California secondary MCL of 5 μg/L, which was 
established based on taste and odor concerns21. 

MTBE is a serious threat to groundwater because it s very soluble in water and has low 
affinity for soil particles, so it moves quickly into the groundwater. Unfortunately, MTBE 
is also resistant to chemical and microbial degradation in water, thereby making 
treatment more difficult than that employed to remove other gasoline components.  
However, a combination of an advanced oxidation process (typically ozone and hydrogen 
peroxide) followed by granular activated carbon has been found to be effective in 
reducing the levels of these contaminants.  

MWA’s 2004 Regional Water Management Plan indicates that MTBE is a concern in the 
southern region of the Oeste Subarea. Improved underground storage tank requirements 

                                                           
19 Per CDPH website: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/drinkingwater/Pages/Nitrate.aspx - note 
the numbers reported on this site can change as the site is updated. 
20 Per MWA 2010 UWMP.  
21 Per CDPH website: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/drinkingwater/Pages/MTBE.aspx - note the numbers 
reported on this site can change as the site is updated. 
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and monitoring procedures, as well as the phase-out of MTBE as a fuel additive, should 
decrease the likelihood of MTBE groundwater problems in the future. 

Manganese 
Manganese is a required nutrient. However, manganese at very high levels can pose a 
neurotoxic risk. Children are considered to be particularly susceptible to possible effects 
of high levels of manganese exposure because they absorb and/or retain more manganese 
than adults. Manganese is regulated by a 50 μg/L secondary maximum contaminant level 
(MCL). Monitoring data sent to CDPH showed that about 20 percent of drinking water 
sources monitoring for manganese have reported detections greater than the 0.05-mg/L 
secondary MCL.22 MWA sampling data from 2005 to 2009 indicates Manganese levels 
of 5.42 μg/L for the Alto Subarea, and 3.23 μg/L for the Oeste Subarea, which are well 
below the MCL.23 

Iron 
Iron in drinking water is typically not considered hazardous to health and is considered a 
secondary or aesthetic contaminant. The MCL for iron in water is currently 300 μg/L and 
is based on taste and appearance, rather than detrimental health effects. MWA sampling 
data from 2005 to 2009 recorded iron levels of 103.89 μg/L for the Alto Subarea, and 
100.00 μg/L for the Oeste Subarea, which are well below the MCL. 24 

Groundwater Quality Protection  

In recognition of the serious threat posed by groundwater contamination, MWA 
implements groundwater protection activities to maintain the groundwater and the aquifer 
and ensure a reliable high quality supply. These activities include water quality 
monitoring, managing recharge site activities, hazardous materials response, and 
education and coordination with local agencies.  

 
3.2 WATER QUALITY EFFECT ON SUPPLY RELIABILITY  

The District has not experienced any significant water quality problems in recent years 
and does not anticipate any significant changes in its available water supply due to water 
quality issues in the future. 

                                                           
22 Per CDPH website: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/drinkingwater/Pages/Manganese.aspx- note the 
numbers reported on this site can change as the site is updated. 
23 Per MWA 2010 UWMP.  
24 Per MWA 2010 UWMP.  
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4 WATER RELIABILITY PLANNING 
 
4.1 RELIABILITY OF WATER SUPPLIES 

This section provides a description of the efforts of the District to maintain an adequate 
and reliable water supply and the efforts of MWA in maintaining the groundwater supply 
in the Mojave Basin Area as a whole. In normal years, the District obtains all of its water 
supply from local groundwater aquifer. The reliability of the District’s water supply (with 
the exception of Well 14) is entirely dependent on the reliability of the groundwater in 
the Mojave River Basin, which is managed by MWA.  

Almost all of the water use within MWA’s service area is supplied by pumped 
groundwater. To supplement the local groundwater supplies, MWA recharges the 
groundwater basins with SWP imported water, natural surface water flows, wastewater 
imports from outside MWA’s service area, agricultural depletion from storage, and return 
flow from pumped groundwater not consumptively used. MWA’s sources are only used 
to recharge the groundwater basins and are not supplied directly to any retailers, with the 
exception of two power plants, the High Desert Power Project and the LUZ Solar Plant.   

MWA is actively operating recharge sites along their Mojave River Pipeline and 
Morongo Basin Pipelines. Their current recharge sites include Hodge, Lenwood, Daggett, 
Newberry Springs, and Rock Springs Outlet. These recharge sites provide MWA with the 
ability to recharge SWP water into subareas where replacement water is purchased, as 
well as to bank excess SWP water, when available.  
 
4.2 REGIONAL DEMAND AND SUPPLIES COMPARISON 

MWA Supplies and Demands 

The District currently obtains all of its water supply from the local groundwater aquifer 
and the reliability of the District’s water supply is entirely dependent on the reliability of 
the groundwater in the Mojave River Basin. Table 4.2-1 shows the historic and projected 
total retail water demands within MWA’s service area. MWA’s projections assume 
moderate conservation and are further explained in MWA’s 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan. 

Table 4.2-1 
Mojave Water Agency Service Area 

Projected Water Demand (AFY) 

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

166,280 151,885 163,161 170,496 181,740 192,969 204,181

  Source: MWA 2010 UWMP, Table 2-3.  
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MWA analyzed water demands in their service area to assess the region’s ability to 
satisfy demands during an average water year, during a single-dry year, and multiple-dry 
years, Table 4.2-2 indicates the base years used for this analysis. 

Table 4.2-2  
Basis of Water Year Data 

 Water Year Type Base Years Historical Sequence 

Average Water Year Average 1922 - 2003 

Single-Dry Water Year 1977 --- 

Multiple-Dry Water Year 1931 - 1934 --- 
Source: Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP, Table 6-2. 

Table 4.2-3 summarizes MWA’s projections for their total supply and total demand 
during normal, single-dry year, and multiple dry years through 2035. MWA estimates 
that the demands will increase by 10 percent during single-dry year and multi-year 
periods. MWA plans on meeting 100 percent of their service area demands through 2035 
in single-dry years and multiple-dry year periods with consistent local sources, SWP 
banking, and supply enhancement projects.  

Table 4.2-3 
MWA Supply/Demand Reliability Projections 

for Normal, Single Dry Years, and Multiple Dry Years (AFY) 

Normal Year 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Total Estimated 

Supply 
181,674 189,113 195,194 201,001 207,698 213,490 

Total Estimated 
Demand 151,885 163,161 170,496 181,740 192,969 204,181 

Difference/Surplus 29,789 25,952 24,698 19,261 14,729 9,309 
Difference as a % 

of Supply 16.4% 13.7% 12.7% 9.6% 7.1% 4.4% 
Difference as a % 

of Demand 19.6% 15.9% 14.5% 10.6% 7.6% 4.6% 

Single-Dry Year 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Total Estimated 

Supply  
167,074 179,477 187,546 199,914 212,266 224,599 

Total Estimated 
Demand 

167,074 179,477 187,546 199,914 212,266 224,599 

Multiple-Dry Year 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Total Estimated 

Supply  
167,074 179,477 187,546 199,914 212,266 224,599 

Total Estimated 
Demand 

167,074 179,477 187,546 199,914 212,266 224,599 

Source: Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP.  
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MWA anticipates adequate supplies to meet demand during average, single-dry, and 
multiple-dry years, and excess supplies in normal years through 2035. 
 
4.3  VULNERABILITY OF WATER SUPPLY TO SEASONAL OR CLIMATIC 

SHORTAGE 

As previously stated, the District obtains its water from the Mojave River Basin and 
MWA manages the local groundwater supply to ensure its reliability during droughts and 
shortages. MWA is contracted with the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) for delivery of SWP water, but the variability in SWP supplies affects the ability 
of MWA to meet the overall recharge water supply needs for their service area. The 
amount of SWP water actually allocated to MWA each year is dependent on a number of 
factors, including seasonal or climatic shortages. These factors can cause the amount of 
available SWP water to vary significantly from year to year. The Department of Water 
Resources’ “State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report 2009” presents a projection 
of SWP delivery reliability. Although it is very conservative, it assists MWA and other 
SWP contractors in assessing the reliability of their SWP supplies. The 2009 Report 
shows that deliveries during multiple–dry year periods could average about 34 to 35 
percent of the maximum amount of water that MWA may request and could drop as low 
as 7 to 11 percent during an unusually single dry year.25 

MWA assumes that its local supply sources will remain constant during dry weather 
years. Since annual fluctuations in natural surface flows do not impact the long-term 
sustainability of the groundwater basins, MWA assumes that the natural supply is 100 
percent available in single-dry year and multiple-dry year conditions. MWA assumes that 
imported wastewater from agencies inside and outside of their service area, as well as 
return flow from pumped groundwater that is not consumptively used will remain 100 
percent available during dry weather conditions. Both are a direct function of water 
demands, which typically will increase during periods of dry weather. MWA also 
assumes that supply of recycled water from wastewater treatment plants within their 
service area will actually increase during dry weather years, due to increased demand.  

The variability in SWP supplies has the largest effect on the reliability of the groundwater 
supply during seasonal or climatic shortages. MWA anticipates that consistent local 
supplies, combined with several existing and planned programs and projects will ensure 
that its purveyors, including the District, will have an adequate and reliable water supply 
during seasonal or climatic shortages.  
 
4.4 PLANNED WATER SUPPLY PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS TO MEET 

PROJECTED WATER USE 

The Mojave Water Agency predicts that Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services 
District’s water demands will more than double over the next 25 years. The District will 
construct new projects and implement programs to adequately supply the increasing 

                                                           
25 From Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP. 
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demands and better manage the Mojave River Basin resource. The District’s 2010 Water 
Facilities Master Plan, prepared by IDModeling, provides a 10-year Capital Improvement 
Program for the District. Figure 4-1 shows the Master Plan’s proposed projects to correct 
deficiencies in the existing system and to ensure reliable and efficient water delivery and 
distribution with the increasing population through 2020. 

Figure 4-1  
PPHCSD Proposed 10-Year Capital Improvements26 

 
 
 
The District continually reviews practices and constructs projects as required to provide 
its customers with adequate and reliable supplies. A list of various projects that the 
District has completed from 2008 to 2010, projects that are underway, and projects that 
will be completed within a year are provided in Appendix F. Trained staff continue to 
ensure the water quality is safe and the water supply will meet present and future needs in 
an environmentally and economically responsible manner. To ensure a reliable supply to 
its customers, the District fills its tanks when demands are low and pumps from the tanks 
and pressurizes the water system during high demand periods.  

 
4.4.1 REGIONAL AGENCY PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

The planned projects and programs implemented by MWA to secure their water supplies 
and effectively recharge the groundwater supply in the Mojave River Basin directly affect 
the District’s water supply.   
                                                           
26 From PPHCSD 2010 Water Facilities Master Plan, Fig. 5-4.  
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To account for the variability of available SWP water and to prevent shortages during dry 
years, MWA banks SWP storage water when possible. Although there can be a large 
variability in available SWP supplies, MWA’s available SWP supply on average is 
greater than the demand within their service area. MWA takes advantage of this by 
storing the excess water in various groundwater basins for future use when SWP supplies 
are not available. During normal and wet years, MWA recharges SWP water in excess of 
local demands. They store this excess water as part of a groundwater storage program. 
During dry years when SWP supplies are limited, MWA uses the banked supply to meet 
demands. To prioritize where available water should be banked, MWA adopted a Water 
Banking Policy in 2006. The Policy established banking targets for each groundwater 
basin based on demands in each Subarea.  

In order to enhance the long-term reliability of the water supply, MWA is currently 
exploring opportunities to purchase water supplies from other water agencies and 
sources, in addition to SWP water supplies. MWA has made short term transfers with the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) and the Sonoma 
County Water Agency (SCWA). Although these exchange programs were short-term, 
they represent the types of exchange opportunities that MWA and other SWP contractors 
have to maximize utilization of available water supplies from the SWP.  

The MWA has supply enhancement projects planed to prevent groundwater overdraft in 
the future and improve supply reliability. Their 2004 Regional Water Management Plan 
lists several recharge projects that will improve water reliability within the Mojave Basin 
Area. These projects include: Regional Recharge and Recovery Project (R3 Project), Oro 
Grande Wash Recharge, Ames Valley Recharge, Joshua Bain Recharge, and Antelope 
Valley Wash Recharge. The R3 Project and the Oro Grande Wash Recharge Project are 
currently being advertised for bid, and the feasibility study is being completed for the 
Ames Valley Recharge Project.  
 
4.5  EXCHANGE OR TRANSFER OPPORTUNITIES 

As previously described in Section 2, the District’s system has three available interties 
with the Victorville Water District, the Sheep Creek Mutual Water Company (SCMWC), 
and San Bernardino County CSA 70J. During normal operation of the water system, there 
are no transfers or exchanges of water within the PPHCSD’s service area. The interties 
provide an additional source of water in case of a shortage or emergency, but all of these 
agencies primarily obtain all of their water from the local groundwater supply, and their 
reliability is directly related to the reliability of the groundwater supply. Because the 
District is entirely dependent on the local groundwater supply, to improve future 
reliability the District may look into future projects that would allow for the District to 
directly purchase wholesale imported water, although no such projects are currently 
planned.  
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4.6  DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES 

The District does not have any desalination facilities. Its service area is not located near 
the ocean, so desalination is not a practical or economically feasible source of water for 
the District. 

 
4.7 RECYCLED WATER OPPORTUNITIES 

The District does not currently supply any recycled water and there are not any recycled 
water projects planned within the District’s service area. Currently, all of the District’s 
customers discharge their wastewater into septic tanks. The District does not have a 
wastewater collection system or a wastewater treatment plant within its service area, so 
the wastewater within the District’s service area is not available for recycling anytime in 
the near future. The District does not currently have any plans to construct a wastewater 
collection system or wastewater treatment plant. 

If the District constructs a wastewater collection system and treatment plant in the future, 
wastewater within the service area could be recycled to offset treated water demand. 
Table 4.7-1 indicates approximate volumes of recycled water that could be available from 
the District’s service area wastewater, if a collection system and a wastewater treatment 
plant are constructed. Assuming that 50 percent of the District’s water usage will be 
returned to the sewer and become treated wastewater and that all wastewater will be 
treated to meet Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and be suitable for recycled 
water use, would generate the recycled water volumes shown below in Table 4.7-1.  

Table 4.7-1 
 Potential Recycled Water (Acre-ft per year) 

Water Supply Sources 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Potential Recycled Water 1,880 2,070 2,269 2,470 2,670 
[1] Assumes recycled water volume equal to 50 percent of projected water demand, projected water 

demands per MWA 2010 UWMP 
[2] Assumes that 100 percent of wastewater will be treated to meet Title 22 of the California Code of 

Regulations and will be available for recycled water use.  

In the future, the District could purchase and import recycled water from outside of their 
service area. However, recycled water infrastructure would first need to be constructed to 
facilitate the importation of recycled water. The District will likely consider constructing 
facilities that will provide recycled water that is generated within its service area, prior to 
constructing facilities that will require the District to purchase recycled water from an 
adjacent agency.  

While the District recognizes the potential uses of recycled water in its community, such 
as landscape irrigation, parks, industrial and other uses, the District does not have the 
infrastructure at this time to support the use of recycled water and it does not have any 
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plans to construct recycled water facilities in the near future. However, the District 
depends on groundwater for all of its water supply and supports the efforts of MWA to 
utilize recycled water to recharge the Mojave River Basin 



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
Section 4 2010 Urban Water Management Plan  

 4-8   

This page intentionally left blank 



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District  
2010 Urban Water Management Plan   Section 5   

 5-1  

5 WATER SUPPLY BASELINES AND TARGETS AND WATER SUPPLY 
RELIABILITY COMAPARISON TABLES 

 
5.1 WATER BASELINES AND TARGETS 
 
To comply with the SBX7-7 water conservation legislation, water suppliers must first 
establish a baseline water usage, which is then used to set targets for 2015 and 2020. The 
SBX7-7 legislation stipulates that targets must be established by using one of four 
allowable methods briefly defined as follows: 

• Method 1: Per capita daily use equals eighty percent of the water supplier’s 
baseline per capita usage; 

• Method 2: Per capita daily use is set based on performance standards applied to 
indoor residential use; landscape area water use, and commercial, industrial and 
institutional use; 

• Method 3: Per capita daily use is set at 95 percent of the applicable State 
hydrologic region target based on DWR’s April 30, 2011 draft 20x2020 Water 
Conservation Plan (Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District is in the 
South Lahonton Region 9); and 

• Method 4: Per capita daily use is set based on standards consistent with CUWCC 
BMPs 

Detailed information on the calculation of Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services 
District’s baseline water usage and 2015 and 2020 per capita water conservation targets 
can be found in Appendix E, a Technical Memorandum dated April 15, 2011, entitled 
“20x2020 Baseline Calculation & Water Use Target Method Selection”. 

As noted in Appendix E, the District’s per capita usage baseline average, minimum 
baseline average and SBX7-7 water conservation targets for 2015 and 2020 have been 
established as follows: 

• Baseline Average (based on 10-year data from 1996-2005) = 184.7 gpcd 

• Minimum Baseline Average (based on 5-year data from 2004-2008) = 171.0 gpcd 

• 2015 Water Conservation Target = 173.1 gpcd 

• 2020 Water Conservation Target = 161.5 gpcd 
 
5.2 WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY COMPARISON TABLES 

Tables 5.2-1 though Table 5.2-3 compare the District’s anticipated available water supply 
with expected demands for normal, single dry, and multiple dry years beginning in 2015 
and extending through 2035. The normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry year conditions 
assume conditions from base years shown in Table 4.2-2. The District’s projected 
demands for normal year usage were provided by the Mojave Water Agency. MWA’s 



Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
Section 5 2010 Urban Water Management Plan  

 5-2   

demand and population projections estimate that the District’s per capita usage from 2015 
through 2035 will be 145 gallons per day. Although this usage is well below the 20x2020 
target of 161.5, the District will attempt to meet MWA’s projected demands to ensure a 
reliable supply. The District’s per capita usage has been less than MWA’s projected 145 
gallons per day for the past three years, as shown in Appendix E. If the District’s per 
capita use returns to the average of the three years prior to 2008, then additional 
conservation will be needed to match MWA’s demand projections. Other factors could 
also impact whether or not MWA’s demand projections are met, such as varying 
population projections.   

Table 5.2-1 
PPHCSD Projected Water Supply and Demand 

Normal Water Year (AFY) 

Water Sources 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Available Supply1  4,358 4,741 5,019 5,312 5,574 
Demand2 3,760 4,141 4,538 4,935 5,331 
Difference 598 600 481 377 243 
Difference as a Percentage of Supply 13.7% 12.7% 9.6% 7.1% 4.4% 
Difference as a Percentage of Demand 15.9% 14.5% 10.6% 7.6% 4.6% 
[1] Available Supply determined from water demand projections for PPHCSD provided by Mojave Water 

Agency. Supply/demand ratio assumed to be proportional to Mojave Water Agency’s supply/demand 
during normal years. Supply/demand ratio determined from Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP and 
indicated in Table 4-3 of this report.   

[2] Demand provided by Mojave Water Agency. 

 

Table 5.2-2 
PPHCSD Projected Water Supply and Demand 

Single Dry Water Year (AFY) 

Water Sources 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Available Supply1  4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 

Demand2 4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 

Difference 0 0 0 0 0 

Difference as a % of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as a % of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
[1] Available Supply determined from water demand projections for PPHCSD provided by Mojave Water 

Agency. Supply/demand ratio assumed to be proportional to Mojave Water Agency’s 
supply/demand during single dry years. Supply/demand ratio determined from Mojave Water 
Agency 2010 UWMP and indicated in Table 4-3 of this report.   

[2] Demand assumed to increase by 10 percent during dry years. Normal year demand volume 
provided by Mojave Water Agency. 
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Table 5.2-3 
PPHCSD Projected Water Supply and Demand 

Multiple Dry Water Years (AFY) 

  2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Multiple-
dry year 
first year 

supply 

Available Supply1  4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Demand2 4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Difference 0 0 0 0 0 
Difference as a % 
of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as a % 
of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Multiple-
dry year 
second 

year 
supply 

Available Supply1  4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Demand2 4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Difference 0 0 0 0 0 
Difference as a % 
of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as a % 
of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Multiple-
dry year 

third year 
supply 

Available Supply1  4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Demand2 4,136 4,555 4,992 5,429 5,864 
Difference 0 0 0 0 0 
Difference as a % 
of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as a % 
of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

[1] Available Supply determined from water demand projections for PPHCSD provided by Mojave Water 
Agency. Supply/demand ratio assumed to be proportional to Mojave Water Agency’s supply/demand 
during single dry years. Supply/demand ratio determined from Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP and 

[2] Demand assumed to increase by 10 percent during dry years. Normal year demand volume provided by 
Mojave Water Agency. 

According to MWA’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, MWA anticipates adequate 
supplies to meet demand during average, single-dry, and multiple-dry years, and excess 
supplies in normal years through 2035. 

5.3 WATER USE REDUCTION PLAN 

As demonstrated from the historical water usage data presented in Appendix E, the 
District has achieved substantial reductions in per capita water usage in recent years. In 
fact, the District has met its SBX7-7 2020 target the past three years. The 2009 and 2010 
water years were well publicized to water customers in Southern California as a drought 
condition. Therefore, demands for these years should not be considered normal. 
Although, the daily per capita use average of the three years prior to 2009 (water years 
2006-2008) within the District was 155.9 gallons, which is still below the 2020 target.  
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In order to ensure adequate reliability, the District plans on meeting or exceeding its 
SBX7-7 target in order to match demand projections estimated by the Mojave Water 
Agency. MWA’s demand and population projections estimate that the District’s per 
capita usage from 2015 through 2035 will be 145 gallons per day, which is well below 
the 20x2020 target of 161.5 gpd. The District’s per capita usage has been less than 145 
gallons per day the past three years, but if the District’s per capita use returns to the 
average of the three years prior to 2008 (pre-drought), then additional conservation will 
be necessary for the District to meet the MWA’s demand projections.   

The SBX7-7 water conservation targets should be easily obtainable for the District, since 
it has exceeded this target in recent years, but additional conservation will be required to 
meet MWA’s water demands projections. The District will attempt to meet the additional 
conservation requirements through a variety of means including: 

• Encouraging residents and businesses in the District to conserve water; 

• Educating the public through a variety of programs on the need for continued 
water conservation; 

• Continuing to operate and maintain the water distribution system with an eye 
toward reducing water losses by repairing or eliminating any leaks that may 
develop as soon as practical; 

• Encouraging or requiring new developments to install water conservation 
fixtures and landscape with low water use plant materials (xeriscape).  

5.4 LOW-INCOME PROJECTED WATER DEMANDS 

The California Water Code, Division 6, Part 2.6, Section 10631.127 requires each urban 
water retailer to include projected water use for single family and multi-family residential 
housing needed for lower income households as defined in Section 50079.528 of the 
Health and Safety Code, as identified in the housing element of the District. 

The District’s low-income projected water demands were determined from the U.S. 
Census Bureau data and the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) for San 
Bernardino County. The RHNA is an assessment quantifies the need for housing by 
income group within various jurisdictions during specific planning periods. The RHNA 
in San Bernardino County is determined by the Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG). SCAG’s most current RHNA planning period is January 1, 2006 
to June 30, 2014.  

                                                           
27 All California Law Codes can be accessed at this website: http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.html; 

Section 10631.1 of the California Water Code is available at this website: 
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=wat&group=10001-

11000&file=10630-10634 
28 Section 500.79.5 of the Health and Safety Code is available at this website: 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=hsc&group=50001-
51000&file=50050-50106  
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Because Census data and RHNA information are not specifically available for the 
District’s service area, Census and RHNA data for San Bernardino County was used. 
From the available Census and RHNA data, it appears that low-income data for San 
Bernardino County as a whole is an accurate representation of the communities adjacent 
to the District’s service area, which include the City of Hesperia, Mountain View Acres, 
and the City of Victorville. It was assumed that Census data and the RHNA for San 
Bernardino County is indicative of the low-income population within the District’s 
service area.  

The District’s 2009 low-income usage was determined as a percentage of its total 
residential usage recorded in 2009. This percentage was determined from Census data for 
San Bernardino County collected from 2005 to 2009. Low-income households were 
considered to be households with incomes less than 80 percent of the County’s median 
household income. Census data showed that approximately 39.7 percent of the County’s 
households were low-income housing in 2009. The District’s total residential usage in 
2009 (2,490 AFY, as indicated in Table 6.1-1) was multiplied by 39.7 percent to 
determine the District’s 2009 low-income usage.  

Table 5.4-1 lists the District’s low-income projected water demands. Because SCAG’s 
most recent RHNA for San Bernardino County only projects through 2014, the District’s 
low-income water demands were only projected through 2014. The RHNA recommends 
an allocation for 39.5 percent low-income and very low-income housing from 2006 
through 2014. To determine the low-income water usage in 2014, the increase in low-
income demand from 2009 to 2014 “New Demand” was determined by multiplying 39.5 
percent by the increase in total residential demand from 2009 to 2014 (2014 residential 
demand interpolated from values listed in Table 6.1-1). Low-income demand in 2014 was 
then determined by adding the “New Demand” to the low-income demand in 2009. Since 
the estimated demand for low-income households is within the projections utilized for 
total new demand, water supplies should be available. 

Table 5.4-1 Low-Income Water Use Projections (AFY) 

Low-Income Water Use 2009 2014 

Total 989 1,160 

New Demand - 171 

 
5.5 WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

California’s extensive system of water supply infrastructure, its reservoirs, groundwater 
basins, and inter-regional conveyance facilities, mitigates the effect of short-term dry 
periods. Defining when a drought begins is a function of drought impacts to water users. 
Drought is a gradual phenomenon. Although droughts are sometimes characterized as 
emergencies, they differ from typical emergency events. Droughts occur slowly, over a 
multiyear period. Drought impacts increase with the length of a drought, as carry-over 
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supplies in reservoirs are depleted and water levels in groundwater basins decline. To 
meet short-term water demand deficiencies, and short- or long-term drought 
requirements, the District is currently developing its own Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan. As discussed previously, the extensive availability of groundwater storage and 
MWA’s ability to maintain groundwater levels by recharging these basins in wet years 
for use in dry years along with the ability to reduce water consumption during dry periods 
as evidenced over the past few years, provide reliability for the District.   
 
5.6 CATASTROPHIC SUPPLY INTERRUPTION PLAN 
 
Water Shortage Emergency Response 

A water shortage emergency could be the result of a catastrophic event such prolonged 
drought, failures of transmission facilities, a regional power outage, earthquake, flooding, 
supply contamination from chemical spills, or other adverse conditions. The District 
maintains and exercises a comprehensive Emergency Management Program for such 
emergencies including Water Shortage Emergency Response. The plan describes the 
organizational and operational policies and procedures required to provide sufficient 
water supply for firefighting operations and safe drinking water, as well as provides a 
system for organizing and prioritizing water repairs. It also cites authorities and specifies 
the public and private organizations responsible for providing water service. A copy of 
the District’s Water Shortage Emergency Response Plan is included in Appendix I.  
 
5.7 ESTIMATED MINIMUM SUPPLY FOR NEXT THREE YEARS 

The Mojave Water Agency projects 100 percent reliability for full-service demands 
through the year 2035.  The District anticipates the ability to meet water demand through 
the next three years based on the driest historic three-years as shown in Table 5.7-1.  

Table 5.7-1 
Three Year Estimated Minimum Water Supply  
(Based on Driest 3-Year Historic Sequence)  

(AFY – All projections rounded to nearest 10 AF) 

Source 
Normal Multiple Dry Years2 

2011 2012 2013 2011 2012 2013 
Groundwater Supply 4,046 4,126 4,205 3,744 3,842 3,940 

Total 4,046 4,126 4,205 3,744 3,842 3,940 
[1]  Source: Supply determined from water demand projections for PPHCSD provided by Mojave Water 

Agency. Demand interpolated from values indicated in Table 2-2, assuming normal 2010 usage. 
Supply/demand ratio interpolated from MWA 2010 UWMP projections, indicated in Table 4-3 of this 
report. 

[2] Multiple dry years based on driest 3-year historic sequence, indicated in Table 4-2. Demand during dry 
years assumed to increase by 10 percent from normal year demand volume provided by Mojave 
Water Agency. 
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The District relies on groundwater wells accessing the Mojave River Basin managed by 
MWA. MWA is looking into alternate supplies and has supply enhancement projects 
under construction to prevent groundwater overdraft and improve supply reliability to its 
purveyors, as discussed in Section 4. Additional actions to manage limited supplies 
would include both operational and demand management measures, encompassing 
alternative rate structures, distribution of water use efficiency devices, and enhanced 
school education and public information. Section 7 and the MWA 2010 UWMP further 
discusses MWA’s programs for the benefit of the region and its member purveyors, 
including the Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District. 
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6 WATER USE PROVISIONS  
 
6.1 PAST, CURRENT AND PROJECTED WATER USE AMONG SECTORS 
 
From 1996 to 2008 the District’s usage increased at an average rate of approximately two 
percent per year. The Mojave Water Agency’s demand projections for the District 
indicate that the District’s total usage will continue to increase at approximately 2 percent 
on average through 2035. Table 6.1-1 lists the District’s past, current and projected water 
use between 2004 and 2035. 

Table 6.1-1 
Past, Current and Projected Water Use by Billing Classification (AF) 

District Billing Class 2004 2009 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Single Family Residential 2,623 2,486 3,009 3,314 3,632 3,949 4,266 

Multi-Family Residential 5 4 4 5 5 6 6 

Commercial 167 243 294 323 354 385 416 

Industrial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Institutional/Governmental 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Landscape Irrigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Agriculture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other - Outside of Billing System  5 1 2 2 2 2 2 

Subtotal 2,800 2,734 3,309 3,644 3,993 4,343 4,691 

Unaccounted for System Losses [2]  798 68 397 497 545 592 640 

Total Water Use[3] 3,598 2,802 3,706 4,141 4,538 4,935 5,331 
 [1] Source: Year 2004 and 2009 data from PPHCSD for calendar years. All future total demands from Table 

5-1; future projections by class are proportionate to class percentages reflected in the year 2009 data. 
[2]  2004 and 2009 losses are based on actual data; all other years assume losses of 12 percent, based on 

average loss percentage from WY 1999 -2009 from PPHCSD 2010 Water Facilities Master Plan.  
[3] Total water use per Mojave Water Agency 2010 UWMP.  

Unaccounted-for water is the difference between water production and water 
consumption and represents “lost” water. Unaccounted-for water occurs for a number of 
reasons:  

• Water lost from system leaking, i.e., from pipes, valves, pumps, and other water 
system appurtenances.  

• Customer meter inaccuracies. Meters have an inherent accuracy for a specified 
flow range. However, flow above or below this range is usually registered at a 
lower rate. Meters become less accurate with time due to wear. 

 
Unaccounted-for water was 22 percent in 2004 and only 2.4 percent in 2009, but 
according to the District’s 2010 Water Master Plan, unaccounted losses averaged 12 
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percent during the ten year period from water years 1999/2000 to 2008/09. Leak 
detection and water audits may help the District to reduce unaccounted-for water losses 
in the future.  
 
6.2 WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS BY SECTOR 
 
Table 6.2-1 shows the current and projected number of water service customers by sector 
from 2004 through 2035.  

Table 6.2-1 
Number of Water Service Connections by Billing Classification 

District Billing Class 2004 2009 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Single Family Res. 5,368 6,699 7,433 8,176 8,950 9,724 10,498 
Multi-family Res. 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 

Commercial 41 60 67 73 80 87 94 
Industrial 0 5 6 6 7 7 8 
Landscape 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Agricultural 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Other 2 5 6 6 7 7 8 

Total Connections 5,416 6,774 7,516 8,267 9,050 9,833 10,615 
Note: 2004 and 2009 data from PPHCSD; future projections are based on percentages proportionate to 
2009 actual data and population projections. 
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7 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES  
 
7.1 INTRODUCTION  

The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District is a water purveyor of MWA. 
MWA is a member of the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) and 
submits annual reports to that council in accordance with the Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California (MOU) from 2006. 
MWA implements many of the urban water conservation Demand Management 
Measures (DMMs) on behalf of its purveyors, including the Phelan Piñon Hills 
Community Services District.   

The District is not a member of the CUWCC and does not submit a Retail Water Agency 
Annual Report to the CUWCC. A summary of all current Demand Management 
Measures being implemented within the District’s water service area by either the District 
or MWA is provided herein. MWA’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan should be 
referred to for a detailed discussion of the regional best management practices (BMPs) 
program and each individual BMP. 

As Signatory to the MOU, MWA has committed to a good faith effort in implementing 
the 14 cost-effective BMPs. “Implementation” means achieving and maintaining the 
staffing, funding, and in general, the priority levels necessary to achieve the level of 
activity called for in each BMP's definition, and to satisfy the commitment by the 
signatories to use good faith efforts to optimize savings from implementing BMPs as 
described in the MOU. A BMP as defined in the MOU is a “practice for which sufficient 
data are available from existing water conservation practices to indicate that significant 
conservation or conservation related benefits can be achieved; that the practice is 
technically and economically reasonable and not environmentally or socially 
unacceptable; and that the practice is not otherwise unreasonable for most water agencies 
to carry out.” 

The 14 BMPs include technologies and methodologies that have been sufficiently 
documented in multiple demonstration projects that result in more efficient water use and 
conservation. Many of the BMPs are implemented by the MWA in coordination with the 
District. Specifically, the 14 BMPs include:  

1. Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily residential 
customers 

2. Residential plumbing retrofit 

3. System water audits, leak detection, and repair 

4. Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing 
connections 

5. Large landscape conservation programs and incentives 

6. High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs 
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7. Public information programs 

8. School education programs 

9. Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional accounts 

10. Wholesale agency programs 

11. Conservation pricing 

12. Water conservation coordinator 

13. Water waste prohibition 

14. Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs 

As signatory to the MOU, MWA is responsible for completing and submitting BMP 
Activity Reports to the CUWCC every two years for each year prior. The BMP Activity 
Report is a comprehensive document that shows implementation of each BMP.   
 
7.2 BMP 1 - WATER SURVEY PROGRAMS FOR SINGLE FAMILY AND  

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as identifying the top 20 percent of water 
users in each sector, directly contacting them (e.g., by mail and/or telephone) and offering the 
service on a repeating cycle; providing incentives sufficient to achieve customer implementation 
(e.g., free shower heads, hose and sprinkler timers, etc.). (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-A) 

MWA currently provides free low-flow shower heads, faucet aerators, and leak detection 
dye tablets to the District’s customers. 
 
7.3 BMP 2 - RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING RETROFIT 

Definition 

2c. PLUMBING RETROFIT 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as delivering retrofit kits including high 
quality low-flow shower heads to pre-1980 homes that do not have them and toilet displacement 
devices or other devices to reduce flush volume for each home that does not already have ULF 
toilets, offering to install the devices; and following up at least three times. (Water Code Section 
10631(f), 1-B) 

The District, along with MWA, emphasizes High-Efficiency toilets (1.28 gallons per 
flush) that are EPA WaterSense certified. In addition, MWA provides free low-flow 
shower heads, faucet aerators, and leak detection dye tablets at their facilities. 
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7.4 BMP 3 - SYSTEM WATER AUDITS, LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as at least once every three years completing 
a water audit of the water supplier's distribution system using methodology such as that 
described in the American Water Works Association's "Manual of Water Supply Practices, 
Water Audits and Leak Detection;" advising customers whenever it appears possible that leaks 
exist on the customer's side of the meter, and performing distribution system leak detection and 
repair whenever the audit reveals that it would be cost effective. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-
C) 

MWA is currently developing a program to provide technical support to its retailers for 
addressing the new American Water Works Association (AWWA) requirements for 
System Water Audit implementation. The methodology presented in the American Water 
Works Association’s “Manual of Water Supply Practices, Water Audits and Leak 
Detection” (AWWA M36) is desirable in reducing water lost to leaks.  

Many of the recommendations noted in the manual are currently integrated into the 
District’s regular operations and maintenance procedures. From recent metered sales 
totals and groundwater production records, the District is able to approximate loss of 
water in the system due to leaks. During 2009, the volume of unaccounted for water 
losses within the District’s water distribution system was estimated to be 2.4%. This was 
determined by the difference between the metered customer usage and groundwater 
production. Over the approximately 353 miles of distribution system piping, this loss is 
well within industry standards for a well-operated system. Therefore, a full-scale system 
audit is not necessary at this time. However, since MWA is the signatory of the MOU, 
and is the water supplier for the District, they are required to complete a system water 
audit for the Treated Water Service Area once every three years.  

7.5 BMP 4 - METERING WITH COMMODITY RATES FOR ALL NEW 
CONNECTIONS AND RETROFIT OF EXISTING CONNECTIONS 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be requiring meters for all new connections and billing by volume 
of use; and establishing a program for retrofitting any existing unmetered connections and billing 
by volume of use; for example, through a requirement that all connections be retrofitted at or 
within six months of resale of the property or retrofitted by neighborhood. (Water Code Section 
10631(f), 1-D) 

All service connections within the District’s water service area are provided with water 
meters. There are no unmetered water service connections within the service area. The 
District's meters are classified into six sectors including single family residential, multi-
family residential, commercial/institutional, industrial, landscape irrigation, and 
agricultural irrigation. The District bills each customer based on the volume of water 
used. Billing is based on a three-tiered water rate structure. Further details on the rate 
structure are listed under BMP 11. 
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7.6 BMP 5 - LARGE LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION PROGRAMS AND 
INCENTIVES 

Definition  

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as identifying all irrigators of large (at least 
3 acres) landscapes (e.g., golf courses, green belts, common areas, multi-family housing 
landscapes, schools, business parks, cemeteries, parks and publicly owned landscapes on or 
adjacent to road rights-of-way); contacting them directly (by mail and/or telephone); offering 
landscape audits using methodology such as that described in the Landscape Water Management 
Handbook prepared for the California Department of Water Resources; and cost-effective 
incentives sufficient to achieve customer implementation; providing follow-up audits at least once 
every five years; and providing multi-lingual training and information necessary for 
implementation. In addition, enacting and implementing landscape water conservation 
ordinances, or if the supplier does not have the authority to enact ordinances, cooperating with 
cities, counties and the green industry in the service area to develop and implement landscape 
water conservation ordinances pursuant to the ‘Water Conservation in Landscaping Act’ 
(Government Code 65591 et. seq.). (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-E) 

The Mojave Water Agency assists several of the agencies within its service area to 
develop landscape programs and assist customers in water conservation. MWA also 
currently provides small to large landscape rebates of $0.50 per square foot of turf 
converted to desert adaptive landscaping with 25 percent canopy coverage. PPHCSD 
supplements this incentive with an additional $0.50 per square foot, in combination with 
BMPs 6 and 14 up to a maximum of $25,000 per year.  

7.7 BMP 6 - HIGH EFFICIENCY WASHING MACHINE REBATE PROGRAMS  

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be enacted to provide incentives for replacement of older less 
efficient washing machines with newer, high-efficiency models. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-
F) 

The MWA program offers rebates of $175 to residential customers who purchase 
washing machines with a minimum water use efficiency, or water factor. PPHCSD 
supplements this incentive with an additional $25 per washer, in combination with BMPs 5 
and 14 up to a maximum of $25,000 per year.  

7.8 BMP 7 - PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAMS 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as ongoing programs promoting water 
conservation and conservation related benefits including providing speakers to community 
groups and the media; using paid and public service advertising; using bill inserts; providing 
information on customer's bills showing use in gallons per day for the last billing period 
compared to the same period the year before; providing public information to promote other water 
conservation practices; and coordinating with other governmental agencies, industry groups and 
public interest groups. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-G) 
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MWA promotes water conservation through several public information programs. MWA 
provides outreach, educational, informational materials and literature, public service 
announcements, and paid advertisements promoting water conservation to the public. 
MWA also provides flyers and bill inserts, which the District provides to its customers. 
The District also holds workshops at the Community Center on water efficient 
landscaping and water efficient irrigation systems including the use of smart irrigation 
controllers at least twice a year. 

7.9 BMP 8 - SCHOOL EDUCATION PROGRAMS 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as ongoing programs promoting water 
conservation and conservation related benefits including working with the school districts in the 
water supplier's service area to provide educational materials and instructional assistance. 
(Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-H) 

The District runs school water conservation education programs in cooperation with 
MWA and the Mojave Environmental Education Consortium (MEEC). MWA provides 
literature and staff support to the District for teacher training workshops known as 
“Project Wet”.  The District is included and participates with AWAC via MWA. 

7.10 BMP 9 - CONSERVATION PROGRAMS FOR COMMERCIAL, 
INDUSTRIAL, AND INSTITUTIONAL (CII) ACCOUNTS 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as identifying and contacting the top 10 
percent of the industrial and commercial customers directly (by mail and/or telephone); offering 
audits and incentives sufficient to achieve customer implementation; and providing follow-up 
audits at least once every five years if necessary. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-I) 

BMP 9 is implemented by MWA. Rebates are offered as an incentive to upgrade to more 
efficient equipment. This BMP does not have a large affect the District’s water service 
area, since less than 5 percent of the District’s water usage currently is supplied to 
commercial usage and there are currently no industrial or institutional accounts within the 
District’s service area.  

7.11 BMP 10 - WHOLESALE AGENCY PROGRAMS 

Definition 

Implementation shall consist of at least the following actions: Wholesale Water Agency shall 
provide conservation-related technical support and information; financial incentives, or 
equivalent resources; and, when mutually agreeable and beneficial, operate all or any part of the 
conservation-related activities which a given retail supplier is obligated to implement under the 
BMP’s cost-effectiveness test. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-J) 

The District is not a wholesale water agency and therefore does not implement this BMP.  
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7.12 BMP 11 - CONSERVATION PRICING 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as eliminating nonconserving pricing and 
adopting conserving pricing. For signatories supplying both water and sewer, this BMP applies 
to pricing of both water and sewer service. Signatories that supply water but not sewer service 
shall make a good faith effort to work with sewer agencies so that those sewer agencies adopt 
conservation pricing for sewer service. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-K) 

The District has a three-tiered rate structure for water service within its service area. The 
first tier is currently set at $1.81 per hundred cubic feet (hcf) for 0 to 14 hcf with the next 
tier at $2.01 per hcf for up to 80 hcf and the third tier set at $2.08 above 80 hcf. 
Additionally, each customer with a standard ¾-inch meter pays a flat rate of $13.01 per 
month. All of the District’s customers are currently served by septic systems. This tiered 
rate encourages conservation as the higher the use, the higher the commodity charge per 
unit of water. 

7.13 BMP 12 - CONSERVATION COORDINATOR 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be at least as effective as designating a water conservation 
coordinator responsible for preparing the conservation plan, managing its implementation, and 
evaluating the results. For very small water suppliers, this might be a part-time responsibility. 
For larger suppliers this would be a full-time responsibility with additional staff as appropriate. 
This work should be coordinated with the supplier's operations and planning staff. (Water Code 
Section 10631(f), 1-L) 

The District has designated staff responsible for water conservation coordination. Since 
many of the BMPs are implemented by MWA, the District’s staff does not spend a large 
amount of time dedicated to water conservation programs. The District continues to be 
involved in AWAC water conservation programs implemented by MWA. 

7.14 BMP 13 - WATER WASTE PROHIBITION 

Definition 

Implementation methods shall be enacting and enforcing measures prohibiting gutter flooding, 
sales of automatic (self regenerating) water softeners, single pass cooling systems in new 
connections, non-recirculating systems in all new conveyer car wash and commercial laundry 
systems and non-cycling decorative water fountains. (Water Code Section 10631(f), 1-M) 

The District is currently developing a Water Shortage Contingency plan in which 
measures will be developed to prohibit activities such as; gutter flooding, non-
recirculating fountains, non-commercial washing of motor vehicles, boats and trailers, 
filling of swimming pools, and use of water from a water hydrant during water shortages. 
Also, San Bernardino County Special Districts Ordinance No. SD 90-11 prohibits 
excessive use of water and provides guidelines to reduce water usage. The District’s 
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service area is included in this ordinance. A copy of Ordinance No. SD 90-11 is included 
in Appendix D.  

7.15 BMP 14 - RESIDENTIAL High-Efficiency Toilet Rebate program 

Definition 

An Implementation program for replacement of existing high-water-using toilets with ultra-low-
flush toilets (1.6 gallons or less) in residential, commercial and industrial buildings shall be 
enacted. Such programs would be at least as effective as offering rebates of up to $100 for each 
replacement that would not have occurred without the rebate, or requiring the replacement at 
time of resale, or requiring the replacement at the time of change of service. (Water Code Section 
10631(f), 1-N) 

MWA offers rebates of $165 for each high efficiency toilet installed to both single family 
and multi-family residential customers to encourage them to replace older, high volume 
toilets with new, high-efficiency models. PPHCSD supplements this incentive with an 
additional $25 per toilet, in combination with BMPs 5 and 6 up to a maximum of $25,000 per 
year.  
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CALIFORNIA WATER CODE DIVISION 6 
PART 2.6. URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
All California Codes have been updated to include the 2010 Statutes. 
 
CHAPTER 1. GENERAL DECLARATION AND POLICY 10610-10610.4 
CHAPTER 2. DEFINITIONS     10611-10617 
CHAPTER 3. URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANS 
   Article 1. General Provisions    10620-10621 
   Article 2. Contents of Plans    10630-10634 
   Article 2.5. Water Service Reliability   10635 
   Article 3. Adoption and Implementation of Plans  10640-10645 
CHAPTER 4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  10650-10656 

WATER CODE  
SECTION 10610-10610.4  
 
10610.  This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Urban 
Water Management Planning Act." 
 
10610.2.  (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the 
following: 
   (1) The waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource 
subject to ever-increasing demands. 
   (2) The conservation and efficient use of urban water supplies are 
of statewide concern; however, the planning for that use and the 
implementation of those plans can best be accomplished at the local 
level. 
   (3) A long-term, reliable supply of water is essential to protect 
the productivity of California's businesses and economic climate. 
   (4) As part of its long-range planning activities, every urban 
water supplier should make every effort to ensure the appropriate 
level of reliability in its water service sufficient to meet the 
needs of its various categories of customers during normal, dry, and 
multiple dry water years. 
   (5) Public health issues have been raised over a number of 
contaminants that have been identified in certain local and imported 
water supplies. 
   (6) Implementing effective water management strategies, including 
groundwater storage projects and recycled water projects, may require 
specific water quality and salinity targets for meeting groundwater 
basins water quality objectives and promoting beneficial use of 
recycled water. 
   (7) Water quality regulations are becoming an increasingly 
important factor in water agencies' selection of raw water sources, 
treatment alternatives, and modifications to existing treatment 
facilities. 
   (8) Changes in drinking water quality standards may also impact 
the usefulness of water supplies and may ultimately impact supply 
reliability. 
   (9) The quality of source supplies can have a significant impact 
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on water management strategies and supply reliability. 
   (b) This part is intended to provide assistance to water agencies 
in carrying out their long-term resource planning responsibilities to 
ensure adequate water supplies to meet existing and future demands 
for water. 
 
10610.4.  The Legislature finds and declares that it is the policy 
of the state as follows: 
   (a) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of 
water shall be actively pursued to protect both the people of the 
state and their water resources. 
   (b) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of 
urban water supplies shall be a guiding criterion in public 
decisions. 
   (c) Urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water 
management plans to actively pursue the efficient use of available 
supplies. 

WATER CODE  
SECTION 10611-10617  
 
10611.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the definitions of 
this chapter govern the construction of this part. 
 
10611.5.  "Demand management" means those water conservation 
measures, programs, and incentives that prevent the waste of water 
and promote the reasonable and efficient use and reuse of available 
supplies. 
 
10612.  "Customer" means a purchaser of water from a water supplier 
who uses the water for municipal purposes, including residential, 
commercial, governmental, and industrial uses. 
 
10613.  "Efficient use" means those management measures that result 
in the most effective use of water so as to prevent its waste or 
unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use. 
 
10614.  "Person" means any individual, firm, association, 
organization, partnership, business, trust, corporation, company, 
public agency, or any agency of such an entity. 
 
10615.  "Plan" means an urban water management plan prepared 
pursuant to this part. A plan shall describe and evaluate sources of 
supply, reasonable and practical efficient uses, reclamation and 
demand management activities. The components of the plan may vary 
according to an individual community or area's characteristics and 
its capabilities to efficiently use and conserve water. The plan 
shall address measures for residential, commercial, governmental, and 
industrial water demand management as set forth in Article 2 
(commencing with Section 10630) of Chapter 3. In addition, a strategy 
and time schedule for implementation shall be included in the plan. 
 
10616.  "Public agency" means any board, commission, county, city 
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and county, city, regional agency, district, or other public entity. 
 
10616.5.  "Recycled water" means the reclamation and reuse of 
wastewater for beneficial use. 
 
10617.  "Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or 
privately owned, providing water for municipal purposes either 
directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more 
than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier 
includes a supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis 
of right, which distributes or sells for ultimate resale to 
customers. This part applies only to water supplied from public water 
systems subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 116275) of 
Part 12 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code. 

WATER CODE  
SECTION 10620-10621  
 
10620.  (a) Every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt an 
urban water management plan in the manner set forth in Article 3 
(commencing with Section 10640). 
   (b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt 
an urban water management plan within one year after it has become an 
urban water supplier. 
   (c) An urban water supplier indirectly providing water shall not 
include planning elements in its water management plan as provided in 
Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630) that would be applicable 
to urban water suppliers or public agencies directly providing water, 
or to their customers, without the consent of those suppliers or 
public agencies. 
   (d) (1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of 
this part by participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or 
basinwide urban water management planning where those plans will 
reduce preparation costs and contribute to the achievement of 
conservation and efficient water use. 
   (2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of 
its plan with other appropriate agencies in the area, including other 
water suppliers that share a common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent practicable. 
   (e) The urban water supplier may prepare the plan with its own 
staff, by contract, or in cooperation with other governmental 
agencies. 
   (f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water 
management tools and options used by that entity that will maximize 
resources and minimize the need to import water from other regions. 
 
10621.  (a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least 
once every five years on or before December 31, in years ending in 
five and zero. 
   (b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant 
to this part shall, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing on 
the plan required by Section 10642, notify any city or county within 
which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water 
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supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or 
changes to the plan. The urban water supplier may consult with, and 
obtain comments from, any city or county that receives notice 
pursuant to this subdivision. 
   (c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted 
and filed in the manner set forth in Article 3 (commencing with 
Section 10640). 

WATER CODE  
SECTION 10630-10634  
 
10630.  It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this 
part, to permit levels of water management planning commensurate with 
the numbers of customers served and the volume of water supplied. 
 
10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter that 
shall do all of the following: 
   (a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current 
and projected population, climate, and other demographic factors 
affecting the supplier's water management planning. The projected 
population estimates shall be based upon data from the state, 
regional, or local service agency population projections within the 
service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year 
increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. 
   (b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing 
and planned sources of water available to the supplier over the same 
five-year increments described in subdivision (a). If groundwater is 
identified as an existing or planned source of water available to 
the supplier, all of the following information shall be included in 
the plan: 
   (1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban 
water supplier, including plans adopted pursuant to Part 2.75 
(commencing with Section 10750), or any other specific authorization 
for groundwater management. 
   (2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which 
the urban water supplier pumps groundwater. For those basins for 
which a court or the board has adjudicated the rights to pump 
groundwater, a copy of the order or decree adopted by the court or 
the board and a description of the amount of groundwater the urban 
water supplier has the legal right to pump under the order or decree. 
For basins that have not been adjudicated, information as to whether 
the department has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or 
has projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present 
management conditions continue, in the most current official 
departmental bulletin that characterizes the condition of the 
groundwater basin, and a detailed description of the efforts being 
undertaken by the urban water supplier to eliminate the long-term 
overdraft condition. 
   (3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, 
and sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for 
the past five years. The description and analysis shall be based on 
information that is reasonably available, including, but not limited 
to, historic use records. 
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   (4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location 
of groundwater that is projected to be pumped by the urban water 
supplier. The description and analysis shall be based on information 
that is reasonably available, including, but not limited to, historic 
use records. 
   (c) (1) Describe the reliability of the water supply and 
vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage, to the extent 
practicable, and provide data for each of the following: 
   (A) An average water year. 
   (B) A single dry water year. 
   (C) Multiple dry water years. 
   (2) For any water source that may not be available at a consistent 
level of use, given specific legal, environmental, water quality, or 
climatic factors, describe plans to supplement or replace that 
source with alternative sources or water demand management measures, 
to the extent practicable. 
   (d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water 
on a short-term or long-term basis. 
   (e) (1) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and 
current water use, over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a), and projected water use, identifying the uses among 
water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all of 
the following uses: 
   (A) Single-family residential. 
   (B) Multifamily. 
   (C) Commercial. 
   (D) Industrial. 
   (E) Institutional and governmental. 
   (F) Landscape. 
   (G) Sales to other agencies. 
   (H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or 
conjunctive use, or any combination thereof. 
   (I) Agricultural. 
   (2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year 
increments described in subdivision (a). 
   (f) Provide a description of the supplier's water demand 
management measures. This description shall include all of the 
following: 
   (1) A description of each water demand management measure that is 
currently being implemented, or scheduled for implementation, 
including the steps necessary to implement any proposed measures, 
including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
   (A) Water survey programs for single-family residential and 
multifamily residential customers. 
   (B) Residential plumbing retrofit. 
   (C) System water audits, leak detection, and repair. 
   (D) Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and 
retrofit of existing connections. 
   (E) Large landscape conservation programs and incentives. 
   (F) High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs. 
   (G) Public information programs. 
   (H) School education programs. 
   (I) Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional accounts. 
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   (J) Wholesale agency programs. 
   (K) Conservation pricing. 
   (L) Water conservation coordinator. 
   (M) Water waste prohibition. 
   (N) Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs. 
   (2) A schedule of implementation for all water demand management 
measures proposed or described in the plan. 
   (3) A description of the methods, if any, that the supplier will 
use to evaluate the effectiveness of water demand management measures 
implemented or described under the plan. 
   (4) An estimate, if available, of existing conservation savings on 
water use within the supplier's service area, and the effect of the 
savings on the supplier's ability to further reduce demand. 
   (g) An evaluation of each water demand management measure listed 
in paragraph (1) of subdivision (f) that is not currently being 
implemented or scheduled for implementation. In the course of the 
evaluation, first consideration shall be given to water demand 
management measures, or combination of measures, that offer lower 
incremental costs than expanded or additional water supplies. This 
evaluation shall do all of the following: 
   (1) Take into account economic and noneconomic factors, including 
environmental, social, health, customer impact, and technological 
factors. 
   (2) Include a cost-benefit analysis, identifying total benefits 
and total costs. 
   (3) Include a description of funding available to implement any 
planned water supply project that would provide water at a higher 
unit cost. 
   (4) Include a description of the water supplier's legal authority 
to implement the measure and efforts to work with other relevant 
agencies to ensure the implementation of the measure and to share the 
cost of implementation. 
   (h) Include a description of all water supply projects and water 
supply programs that may be undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
meet the total projected water use as established pursuant to 
subdivision (a) of Section 10635. The urban water supplier shall 
include a detailed description of expected future projects and 
programs, other than the demand management programs identified 
pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (f), that the urban water 
supplier may implement to increase the amount of the water supply 
available to the urban water supplier in average, single-dry, and 
multiple-dry water years. The description shall identify specific 
projects and include a description of the increase in water supply 
that is expected to be available from each project. The description 
shall include an estimate with regard to the implementation timeline 
for each project or program. 
   (i) Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated 
water, including, but not limited to, ocean water, brackish water, 
and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 
   (j) For purposes of this part, urban water suppliers that are 
members of the California Urban Water Conservation Council shall be 
deemed in compliance with the requirements of subdivisions (f) and 
(g) by complying with all the provisions of the "Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California," 
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dated December 10, 2008, as it may be amended, and by submitting the 
annual reports required by Section 6.2 of that memorandum. 
   (k) Urban water suppliers that rely upon a wholesale agency for a 
source of water shall provide the wholesale agency with water use 
projections from that agency for that source of water in five-year 
increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The wholesale 
agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for 
inclusion in the urban water supplier's plan that identifies and 
quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned 
sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the 
wholesale agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year 
increments, and during various water-year types in accordance with 
subdivision (c). An urban water supplier may rely upon water supply 
information provided by the wholesale agency in fulfilling the plan 
informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (c). 
 
10631.1.  (a) The water use projections required by Section 10631 
shall include projected water use for single-family and multifamily 
residential housing needed for lower income households, as defined in 
Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as identified in the 
housing element of any city, county, or city and county in the 
service area of the supplier. 
   (b) It is the intent of the Legislature that the identification of 
projected water use for single-family and multifamily residential 
housing for lower income households will assist a supplier in 
complying with the requirement under Section 65589.7 of the 
Government Code to grant a priority for the provision of service to 
housing units affordable to lower income households. 
 
10631.5.  (a) (1) Beginning January 1, 2009, the terms of, and 
eligibility for, a water management grant or loan made to an urban 
water supplier and awarded or administered by the department, state 
board, or California Bay-Delta Authority or its successor agency 
shall be conditioned on the implementation of the water demand 
management measures described in Section 10631, as determined by the 
department pursuant to subdivision (b). 
   (2) For the purposes of this section, water management grants and 
loans include funding for programs and projects for surface water or 
groundwater storage, recycling, desalination, water conservation, 
water supply reliability, and water supply augmentation. This section 
does not apply to water management projects funded by the federal 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Public Law 111-5). 
   (3) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall determine 
that an urban water supplier is eligible for a water management grant 
or loan even though the supplier is not implementing all of the 
water demand management measures described in Section 10631, if the 
urban water supplier has submitted to the department for approval a 
schedule, financing plan, and budget, to be included in the grant or 
loan agreement, for implementation of the water demand management 
measures. The supplier may request grant or loan funds to implement 
the water demand management measures to the extent the request is 
consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to the water 
management funds. 
   (4) (A) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall 
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determine that an urban water supplier is eligible for a water 
management grant or loan even though the supplier is not implementing 
all of the water demand management measures described in Section 
10631, if an urban water supplier submits to the department for 
approval documentation demonstrating that a water demand management 
measure is not locally cost effective. If the department determines 
that the documentation submitted by the urban water supplier fails to 
demonstrate that a water demand management measure is not locally 
cost effective, the department shall notify the urban water supplier 
and the agency administering the grant or loan program within 120 
days that the documentation does not satisfy the requirements for an 
exemption, and include in that notification a detailed statement to 
support the determination. 
   (B) For purposes of this paragraph, "not locally cost effective" 
means that the present value of the local benefits of implementing a 
water demand management measure is less than the present value of the 
local costs of implementing that measure. 
   (b) (1) The department, in consultation with the state board and 
the California Bay-Delta Authority or its successor agency, and after 
soliciting public comment regarding eligibility requirements, shall 
develop eligibility requirements to implement the requirement of 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (a). In establishing these eligibility 
requirements, the department shall do both of the following: 
   (A) Consider the conservation measures described in the Memorandum 
of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California, 
and alternative conservation approaches that provide equal or greater 
water savings. 
   (B) Recognize the different legal, technical, fiscal, and 
practical roles and responsibilities of wholesale water suppliers and 
retail water suppliers. 
   (2) (A) For the purposes of this section, the department shall 
determine whether an urban water supplier is implementing all of the 
water demand management measures described in Section 10631 based on 
either, or a combination, of the following: 
   (i) Compliance on an individual basis. 
   (ii) Compliance on a regional basis. Regional compliance shall 
require participation in a regional conservation program consisting 
of two or more urban water suppliers that achieves the level of 
conservation or water efficiency savings equivalent to the amount of 
conservation or savings achieved if each of the participating urban 
water suppliers implemented the water demand management measures. The 
urban water supplier administering the regional program shall 
provide participating urban water suppliers and the department with 
data to demonstrate that the regional program is consistent with this 
clause. The department shall review the data to determine whether 
the urban water suppliers in the regional program are meeting the 
eligibility requirements. 
   (B) The department may require additional information for any 
determination pursuant to this section. 
   (3) The department shall not deny eligibility to an urban water 
supplier in compliance with the requirements of this section that is 
participating in a multiagency water project, or an integrated 
regional water management plan, developed pursuant to Section 75026 
of the Public Resources Code, solely on the basis that one or more of 
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the agencies participating in the project or plan is not 
implementing all of the water demand management measures described in 
Section 10631. 
   (c) In establishing guidelines pursuant to the specific funding 
authorization for any water management grant or loan program subject 
to this section, the agency administering the grant or loan program 
shall include in the guidelines the eligibility requirements 
developed by the department pursuant to subdivision (b). 
   (d) Upon receipt of a water management grant or loan application 
by an agency administering a grant and loan program subject to this 
section, the agency shall request an eligibility determination from 
the department with respect to the requirements of this section. The 
department shall respond to the request within 60 days of the 
request. 
   (e) The urban water supplier may submit to the department copies 
of its annual reports and other relevant documents to assist the 
department in determining whether the urban water supplier is 
implementing or scheduling the implementation of water demand 
management activities. In addition, for urban water suppliers that 
are signatories to the Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban 
Water Conservation in California and submit biennial reports to the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council in accordance with the 
memorandum, the department may use these reports to assist in 
tracking the implementation of water demand management measures. 
   (f) This section shall remain in effect only until July 1, 2016, 
and as of that date is repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that 
is enacted before July 1, 2016, deletes or extends that date. 
 
10631.7.  The department, in consultation with the California Urban 
Water Conservation Council, shall convene an independent technical 
panel to provide information and recommendations to the department 
and the Legislature on new demand management measures, technologies, 
and approaches. The panel shall consist of no more than seven 
members, who shall be selected by the department to reflect a 
balanced representation of experts. The panel shall have at least 
one, but no more than two, representatives from each of the 
following: retail water suppliers, environmental organizations, the 
business community, wholesale water suppliers, and academia. The 
panel shall be convened by January 1, 2009, and shall report to the 
Legislature no later than January 1, 2010, and every five years 
thereafter. The department shall review the panel report and include 
in the final report to the Legislature the department's 
recommendations and comments regarding the panel process and the 
panel's recommendations. 
 
10632.  (a) The plan shall provide an urban water shortage 
contingency analysis that includes each of the following elements 
that are within the authority of the urban water supplier: 
   (1) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier 
in response to water supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent 
reduction in water supply, and an outline of specific water supply 
conditions that are applicable to each stage. 
   (2) An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each 
of the next three water years based on the driest three-year historic 
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sequence for the agency's water supply. 
   (3) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
prepare for, and implement during, a catastrophic interruption of 
water supplies including, but not limited to, a regional power 
outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 
   (4) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use 
practices during water shortages, including, but not limited to, 
prohibiting the use of potable water for street cleaning. 
   (5) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. 
Each urban water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction 
methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce 
water use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to 
achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent 
reduction in water supply. 
   (6) Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 
   (7) An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and 
conditions described in paragraphs (1) to (6), inclusive, on the 
revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed 
measures to overcome those impacts, such as the development of 
reserves and rate adjustments. 
   (8) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 
   (9) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use 
pursuant to the urban water shortage contingency analysis. 
   (b) Commencing with the urban water management plan update due 
December 31, 2015, for purposes of developing the water shortage 
contingency analysis pursuant to subdivision (a), the urban water 
supplier shall analyze and define water features that are 
artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, 
and fountains, separately from swimming pools and spas, as defined 
in subdivision (a) of Section 115921 of the Health and Safety Code. 
 
10633.  The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information 
on recycled water and its potential for use as a water source in the 
service area of the urban water supplier. The preparation of the 
plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service 
area, and shall include all of the following: 
   (a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment 
systems in the supplier's service area, including a quantification of 
the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the methods of 
wastewater disposal. 
   (b) A description of the quantity of treated wastewater that meets 
recycled water standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise 
available for use in a recycled water project. 
   (c) A description of the recycled water currently being used in 
the supplier's service area, including, but not limited to, the type, 
place, and quantity of use. 
   (d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of 
recycled water, including, but not limited to, agricultural 
irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, 
wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect potable 
reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to 
the technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 
   (e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's 



 
 
California Urban Water Management Planning Act                           Page 11  
2010 

service area at the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description 
of the actual use of recycled water in comparison to uses previously 
projected pursuant to this subdivision. 
   (f) A description of actions, including financial incentives, 
which may be taken to encourage the use of recycled water, and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled 
water used per year. 
   (g) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the 
supplier's service area, including actions to facilitate the 
installation of dual distribution systems, to promote recirculating 
uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater that 
meets recycled water standards, and to overcome any obstacles to 
achieving that increased use. 
 
10634.  The plan shall include information, to the extent 
practicable, relating to the quality of existing sources of water 
available to the supplier over the same five-year increments as 
described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631, and the manner in 
which water quality affects water management strategies and supply 
reliability. 

WATER CODE  
SECTION 10635  
 
10635.  (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its 
urban water management plan, an assessment of the reliability of its 
water service to its customers during normal, dry, and multiple dry 
water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall compare 
the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with 
the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year 
increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and 
multiple dry water years. The water service reliability assessment 
shall be based upon the information compiled pursuant to Section 
10631, including available data from state, regional, or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water 
supplier. 
   (b) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its 
urban water management plan prepared pursuant to this article to any 
city or county within which it provides water supplies no later than 
60 days after the submission of its urban water management plan. 
   (c) Nothing in this article is intended to create a right or 
entitlement to water service or any specific level of water service. 
   (d) Nothing in this article is intended to change existing law 
concerning an urban water supplier's obligation to provide water 
service to its existing customers or to any potential future 
customers. 
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WATER CODE  
SECTION 10640-10645  
 
10640.  Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan 
pursuant to this part shall prepare its plan pursuant to Article 2 
(commencing with Section 10630). 
   The supplier shall likewise periodically review the plan as 
required by Section 10621, and any amendments or changes required as 
a result of that review shall be adopted pursuant to this article. 
 
10641.  An urban water supplier required to prepare a plan may 
consult with, and obtain comments from, any public agency or state 
agency or any person who has special expertise with respect to water 
demand management methods and techniques. 
 
10642.  Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the 
population within the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan. Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water 
supplier shall make the plan available for public inspection and 
shall hold a public hearing thereon. Prior to the hearing, notice of 
the time and place of hearing shall be published within the 
jurisdiction of the publicly owned water supplier pursuant to Section 
6066 of the Government Code. The urban water supplier shall provide 
notice of the time and place of hearing to any city or county within 
which the supplier provides water supplies. A privately owned water 
supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its service area. 
After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as 
modified after the hearing. 
 
10643.  An urban water supplier shall implement its plan adopted 
pursuant to this chapter in accordance with the schedule set forth in 
its plan. 
 
10644.  (a) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, 
the California State Library, and any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 
days after adoption. Copies of amendments or changes to the plans 
shall be submitted to the department, the California State Library, 
and any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
supplies within 30 days after adoption. 
   (b) The department shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on 
or before December 31, in the years ending in six and one, a report 
summarizing the status of the plans adopted pursuant to this part. 
The report prepared by the department shall identify the exemplary 
elements of the individual plans. The department shall provide a copy 
of the report to each urban water supplier that has submitted its 
plan to the department. The department shall also prepare reports and 
provide data for any legislative hearings designed to consider the 
effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant to this part. 
   (c) (1) For the purpose of identifying the exemplary elements of 
the individual plans, the department shall identify in the report 
those water demand management measures adopted and implemented by 
specific urban water suppliers, and identified pursuant to Section 
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10631, that achieve water savings significantly above the levels 
established by the department to meet the requirements of Section 
10631.5. 
   (2) The department shall distribute to the panel convened pursuant 
to Section 10631.7 the results achieved by the implementation of 
those water demand management measures described in paragraph (1). 
   (3) The department shall make available to the public the standard 
the department will use to identify exemplary water demand 
management measures. 
 
10645.  Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with 
the department, the urban water supplier and the department shall 
make the plan available for public review during normal business 
hours. 
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WATER CODE  
SECTION 10650-10656  
 
10650.  Any actions or proceedings to attack, review, set aside, 
void, or annul the acts or decisions of an urban water supplier on 
the grounds of noncompliance with this part shall be commenced as 
follows: 
   (a) An action or proceeding alleging failure to adopt a plan shall 
be commenced within 18 months after that adoption is required by 
this part. 
   (b) Any action or proceeding alleging that a plan, or action taken 
pursuant to the plan, does not comply with this part shall be 
commenced within 90 days after filing of the plan or amendment 
thereto pursuant to Section 10644 or the taking of that action. 
 
10651.  In any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, 
void, or annul a plan, or an action taken pursuant to the plan by an 
urban water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part, 
the inquiry shall extend only to whether there was a prejudicial 
abuse of discretion. Abuse of discretion is established if the 
supplier has not proceeded in a manner required by law or if the 
action by the water supplier is not supported by substantial 
evidence. 
 
10652.  The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 
(commencing with Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code) does 
not apply to the preparation and adoption of plans pursuant to this 
part or to the implementation of actions taken pursuant to Section 
10632. Nothing in this part shall be interpreted as exempting from 
the California Environmental Quality Act any project that would 
significantly affect water supplies for fish and wildlife, or any 
project for implementation of the plan, other than projects 
implementing Section 10632, or any project for expanded or additional 
water supplies. 
 
10653.  The adoption of a plan shall satisfy any requirements of 
state law, regulation, or order, including those of the State Water 
Resources Control Board and the Public Utilities Commission, for the 
preparation of water management plans or conservation plans; 
provided, that if the State Water Resources Control Board or the 
Public Utilities Commission requires additional information 
concerning water conservation to implement its existing authority, 
nothing in this part shall be deemed to limit the board or the 
commission in obtaining that information. The requirements of this 
part shall be satisfied by any urban water demand management plan 
prepared to meet federal laws or regulations after the effective date 
of this part, and which substantially meets the requirements of this 
part, or by any existing urban water management plan which includes 
the contents of a plan required under this part. 
 
10654.  An urban water supplier may recover in its rates the costs 
incurred in preparing its plan and implementing the reasonable water 
conservation measures included in the plan. Any best water management 
practice that is included in the plan that is identified in the 
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"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in 
California" is deemed to be reasonable for the purposes of this 
section. 
 
10655.  If any provision of this part or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances is held invalid, that invalidity shall 
not affect other provisions or applications of this part which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application thereof, 
and to this end the provisions of this part are severable. 
 
10656.  An urban water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and 
submit its urban water management plan to the department in 
accordance with this part, is ineligible to receive funding pursuant 
to Division 24 (commencing with Section 78500) or Division 26 
(commencing with Section 79000), or receive drought assistance from 
the state until the urban water management plan is submitted pursuant 
to this article. 
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Appendix D 

San Bernardino County Ordinance No. SD 90-11 
Establishing Water Conservation Measures 



ORDINANCE NO. SD 90-11 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ACTING IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF NAMED COUNTY SERVICE AREAS AND IMPROVEMENT 
ZONES THEREOF, ESTABLISHING WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES 
 
 The Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino, State of California, acting in its capacity as the governing body of the 
county service areas and improvement zones named in Section 1 (a) of this ordinance, ordains as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino hereby finds and determines: 
 
 (a)  That from and after the effective date of this ordinance, it shall be in full force and effect within the following county service 
areas and improvement zones: 
 
   County Service Area 42 
   County Service Area 64 
   County Service Area 70 
    Improvement Zone C 
    Improvement Zone F 
    Improvement Zone G 
    Improvement Zone J 
    Improvement Zone L 
    Improvement Zone W-1 
    Improvement Zone W-3 
    Improvement Zone W-4 
 
 (b)  That a drought condition has existed within the above-named county service areas and improvement zones ("Districts", or 
individually, the "District") during the past four years and such condition poses a substantial, current threat to the water supply within these 
areas; 
 
 (c)  That it is necessary to preserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit within these Districts; 
 
 (d)  That in order to preserve the health and safety of the people within these Districts, water conservation measures are necessary; 
 
 (e)  That all water users in these Districts shall be subject to the water conservation measures and related provisions established 
herein; 
 
 (f)  That in order to conserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit, with particular regard to domestic use, sanitation and fire 
protection of  consumers, it is necessary to restrict the use of water within each District's service area. 
 
 SECTION 2.  In order to conserve the water supply within these Districts and pursuant to Water Code Sections 375-377, the 
following water conservation measures are hereby established: 
 
 (a)  Lawns, trees, shrubs, and other landscaping shall not be excessively watered at any time, and water shall not be permitted to run 
off private property onto streets or adjacent lands. 
 
 (b)  Sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas, patios, porches or verandas shall not be washed off with hoses.  The exception to 
this shall be flammable or other similar dangerous substances that require direct hose flushing. 
 
 (c)  Watering, sprinkling, aerial watering or irrigating of any landscaped or vegetated areas, including lawns, trees, shrubs, grass, 
ground cover, plants, vine gardens, vegetables, flowers, or other landscaping shall not occur between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 
during the high use season (April 1 through October 31 of each year).  In the low use season (November 1 through March 31), such watering 
shall not occur between the hours of 1:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.  These restrictions shall not apply to hand-held hose or drip irrigation systems. 
 
 (d)  Noncommercial washing of privately owned vehicles, trailers, motor homes, buses, boats and mobile homes is prohibited except 
from bucket and except that a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle may be used for a quick rinse. 
 
 (e)  Water shall not be used to clean, fill, operate or maintain levels in decorative fountains, unless such water is part of a recycling 
system. 
 



 (f)  Water shall not be permitted to leak from any water line, faucet or other facility on any premises.  Any leak shall be repaired in a 
timely manner. 
 
 (g)  Restaurants or other public places where food is served shall not routinely provide glasses of drinking water to customers unless 
specifically requested. 
 
 (h)  Water for construction purposes, including but not limited to debrushing of vacant land, compaction of fills and pads, trench 
backfill and other construction uses, shall be used in an efficient manner.  The use of "rainbird" type sprinklers is not recommended between 
the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 
 
 (i)  The use of water for any purpose shall not result in flooding or runoff onto gutters, driveways, streets or adjacent lands. 
 
 (j)  All new construction, including residential, commercial and industrial, shall be equipped with low flow toilets with a maximum 
tank size or flush capacity of 3 gallons, and showerheads with a maximum flow capacity of 2 gallons per minute. 
 
 (k)  All new model homes and commercial and industrial development, when landscaped, shall include low water use, drought-
tolerant or native plant material, and matched precipitation rate, low-gallonage sprinkler heads, bubblers, drip irrigation and timing devices.  
Timing devices should include soil moisture sensors.  Before any permit may be issued for new construction, the applicant shall submit a 
landscape plan for review and approval by the Director of San Bernardino County's Department of Land Management. 
 
 (l)  Water used for cooling systems must be recycled to the extent possible. 
 
 (m)  Evaporation resistant covers are required for all new swimming pools and hot tubs and are encouraged for existing pools.  Safety 
covers required by this ordinance shall, at the time of purchase, installation and all subsequent maintenance, meet or exceed current standards 
and specifications for swimming pool, spa and hot tub covers adopted by the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM). 
 
 (n)  Hotels/motels are required to post notices urging guests to conserve water. 
 
 (o)  All current water customers are encouraged to install flow reducers and faucet aerators. 
 
 (p)  Parks, golf courses, cemeteries, and school grounds which use water provided by the Districts, shall irrigate between the hours of 
9:00 p.m. and 3:00 a.m. 
 
 SECTION 3.  The following provisions shall pertain to the enforcement of this ordinance,violations of the measures established 
herein and the penalties for such violations: 
 
 (a)  Violations unlawful.  It is unlawful for any person within the District to violate the water conservation measures and provisions 
established in this ordinance and such violation shall be subject to the penalties hereinafter set forth and as may be otherwise provided by law. 
 
 (b)  Violations.  Any person found to be violating any provision of this ordinance or any rule or regulation of the District shall be 
served by the District with written notice stating the nature of the violation and providing a reasonable time limit for the correction thereof.  
Such notice may be personally served or may be given by certified mail.  The person shall, within the time limit stated in the notice, cease all 
violations. 
 
 (c)  Civil Enforcement.  For second violations or continuing violations, as additional methods of civil enforcement of this ordinance, 
the District may install a flow restrictor device at the user's water meter or may disconnect the user from the District's water system,  following 
notice of intent to disconnect.   All costs of installing/removing the flow restrictor or of disconnection/reconnection shall be paid by the owner 
of the property. 
 
 (d)  Suspension or Modification.  When any person, by reason of special circumstances, believes that a suspension or modification of 
a provision of this ordinance is necessary to avoid substantial detriment to the person's property or facilities, that person may file a written 
application with the District Manager and with the Special Districts Department, stating the special circumstances, citing the provision 
involved and requesting suspension or modification of that provision.  The Director of the Special Districts Department may suspend or 
modify the provision for a specified period of time or during the period of the special circumstances upon finding that the enforcement of the 
provision will cause substantial detriment to the person and that the suspension or modification of the provision will not unreasonably 
jeopardize the District's water supply. 
 
 (e)  General Penalty.  Pursuant to Water Code Section 377, any person violating any of the provisions of this ordinance and failing to 
correct such violation within the time provided shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  Such misdemeanor shall be punishable in accordance with 
the provisions of State law. 
 



 SECTION 4.  This ordinance and the various parts, sentences, paragraphs, sections and clauses are hereby declared to be severable.  If 
any such part, sentence, paragraph, section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be 
affected.  The Board hereby declares that it would have passed the ordinance and each part thereof regardless of the fact that one or more parts 
might be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 SECTION 5.  Ordinance No.  90-7 is hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Pursuant to Water Code Section 376, this ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
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TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

 

To: George Cardenas 
 
From: Mike Swan 
 
Date: April 15, 2011 
 
Subject: 20x2020 Baseline Calculation & Water Use Target Method Selection 
 
 
According to the Department of Water Resources (DWR), a water supplier must define a 
continuous 10 or 15 year base period (baseline) for water use ending no earlier than December 
31, 2004 and no later than December 21, 2010 that will be used to develop their per capita water 
use target for the year 2020 and an interim target for 2015. A water supplier who met at least 10 
percent of its 2008 measured retail water demand through recycled water may use a 15-year 
baseline period; otherwise a supplier must use a 10-year baseline. Phelan Piñon Hills 
Community Services District (District) does not supply recycled water and as a result must use a 
10-year baseline. 
 
Table 1 shows the gross water use, the population, and the per capita water use of the District’s 
water service area from water years (WY) 1996 through WY 2010. The District does not have 
any recycled or agricultural water use, thus the gross water use is equal to the supply produced 
from the District’s groundwater wells. The historical data for the groundwater production comes 
from the Mojave Water Agency (MWA) Watermaster reports plus District-supplied pumping 
reports for Well 14, which is in Los Angeles County and not a part of the MWA adjudication 
therefore not reported to MWA or included in the Watermaster reports. Population data used 
herein from 2000 to 2009 is from the data prepared by MWA based on service connections and 
population figures from Census and Department of Finance (DOF). Population estimates prior to 
2000 were not available and were estimated assuming a growth rate of 4.11 percent from 1996 to 
2000, which is equal to the population growth rate from 2000 to 2008. The population in 2010 
was estimated based on the 2009 population from the MWA, the number of residential service 
connections added in the District’s water service area in 2010, and the average persons per 
service connection determined from MWA population and service connection data. Since water 
use has been trending downward recently even with increasing population, per capita use has 
been dropping. The most advantageous period for the District to use is the one generating the 
highest per capita use, making subsequent conservation easier to achieve. Therefore, the 10-year 
period from WY 1996 thru WY 2005 was determined to be the most advantageous and was used 
to calculate a baseline per capita water use average of 184.7 GPCD as shown in Table 1. 
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Table 1 
Phelan Piñon Community Services District Base Daily Per Capita Use 

Water 
Year 

Gross Water 
Use [1]  
(AFY) 

Gross Water 
Use 

(gal/day) 

Water Service 
Area 

Population [2] 

Annual 
/Capita Use 

(GPCD) 

1996 2,832 2,528,074 12,866 196.5 
1997 2,741 2,446,840 13,396 182.7 
1998 2,464 2,199,568 13,947 157.7 
1999 3,044 2,717,323 14,521 187.1 
2000 3,292 2,938,708 15,118 194.4 
2001 3,024 2,699,469 13,895 194.3 
2002 3,306 2,951,206 16,202 182.2 
2003 3,271 2,919,962 15,474 188.7 
2004 3,649 3,257,395 16,692 195.1 
2005 3,355 2,994,947 17,832 168.0 
2006 3,515 3,137,776 19,263 162.9 
2007 4,072 3,635,000 19,403 187.3 
2008 3,308 2,952,991 20,873 141.5 
2009 3,250 2,901,215 20,901 138.8 
2010 3,059 2,730,713 20,913 130.6 

10 Year Baseline (Average WY 1996-2005) 184.7 
5 Year Baseline (Average WY 2004-2008) 171.0 

[1] Usage determined from Mojave Water Agency (MWA) historical production data and LA County Well 
14 production data. LA County Well 14 provides water within the Phelan Piñon water service area outside 
of MWA adjudication.  

[2] Population estimates for years 2000 to 2009 from MWA. Population estimates for years 1996 to 1999 
assume constant growth rate of 4.1145% (growth rate equal to population growth rate from 2000 to 2008). 
2010 population estimate determined from 2009 population estimate and residential service connections 
added in 2010 (3 persons per added residential service connection was assumed, based on MWA 
population and service connection data).  

 
A water supplier must set a 2020 water use target and a 2015 interim target using one of the 
following four methods as defined further in Section 10608.20 of Senate Bill No. 7 (SB7x7): 

• Method 1: Eighty percent of the water supplier’s baseline per capita water use 

• Method 2: Per capita daily water use estimated using the sum of performance standards 
applied to indoor residential use; landscape area water use; and commercial, industrial, 
and institutional uses 

• Method 3: Ninety-five percent of the applicable state hydrologic region target as stated in 
the State’s April 30, 2009, draft 20x2020 Water Conservations Plan 

• Method 4: A BMP Option based on standards that are consistent with the California 
Urban Water Conservation Council’s (CUWCC) best management practices (BMPs). 

 
 

2 
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Calculation of Minimum Targets 

If the average base daily per capita water use is greater than 100 GPCD for a defined 5-year 
baseline period, the legislation’s minimum water use reduction requirement must also be met as 
set in Section 10608.22 of Senate Bill No. 7 SB7x7. 

Per SB7x7, the minimum water use reduction baseline period must end no earlier than December 
31, 2007 and no later than December 31, 2010 and the minimum reduction shall be no less than 5 
percent of this 5-year base daily per capita water use. A minimum water use reduction baseline 
period between WY 2004 through 2008 was selected to calculate the most advantageous 5-year 
minimum water use reduction target. As shown in Table 1, the minimum baseline water use 
averages 171.0 GPCD. The minimum per capita water use target for 2020 must therefore be 
162.5 GPCD (95% of 171.0). 
 
Calculation of Targets Using Methods 1 – 4 

Method 1: Using a baseline per capita average of 184.7 GPCD (shown in Table 1) the Phelan 
Piñon Hills Community Services District 2020 target would be 147.8 GPCD (80% of 184.7). 
Since the target water use for Method 1 is less than the one found using the legislation’s 
minimum requirement criteria (162.5), no further adjustments to this water use target would be 
required, if this method is selected.  

Method 2: The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District does not currently maintain 
records of lot size, irrigated landscaped area for each parcel, reference evapotranspiration for 
each parcel, etc. to split its residential, commercial, industrial, or institutional uses into inside 
and outside (landscape irrigation) uses. The use of Method 2 to calculate conservation targets is 
therefore not feasible. 

Method 3: The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District falls within the South Lahontan 
Hydrologic Region (Hydrologic Region 9). According to the State’s April 30, 2009 draft 
20x2020 Water Conservation Plan, the 2020 Target for Hydrologic Region 9 is 170 GPCD. 
Using Method 3, the Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District’s 2020 water use target 
would be 161.5 GPCD (95% of 170). Since the target water use for Method 3 is less than the one 
found using the legislation’s minimum requirement criteria (162.5), no further adjustments to 
this water use target would be required, if this method is selected. 

Method 4: DWR recently released this method and a calculator for agencies wishing to use this 
BMP-based method. A default indoor residential water savings of 15 GPCD was assumed and 
the San Bernardino County Service Area 70L (Phelan Pinion Hills Community Services 
District’s predecessor) 2005 Urban Water Management Plan was referenced to obtain the 
Commercial, Industrial and Institutional (CII) water use consumption (94 AF). Using the 
midpoint of the baseline period (year 2000) and DWR’s “SB7x7 Provisional Method 4 Target 
Calculator” resulted in a 2020 water use target of 145.6 GPCD. 

3 
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Conclusion 

The discussion and calculations above are summarized in Table 2. 
 

Table 2 
Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 

Water Use Target Summary (GPCD) 

Method 2020 

1 147.8 

2 Not Applicable 

3 161.5 

4 145.6 

 
As shown in Table 2, Method 3 results in the most favorable water use target level for the Phelan 
Piñon Hills Community Services District. The 2015 interim target would then be 173.1 GPCD 
(mid-point between 184.7 GPCD baseline and 161.5 GPCD 2020 target). It should be noted that 
the District has met this 2020 target the past three years. However, WY 2009 and 2010 were well 
publicized to water customers in Southern California as a drought condition. Therefore, demands 
for these years should not be considered normal. If per capita use returns to the average of the 
three years prior to 2008 (WY 2005-2007) of 172.7 gallons, then the District would be just 
below the 2015 interim target and there would still be some additional conservation needed to 
reach the 2020 target.   
 
 

4 
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Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
Current and Planned Projects 
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Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 
2009 Consumer Confidence Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ANNUAL CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT 
 

 

The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District proudly presents our 
annual Consumer Confidence Report. This report contains water quality 
information, as required by the California Department of Health (CDPH).  
 
The District’s water supply is over 2,000 years old according to a report 
from United States Geological Survey (USGS). Our water supply is 
primarily from the Oeste aquifer, and partially from the Alto aquifer.  The 
water is supplied to the District’s distribution system through eleven 
groundwater wells which have an average depth of approximately 1,000 
feet.  The District’s water system also consists of 34 reservoirs with a 
combined capacity of approximately 12,000,000 gallons, 35 pressure 
reducing stations in 15 pressure zones, 63 booster pumps, and 
approximately 285 miles of water line.  We currently serve approximately 
6,750 metered accounts. 
 
The District’s goal is to provide safe, good tasting drinking water to our 
customers. We are currently at the forefront of new technologies to meet 
higher health standards and the demands of a growing area.  With 
ongoing testing and the installation of the new state of the art chlorination 
tab equipment, the District plans to meet the toughest drinking water 
standards. 

Phelan Piñon Hills  

Community Services District 

Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Charlie Johnson, President 

Joe Fahrlender, Vice President 

Ken Anderson, Director 

Al Morrissette, Director 

Mark Roberts, Director 

Don Bartz, General Manager 
 

The Board of Directors hold public 

meetings on the 1st and 3rd Wednesdays 

of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the Phelan 

Community Center: 4128 Warbler Road, 

Phelan, CA 92371. 
 

Visit us online at www.pphcsd.org 

Special information available 
 

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in 
drinking water than the general population.  Immune-

compromised persons – such as persons with cancer who are 
undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ 

transplants, people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system 
disorders, some elderly persons and infants – can be particularly 
at risk from infections.  These people should seek advice about 
drinking water from their healthcare providers.  Environmental 

Protection Agency and Centers for Disease Control guidelines on 
appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by 

Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available 
from the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s 

(USEPA) Safe Drinking Water  Hotline:  800-426-4791. 

If you have any questions about this report please contact:  Chris Bishop, Operations Manager, (760) 868-1212. 

PUBLISHED JUNE 2010 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

The Mission of the Phelan 

Piñon Hills Community 

Services District is to provide 

all authorized services reliably 

and economically for the 

promotion of community 

development and to utilize all 

available resources for the 

maximum beneficial use. 

 

VISION STATEMENT 
 

To develop a Community 

Services District that enhances 

the living experience for all 

people within the District. 
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POSSIBLE CONTAMINANTS 
 

The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include rivers, lakes, 

streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs, and wells.  As water travels over the surface of the 

land or through the ground, it dissolves naturally-occurring minerals and, in some 

cases, radioactive material, and can pick up substances resulting from the presence of 

animals or from human activity. 
 

Contaminants that may be present in source water include: 
 

Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, that may come from 

sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural livestock operations, and 

wildlife. 

Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, that can be naturally-occurring 

or result from urban storm water runoff, industrial or domestic wastewater 

discharges, oil and gas production, mining, or farming. 

Pesticides and herbicides, which may come from a variety of sources such as 

agriculture, urban storm water runoff, and residential uses. 

Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic 

chemicals, that are by-products of industrial processes and petroleum production, 

and can also come from gas stations, urban storm water runoff, and septic 

systems. 

Radioactive contaminants, which can be naturally-occurring or the result of oil 

and gas production and mining activities. 
 

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, USEPA and the California DHS 

prescribe regulations that limit the amount of certain contaminants in the water 

provided by public water systems.  Department regulations also establish limits for 

contaminants in bottled water that must provide the same protection for public health. 

DEFINITIONS  
 

Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL): The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in drinking water.  Primary MCLs are set as close to PHGs (or 
MCLGs) as is economically and technologically feasible.  Secondary MCLs are set to protect the odor, taste, and appearance of drinking water.  
 

Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG): The level of a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  MCLGs 
are set by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency. 
 

Public Health Goal (PHG): The level of a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  PHGs are set by the 
California Environmental Protection Agency.   
 

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL):  The highest level of a disinfectant allowed in drinking water.  There is convincing evidence that addition of a 
disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial contaminants.  
 

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG):  The level of a drinking water disinfectant below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  
MFRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.  
 

Primary Drinking Water Standard (PDWS): MCLs for contaminants that affect health along with their monitoring and reporting requirements, and water 
treatment requirements.   
 

Secondary Drinking Water Standard (SDWS): MCLs for contaminants that affect taste, odor, or appearance of the drinking water.  Contaminants with 
SDWSs do not affect the health at the MCL levels.   
 

Treatment Technique (TT):  A required process intended to reduce the level of a contaminant in drinking water.  
 

Regulatory Action Level (AL):  The concentration of a contaminant which, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements which a water system must 
follow.  
 

Variances and Exemptions:  The department permission to exceed an MCL or not comply with a treatment technique under certain conditions.  

How Pure should our 

water be? 
 

Drinking water, including bottled 

water, may reasonably be 

expected to contain at least small 

amounts of some contaminants.  

The presence of contaminants 

does not necessarily indicate that 

the water poses a 

health risk.   

 

More information 

about contaminants 

and potential health 

effects can be obtained by calling 

the EPA’s Safe Drinking Water 

Hotline: 800-426-4791 

 

¿No habla inglés? 

Este informe contiene 

información muy 

importante sobre su agua 

potable.  Tradúscalo ó 

hable con alguien que lo 

entienda bien.  Llame 

760.868.1212 

   An explanation of units of measure used in this report:  
 

   ND = Non Detectable 
   ppm = parts per million or milligrams per liter (mg/L) 
   ppb = parts per billion or micrograms per liter (ug/L) 
   ppt  = parts per trillion or nanograms per liter (ng/L) 
   ppq = parts per quadrillion, or pictogram per liter (pg/L) 
   pCi/L = Picocuries per liter (a measure of radioactivity)  
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CONTAMINANT  
No. of 

Samples 
Collected 

90th 
Percentile 

No. sites 
exceeding 

AL 

Action Level 
(AL) 

PHG     Typical Source of Contaminant 

Tap Monitoring Lead & Cooper  

Lead  
33 

(2009) 
ND 

No sites 
exceed AL 

15 ug/L 2 Corrosion of household plumbing, erosion of natural deposits. 

Cooper  
33 

(2009) 
.22 

No sites 
exceed AL 

1.3 ug/L .17 Corrosion of household plumbing, erosion of natural deposits. 

CONTAMINANT 
Sample 

Date 
Level 

Detected 
Range of 

Detections 
MCL 

PHG 
(MCLG) 

Typical Source of Contaminant 

Additional Parameters: Sodium and Hardness 

Sodium (ppm) 2008 45 ppm 18-72 None None Generally found in ground & surface water. 

Hardness (ppm) 2008 288 ppm 66-510 None None Generally found in ground & surface water. 

CONTAMINANT 
Sample 

Date 
Level 

Detected 
Range of 

Detections 
MCL (MRDL) 

PHG 
(MCLG) 

(MRDLG) 
Typical Source of Contaminant 

Inorganic Chemicals—Required every 3 years:  PRIMARY Drinking Water Standards 

Fluoride 2009 250 240-260 2000 ppb 1000 ppb 
Erosion of natural deposits, water additive which promotes 
strong teeth: discharge from fertilizer and aluminum factories. 

Chromium 2009 13 13 50 ppb 100 ppb 
Discharge from steel and pulp mills and chrome plating; erosion 
of natural deposits. 

Nitrate +  
Nitrite as Nitrogen (N) 

2009 505 450-560 10000 ppb N/A N/A 

Nitrate (as NO3) 2009 5.63 2.2-19 45 ppm 45 ppm 
Runoff and leaching from fertilizer use; leaching from septic 
tanks and sewage; erosion of natural deposits. 

TTHMs (Total 
Trihalometanes) 

2009 1.26 0-3.8 80 ppb N/A By-product of drinking water chlorination. 

CONTAMINANT 
Sample 

Date 
Level 

Detected 
Range of 

Detections 
MCL 

PHG or 
(MCLG) 

    Typical Source of Contaminant 

Regulated Contaminants:  SECONDARY Drinking Water Standards - No Health Effects   

Turbidity 2009 .3 .1-2.5 5 units .1 units Soil runoff. 

Color 2009 3.85 3-12.5 15 units 3.0 units Natural-occurring organic materials. 

Odor  2009 1 0-1 3.0 units N/A Naturally-occurring organic materials. 

Sulfate 2008 185 170-200 500 ppm N/A Runoff/leaching from natural deposits; industrial wastes. 

Total Dissolved Solids  2008 495 340-650 1,000 ppm N/A Runoff/leaching from natural deposits. 

Specific Conductance 2008 720 490-950 1,600 uS/cm N/A Substances that form ions when in water; seawater influence. 

Chloride  2008 12 3-21 500 ppm N/A Substances that form ions when in water; seawater influence. 

Copper 2009 58.4 0-360 1000 ppb N/A 
Internal corrosion of household plumbing systems; erosion of 
natural deposits; leaching from wood preservatives. 

*Any violation of an MCL, MRDL, or TT is asterisked.  Additional information regarding the violation is provided later in this report. 

CONTAMINANT 
Sample 

Date 
Level 

Detected 
Range of 

Detections 
Notification Level     Health Effects Language 

Unregulated Contaminants 

Vanadium 2009 11 ppb 6-18 ppb 

The babies of some pregnant women who drink water containing 
vanadium in excess of the notification level may have an 
increased risk of developmental effects, based on studies in 
laboratory animals. 

50 ppb  

2009 Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report 
 

THE PHELAN PIÑON HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 

HEALTH TITLE 22, SECTION 64480, HAS COMPLETED THE REQUIREMENTS TO ISSUE A CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT TO 
ALL RESIDENTS AND PERSONS OWNING PROPERTY WITHIN ITS SERVICE AREA. 
 

The District tests for hundreds of substances, however, only the substances that were detected in our water as of 2009 are shown in the table 
below.  The District is not required to sample all contaminants annually, therefore the following results reflect some analysis prior to 2009. 

We test the drinking water quality for many constituents as required by state and federal regulations.  This report shows the results of our 
monitoring for the period of January 1  -  December 31, 2009. 
 

A source water assessment was performed for each of the District’s wells. The assessment was completed on December 16, 2002.  Vulnerability included the 
possibility of Nitrates associated with Septic Systems and Low Density at Wells 2, 3, 4, 5, 9A, 9B, 11 and 12.  A copy of the complete assessment may be 
viewed at the Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District Office or at the CDPH San Bernardino District Office, 464 West 4th Street, Suite 437, San 
Bernardino, CA  92401. You may request a summary of the assessment be sent to you by contacting CDPH District Engineering at (909) 383-4328. 
 

The District obtained water from:  The City of Victorville, during the months of April through August 2009.  The City’s CCR can be found on line at 
www.ci.victorville.ca.us;  County of San Bernardino during August 2009, www.SpecialDistricts.org;  And Sheepcreek in August 2009, 760-868-3755. 



Update… 
 

The District continues to be faced with many challenges including creation and implementation of policies and procedures, 
infrastructure upgrades, and maintenance.  The improvements that have been completed are resulting in a significant savings 
to the operations budget, and enabling the District to continue holding the line for expenses.     
 
Some of the most significant improvements have been: 

Upgrade of three wells to improve efficiencies, enabling us to keep expenses down. 
Implement development of the Master plan, which will provide a realistic picture of the District, enabling us to plan for 
future development while identifying and maintaining efficiencies throughout the District. 
Installation of new meters throughout the District, enabling us to provide accurate reads and more clearly identify water 
demands, trends, and conservation opportunities. 
Improved technology by upgrading the SCADA system. 
Upgraded several Booster Pumps improving efficiencies. 
Tank inspections and evaluation. 
Purchase of 135 acres of land for future parks. 
Purchase of land for future administration building and recreation facility. 

PRESORT STD 

AUTO 
U.S. POSTAGE PAID 

VICTORVILLE, CA 

PERMIT #299 

PHELAN PIÑON HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

4037 Phelan Road, Ste. C-1 
Phelan, CA  92371 

Summer Movie Night 2010 
 

The District has partnered with the Tri-Community Kiwanis to bring you Friday Night Movies 

at the Phelan Community Center:  4128 Warbler Road, Phelan, CA  92371   

FREE MOVIE   -   FREE REFRESHMENTS!! 
 

Every Friday from June 4 thru August 6, 2010 

Kids Movie 5:30pm       Teen Movie 7:30pm 
 

For more information please visit:  www.pphcsd.org or www.TCKiwanis.com/movies 
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Table I-2 Urban Water Management Plan checklist, organized by subject 

No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

PLAN PREPARATION 

4 Coordinate the preparation of its plan with other appropriate agencies in 
the area, including other water suppliers that share a common source, 
water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent 
practicable. 

10620(d)(2)  Section 1.2 
 

6 Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing on the plan required by 
Section 10642, any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering 
amendments or changes to the plan. Any city or county receiving the 
notice may be consulted and provide comments. 

10621(b)  Section 1.2 
 

7 Provide supporting documentation that the UWMP or any amendments to, 
or changes in, have been adopted as described in Section 10640 et seq. 

10621(c)  Section 1.2 
 

54 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water management plan 
has been or will be provided to any city or county within which it provides 
water, no later than 60 days after the submission of this urban water 
management plan. 

10635(b)   Section 1.2 
 

55 Provide supporting documentation that the water supplier has encouraged 
active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of 
the population within the service area prior to and during the preparation 
of the plan. 

10642  Appendix B 

56 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier made the 
plan available for public inspection and held a public hearing about the 
plan. For public agencies, the hearing notice is to be provided pursuant to 
Section 6066 of the Government Code. The water supplier is to provide 
the time and place of the hearing to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water. Privately-owned water suppliers shall provide an 
equivalent notice within its service area. 

10642  Appendix B 

57 Provide supporting documentation that the plan has been adopted as 
prepared or modified. 

10642  Appendix B 

58 Provide supporting documentation as to how the water supplier plans to 
implement its plan. 

10643  Section 1 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

59 Provide supporting documentation that, in addition to submittal to DWR, 
the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to the California State 
Library and any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. This also 
includes amendments or changes. 

10644(a)  Section 1.2 

60 Provide supporting documentation that, not later than 30 days after filing a 
copy of its plan with the department, the urban water supplier has or will 
make the plan available for public review during normal business hours 

10645  Section 1.2 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

8 Describe the water supplier service area.  10631(a)  Section 1.3 

9 Describe the climate and other demographic factors of the service area of 
the supplier 

10631(a)  Section 1.3 

10 Indicate the current population of the service area  10631(a) Provide the most recent 
population data possible. Use 
the method described in 
“Baseline Daily Per Capita 
Water Use.” See Section M. 

Section 1.3 

11 Provide population projections for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030, based on 
data from State, regional, or local service area population projections.  

10631(a) 2035 and 2040 can also be 
provided to support consistency 
with Water Supply Assessments 
and Written Verification of 
Water Supply documents. 

Table 1.3-3 

12 Describe other demographic factors affecting the supplier’s water 
management planning. 

10631(a)  Section 1.3 

SYSTEM DEMANDS 

1 Provide baseline daily per capita water use, urban water use target, 
interim urban water use target, and compliance daily per capita water use, 
along with the bases for determining those estimates, including 
references to supporting data.  

10608.20(e)  Section 5.1 and 
Appendix E 

2 Wholesalers: Include an assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help achieve the water use 
reductions.  Retailers: Conduct at least one public hearing that includes 
general discussion of the urban retail water supplier’s implementation plan 
for complying with the Water Conservation Bill of 2009.  

10608.36 
10608.26(a) 

Retailers and wholesalers have 
slightly different requirements 

Appendix B 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

3 Report progress in meeting urban water use targets using the 
standardized form.  

10608.40  Section 5.3 

25 Quantify past, current, and projected water use, identifying the uses 
among water use sectors, for the following: (A) single-family residential, 
(B) multifamily, (C) commercial, (D) industrial, (E) institutional and 
governmental, (F) landscape, (G) sales to other agencies, (H) saline 
water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, conjunctive use, and (I) 
agriculture. 

10631(e)(1) Consider ‘past’ to be 2005, 
present to be 2010, and 
projected to be 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030. Provide 
numbers for each category for 
each of these years. 

Section 6.1 

33 Provide documentation that either the retail agency provided the 
wholesale agency with water use projections for at least 20 years, if the 
UWMP agency is a retail agency, OR, if a wholesale agency, it provided 
its urban retail customers with future planned and existing water source 
available to it from the wholesale agency during the required water-year 
types  

10631(k) Average year, single dry year, 
multiple dry years for 2015, 
2020, 2025, and 2030. 

Section 4.2 

34 Include projected water use for single-family and multifamily residential 
housing needed for lower income households, as identified in the housing 
element of any city, county, or city and county in the service area of the 
supplier. 

10631.1(a)  Section 5.4 

SYSTEM SUPPLIES 

13 Identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of water available 
for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030. 

10631(b) The ‘existing’ water sources 
should be for the same year as 
the “current population” in line 
10. 2035 and 2040 can also be 
provided. 

Section 2.2 

14 Indicate whether groundwater is an existing or planned source of water 
available to the supplier. If yes, then complete 15 through 21 of the 
UWMP Checklist. If no, then indicate “not applicable” in lines 15 through 
21 under the UWMP location column.  

10631(b) Source classifications are: 
surface water, groundwater, 
recycled water, storm water, 
desalinated sea water, 
desalinated brackish 
groundwater, and other. 

Section 2.2 

15 Indicate whether a groundwater management plan been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific authorization for 
groundwater management. Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 

10631(b)(1) Mojave Water Agency Regional 
Water Management Plan 
available online, link provided.   

Section 2.2 

16 Describe the groundwater basin. 10631(b)(2)  Section 2 

17 Indicate whether the groundwater basin is adjudicated? Include a copy of 
the court order or decree. 

10631(b)(2)  Section 2 and 
Appendix C 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

18 Describe the amount of groundwater the urban water supplier has the 
legal right to pump under the order or decree. If the basin is not 
adjudicated, indicate “not applicable” in the UWMP location column. 

10631(b)(2)  Section 2.1 

19 For groundwater basins that are not adjudicated, provide information as to 
whether DWR has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or has 
projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present management 
conditions continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin that 
characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a detailed 
description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. If the basin is adjudicated, 
indicate “not applicable” in the UWMP location column.  

10631(b)(2)  Not Applicable 

20 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and 
sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the 
past five years 

10631(b)(3)  Table 2.2-3 

21 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of 
groundwater that is projected to be pumped. 

10631(b)(4) Provide projections for 2015, 
2020, 2025, and 2030. 

Table 2.2-4 

24 Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-
term or long-term basis. 

10631(d)  Section 4.5 

30 Include a detailed description of all water supply projects and programs 
that may be undertaken by the water supplier to address water supply 
reliability in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry years, excluding demand 
management programs addressed in (f)(1). Include specific projects, 
describe water supply impacts, and provide a timeline for each project. 

10631(h)  Section 4.4 and 
Appendix F 

31 Describe desalinated water project opportunities for long-term supply, 
including, but not limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and 
groundwater.  

10631(i)  Section 4.6 

44 Provide information on recycled water and its potential for use as a water 
source in the service area of the urban water supplier. Coordinate with 
local water, wastewater, groundwater, and planning agencies that operate 
within the supplier's service area. 

10633  Section 4.7 

45 Describe the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the 
supplier's service area, including a quantification of the amount of 
wastewater collected and treated and the methods of wastewater 
disposal. 

10633(a)  Section 4.7 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

46 Describe the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a 
recycled water project. 

10633(b)  Section 4.7 

47 Describe the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service 
area, including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 

10633(c)  Section 4.7 

48 Describe and quantify the potential uses of recycled water, including, but 
not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat 
enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect 
potable reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with 
regard to the technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 

10633(d)  Section 4.7 

49 The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at 
the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of 
recycled water in comparison to uses previously projected. 

10633(e)  Section 4.7 

50 Describe the actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these 
actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

10633(f)  Not applicable at 
this time, see 
Section 4.7 

51 Provide a plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's 
service area, including actions to facilitate the installation of dual 
distribution systems, to promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the 
increased use of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, 
and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that increased use. 

10633(g)  Not applicable at 
this time, see 
Section 4.7 

WATER SHORTAGE RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING b 

5 Describe water management tools and options to maximize resources 
and minimize the need to import water from other regions. 

10620(f)  Section 4.4 and 
Section 7 

22 Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or 
climatic shortage and provide data for (A) an average water year, (B) a 
single dry water year, and (C) multiple dry water years. 

10631(c)(1)  Sections 4.2, 4.3 
and 5.2 

23 For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of 
use - given specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors 
- describe plans to supplement or replace that source with alternative 
sources or water demand management measures, to the extent 
practicable. 

10631(c)(2)  Section 4.4.1 

35 Provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that specifies 
stages of action, including up to a 50-percent water supply reduction, and 
an outline of specific water supply conditions at each stage 

10632(a) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

36 Provide an estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of 
the next three water years based on the driest three-year historic 
sequence for the agency's water supply. 

10632(b)  Section 5.7 

37 Identify actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare 
for, and implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies 
including, but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or 
other disaster. 

10632(c)  Section 5.6 and 
Appendix I 

38 Identify additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use 
practices during water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting 
the use of potable water for street cleaning. 

10632(d) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

39 Specify consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. 
Each urban water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction 
methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce 
water use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a 
water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent reduction in water 
supply. 

10632(e) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

40 Indicated penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 10632(f) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

41 Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions 
described in subdivisions (a) to (f), inclusive, on the revenues and 
expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate 
adjustments.  

10632(g) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

42 Provide a draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 10632(h) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

43 Indicate a mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use 
pursuant to the urban water shortage contingency analysis. 

10632(i) PPHCSD is currently 
developing a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  

Not available at 
this time 

52 Provide information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year 
increments, and the manner in which water quality affects water 
management strategies and supply reliability 

10634 For years 2010, 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030 

Section 3 and 
Appendix G 
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No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

53 Assess the water supply reliability during normal, dry, and multiple dry 
water years by comparing the total water supply sources available to the 
water supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in 
five-year increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and 
multiple dry water years. Base the assessment on the information 
compiled under Section 10631, including available data from state, 
regional, or local agency population projections within the service area of 
the urban water supplier. 

10635(a)   Section 4.3 and 
Section 5.2 

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

26 Describe how each water demand management measures is being 
implemented or scheduled for implementation. Use the list provided. 

10631(f)(1) Discuss each DMM, even if it is 
not currently or planned for 
implementation. Provide any 
appropriate schedules. 

Section 7 

27 Describe the methods the supplier uses to evaluate the effectiveness of 
DMMs implemented or described in the UWMP.  

10631(f)(3)  Section 7 

28 Provide an estimate, if available, of existing conservation savings on 
water use within the supplier's service area, and the effect of the savings 
on the ability to further reduce demand. 

10631(f)(4)  Not available at 
this time 

29 Evaluate each water demand management measure that is not currently 
being implemented or scheduled for implementation. The evaluation 
should include economic and non-economic factors, cost-benefit analysis, 
available funding, and the water suppliers' legal authority to implement the 
work.  

10631(g) See 10631(g) for additional 
wording. 

Not applicable, all 
BMPs/DMMs 
implemented 

32 Include the annual reports submitted to meet the Section 6.2 
requirements, if a member of the CUWCC and signer of the December 
10, 2008 MOU. 

10631(j) Signers of the MOU that submit 
the annual reports are deemed 
compliant with Items 28 and 29. 

PPHCSD is not a 
member of 
CUWCC. 

a The UWMP Requirement descriptions are general summaries of what is provided in the legislation. Urban water suppliers should review the exact legislative wording prior to 
submitting its UWMP. 

b The Subject classification is provided for clarification only. It is aligned with the organization presented in Part I of this guidebook. A water supplier is free to address the UWMP 
Requirement anywhere with its UWMP, but is urged to provide clarification to DWR to facilitate review.  
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Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District 

  1

I. PURPOSE 
 
The Phelan Piñon Hills Community Services District’s Disaster Emergency Response Program is a 
planned response to extraordinary emergency situations resulting from natural disasters, 
system failures, and other unforeseen circumstances beyond the District’s control.  This 
program is an effort on the part of the District to be as prepared for an emergency as it possibly 
can be.  Basic responsibilities are assigned to specific personnel so that maximum coordination 
can be achieved during a response.  Our goal will be to restore dependable water service to our 
customers as soon as possible, and to protect the District’s water system from the possibility of 
contamination.  The District will do its best to respond in a timely and coordinated manner 
when and if an emergency situation presents itself. 
 

 

II. STRATEGY and ORGANIZATION 
 
The District’s response to an emergency which poses any threat to the integrity of its water 
system will be directed by the General Manager or his designee.  This individual will be known 
as and assume the responsibilities of the Incident Commander.  A complete organizational chart 
is on page 15 of this plan. 
 
During the initial emergency response and damage assessment phase, all staff members will be 
directed by normal duty personnel as normally assigned. The department heads will report all 
status information to the Incident Commander and during the recovery phase, all appropriate 
staff will be under the direction of the Incident Commander. 
 
The general response by District personnel to an emergency situation should be as follows: 
 

 Secure their family situation first 
 Contact the District Command Center as soon as possible for direction    
 Personnel assigned inspection duties should proceed immediately 
 Immediately report life threatening situations 

 
For District‐wide emergencies, the Incident Commander will be responsible for the following: 
 

 Evaluating the risk potential 
 Determining source and possible effect 
 Delegating responsibility and authority 
 Assessing priorities in terms of manpower, materials and equipment 
 Mobilizing the proper response effort, both internally and externally 

 
The emergency response team may include any or all of the District’s staff, Board of Directors, 
members of the community, and the District’s consultants (i.e., legal, engineering, financial).  
Depending upon the severity and nature of the emergency, the Incident Commander may 
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activate one or all of the members of the emergency response team.  During an emergency the 
Incident Commander has full authority to make decisions on behalf of the District which will aid 
in the repair and recovery from the effects of the emergency.  The Incident Commander will be 
the liaison between the emergency response team, the Board of Directors, the community, the 
news media, and any other governmental entities that may be involved. 
 
In an effort to ensure the availability of outside assistance in the event of an emergency, the 
Agency is developing mutual aid agreements with other public utilities in our local area. 
 
 

III. EVALUATION of EMERGENCY 
 
The District’s initial response in the event of an emergency will be to inspect the impacted area 
of the District and to attempt to ascertain the level of severity of any damage.  Personnel with 
initial inspection duties shall move quickly and make note of areas where major damage has 
occurred or where potential damage is apparent.  The purpose of these inspections is to 
develop an overview of the situation in an effort to better prioritize mobilization. 
 
Federal, State, and many other governmental agencies have adopted policies which classify 
emergencies into one of three levels of severity: Minor (Level I), Major (Level II), and/or 
Catastrophic (Level III).  The purpose of this rating system is to provide a universal standard for 
determining the level of response that should be activated in an emergency. 
 
In the case of earthquakes, the “Richter” scale of magnitude and the “Modified Mercalli” scale 
of intensity will be used to define the various levels of emergency (see Table 1).  For any other 
emergencies that might arise, the level of severity will be determined in a subjective manner. 
 
The following descriptions define the three levels of severity which are universally accepted by 
most governmental entities and this District. 
 

LEVEL I: MINOR EMERGENCY 
 
A minor to moderate incident for which local resources are available and adequate to repair 
and/or recover from the emergency. 
 
Level I examples: 
 

 Local flooding 
 Short‐term power failure over a large portion of the  
 Agency’s service area 
 Minor earthquakes 
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Level I earthquakes are those which: 
 

 Are felt by sensitive people 
 Feel like vibrations due to a passing truck 
 Are felt by some people while walking 
 Wake up some sleepers 
 Cause trees to sway and most suspended objects to swing 

 
Level I earthquakes generally have a Richter Magnitude of less than 5.5 and a Mercalli Intensity 
of I to VI. However, when evaluating the potential impact of an earthquake, the epicenter 
location must be a prime consideration.  For example, a level I earthquake with an epicenter 
located near one of the Agency’s major facilities could conceivably have the same damage 
effect as a Level II earthquake with an epicenter located some distance away.  The 1989 Malibu, 
the 1989 Newport, and the 1988 Pasadena earthquakes are examples of Level I earthquakes.  
Depending upon the level of local damage, the Emergency Operations Center may or may not 
be activated. 

 
LEVEL II: MAJOR EMERGENCY 

 
A moderate to severe emergency for which local resources may not be adequate or available 
and mutual aid may be required on a local, regional, or State‐wide basis. 
 
Level II examples: 
 

 Regional flooding 
 Power failure throughout the entire Agency service area 
 Strong to very strong earthquakes 

 
Level II earthquakes are those that: 
 

 Are felt by moving people and drivers of cars 
 Awaken most sleepers 
 Cause major power outages 
 Cause major cracks in walls and destroy some buildings 
 Sever utilities and pipelines in some areas 
 Cause some telephone outages 
 Vibrate some structures off of their supports 

 
Level II earthquakes generally have Richter Magnitudes of 5.5 to 6.1 and Mercalli Intensity 
levels of VI to VIII.  The 1987 Westmoreland and the 1987 Whittier earthquakes have been 
classified in this category. 
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LEVEL III: CATASTROPHIC EMERGENCY 
 
A major disastrous emergency for which resources in or near the Agency are rendered useless 
and extensive Federal and/or State resources will be required for repair and recovery. 
 
Level III examples: 
 

 Catastrophic earthquakes 
 
Level III earthquakes are those that: 
 

 Cause regional power outages 
 Destroy and damage many buildings 
 Sever pipelines in many areas 
 Cause widespread telephone outages 
 Create various fires and chemical explosions 

 
The Richter Magnitude for Level III earthquakes ranges from 6.1 to greater than 8.0 and from 
VIII to XII on the Mercalli Intensity scale.  the 1985 Mexico City, 1988 Armenia, 1989 Loma 
Prieta, and the 1992 Landers earthquakes have been classified in this category.  While the 
District has experienced a Level III emergency in the past, the infrequent occurrence of these 
events makes it difficult to project the amount of damage which could occur locally or even 
regionally.  However, a Level III emergency is expected to result in widespread and extensive 
damage within the District’s boundaries. 
 
 

IV. REPORTING PROCEDURES 
 
Field personnel are, from time to time, confronted with situations which could be classified as 
reportable incidents or emergencies but are not considered to be immediately life threatening.  
In most cases, contact with their supervisor or a call to “911” is all that is required to resolve 
the problem.  For the purposes of this Disaster Emergency Response Program it shall be 
presumed that either a level I, II, or III emergency has occurred or the following reporting 
procedures shall be used by all Inspectors/Patrollers as they proceed along their assigned route. 
 

 Observe the damage from a safe distance.   
 Quickly assess the extent of the damage being as complete as possible. 
 Report by two‐way radio to the Dispatcher including time and location. 
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V. MOBILIZATION 
 
When the emergency evaluation is complete and the event has been assigned an emergency 
level, the Incident Commander shall order and direct the appropriate mobilization level that 
will restore reliable water service to the District’s customers as quickly as possible. 
 
Mobilization levels are generally defined as follows: 
 

Level I Emergency ‐ Limited Mobilization 
 
The Inspectors/Patrollers and any other designated emergency personnel will proceed with 
their assigned emergency inspection duties.  The Inspectors/Patrollers will, as they encounter 
it, report any damage to the Dispatcher on the District’s two‐way radio system in the vehicles. 
 
The Dispatcher will forward any damage reports to the Incident Commander who will analyze 
and prioritize them.  The Incident Commander may then direct additional personnel to be 
mobilized to the areas of reported damage. 
 

Level II Emergency ‐ Moderate Mobilization 
 
The Inspectors/Patrollers and any other designated emergency personnel will proceed with 
their assigned emergency inspection duties.  The Emergency Organization Committee, led by 
the Incident Commander, shall report to the Command Post for emergency response duty.  
Emergency communications shall be established between the Command Post and the District’s 
mobile vehicles as soon as possible. 
 

Level III ‐ Full Mobilization 
 
The Inspectors/Patrollers and any other designated emergency personnel will proceed with 
their assigned emergency inspection duties.  This level of emergency requires the full response 
and mobilization of all District employees and resources.  In the event of a Level III emergency 
which affects a majority or all of the District’s service area, the District would require assistance 
in the form of manpower, equipment, and materials from outside entities. 
 

 
VI. REPAIR and RECOVERY 
 
Once the level of emergency has been determined and the appropriate mobilization has been 
ordered, it shall be the objective of the District to repair as quickly as possible any and all 
damage suffered by the Agency as a result of the emergency event.  While full and complete 
recovery is our final objective, service restoration is our primary and immediate concern.  Full 
recovery from emergency events may take many months, and sometimes even years. 
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VII. COMMUNICATION 
 
Good reliable communication is an absolute must in an emergency situation.  Whether it is the 
dissemination of factual information to the public or direction for emergency response teams, 
communication is a vital link in a successful response to an emergency by the District. 
 

RESPONSE TEAM COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The District vehicles are equipped with two‐way radios which operate on a frequency 
designated specifically for the District’s use.  Channel one (1) is the channel that will be used by 
the District in the event of an emergency.  Each radio has the capability of two (2) channels and 
other entities can be reached with Agency radios if necessary.  The District also owns portable 
cell telephones which can be used as well for communication during an emergency. 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The District will report factual, reliable information to the public as quickly as possible.  The 
local media will receive updated information as soon as it becomes available.  All local and 
remote radio, television, and newspaper entities will be apprised of any current events as they 
happen.  The Incident Commander will be the sole source for the public release of all official 
information regarding the emergency, whether to the media or others.  All media inquiries shall 
be directed to the Incident Commander and responses shall be documented.  All meetings with 
citizens groups or speaking engagements shall be documented and kept on file. 
 
In cases where District personnel other than the Incident Commander must provide 
information to the public without the ability to coordinate with the Incident Commander, said 
personnel shall advise the Incident Commander as soon as possible about the nature of the 
information and to whom it was given. 
 
While pertinent emergency information will be released as it becomes available, regular public 
news releases will be issued according to the following schedule: 
 

 8:00 a.m. for all media 
 4:00 p.m. for all media 
 9:00 p.m. for all media 

 
In the interest of providing the most accurate and timely information to the people most 
affected by the emergency incident, news media releases will be prioritized as follows: 
 

 Local area radio stations 
 Cable TV serving the local area 
 Major network TV stations on location 
 The Mountaineer newspaper 
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 Press Enterprise 
 Los Angeles Times 

 
GOVERNMENT LIAISON 

 
The Government Liaison shall be the General Manager of the District or their designee.  It is the 
responsibility of the Government Liaison to establish a dialogue with the local, State, and 
Federal agencies which may be requested/required to aid the District with it’s response to an 
emergency incident.  The Government Liaison, through the Incident Commander, will 
coordinate the obtaining of materials, equipment, and personnel from other governmental 
entities. 
 
 

VIII. DOCUMENTATION 
 
The documentation of an emergency incident from beginning to end is of the utmost 
importance.  The use of still and video cameras to record all phases of the emergency incident, 
as well as written reports by key personnel is required by District.  This information will be used 
to maintain a permanent record of what took place and how the District responded.  This 
information will also be used to document any claims filed for financial relief due the Agency 
from any of the appropriate State and Federal entities. 
 
 

IX. WATER QUALITY 
 
The quality of the water in the District’s distribution system will be one of the District’s highest 
priorities.  As soon as possible the distribution system will be sampled and bacteriologically 
tested for potability.  Samples will be taken by pressure zones and analyzed using the fastest 
method possible (24 hour turn around time).  Test results will be reviewed and bacteriologically 
safe water quality will be established.  The Incident Commander shall keep the State 
Department of Health Services informed at all times of the District’s water quality situation. 
 
 

X. EMERGENCY PURCHASING PROCEDURES 
 
All purchasing for emergency materials and/or equipment shall be approved by the Incident 
Commander.  All requisitions, purchase orders, invoices and receiving slips shall be identified as 
emergency purchases by the letters “DE” (Declared Emergency) and kept in a separate filing 
system for documentation purposes.  These financial records will be of great importance when 
attempting to quantify the cost of any emergency incident. 
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Emergency Telephone Numbers 
 

Command Center/ Agency Office- 

Public Line 760-868-1212 Private Line 760-868-6464

Management Staff- 

 Home 
 

          Personal Cell Business Cell

Don Bartz 
General Manager 
 

760-949-2639 760-403-6232 

Operations Staff- 

 Home 
 

Personal Cell Agency Cell

Derrick Sandwick-  
Director of Operations 
 

760-244-5313 760-403-5099 

Bill Clark- 
Field Supervisor 
 

760-961-1416 760-403-5103 

Chris Bishop 
 

760-955-9974 760-217-1669 

Robb Perry 
 

760-241-8380 760-241-8380 

 

Office Support Staff- 

 Home 
 

         Personal Cell         Agency Cell

Debbie Bishop 
 

760-955-9974 760-217-4277 

Allyson Beran 
 

760-951-2742 760-617-5329 

Ray Ruppel           760-366-9043                      760-333-8411
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Local Emergency Services Telephone Numbers 
 

General: 
 
California State Office of Emergency Services 
 

 
 

 
 

916-845-8500 
916-845-8510 

fax  916-845-8511 

San Bernardino County Sheriff 
 

Phelan 760-249-3212 
760-245-4211 

911 

California Highway Patrol 
 

Victorville 760-760-241-1186

San Bernardino County Building & Safety 
 

Victorville 760-241-7691 
Fax 760-843-4315

Ambulance Service 
   American Medical Response 
   Desert Star Medical Transportation 
   Victory Medical Transportation 

 
Victorville 
Victorville 
Apple Valley 

 
760-245-7051 
760-617-6501 
617-467-0253 

Fire Department- CDF Phelan 
 

Phelan 760-868-3555

Hospitals: 
 
St. Mary’s Medical Center 
 
Desert Valley Hospital 
 
Victor Valley Community Hospital  

 
 
Apple Valley 
 
Victorville 
 
Victorville 
 
 

 
 

760-242-2311 
 

760-241-8000 
 

760-245-8691 
 

Public Communication: 
 
Y 102 107.7 FM Radio 
 
Mountaineer Progress 
 
Victor Valley Daily Press 
 

  
 

760-241-1313 
 

760-249-3245 
 

760-241-7744 
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Other Emergency Phone Numbers 
 

Dig Alert 
 

800-422-4133 
800-227-2600 

811 

Inland County Emergency Medical Agency Disaster Clerk 909-388-5823 

California Department of Public Health 
 
  
Andres Aguirre, Sanitary Engineer 
 
California Department of  Public Health 
Dept. of Drinking Water and Environmental Mgmt. Field Office 
1836 Commerce Center Circle, Suite B 
San Bernardino, CA  92408 

909-383-4308 
fax 909-383-4745 

 
 
 

916-449-5577  
fax 916-449-5575  

 
 

 Sean McCarthy, Senior Sanitary Engineer        office 
                                                                                      home 

909-388-2602 
909-598-4211 

 

           Jaydeb Das, Associate Sanitary Engineer         office 
                                                                                      home  
       
San Bernardino County Health Department Communications Center 
 

909-383-4320 
909-598-4211 

 
909-356-3805

National Response Center  
For the reporting of chemical spills, oil spills or biological terrorism 

800-424-8802
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Equipment Rental 
 

Apex Rentals  
9262 C Ave. 
Hesperia, CA  92345 
 

 
 
 

760-244-9349 
 

Andersons True Value Hardware 
3936 Phelan Road, Phelan CA, 92329 
Ken Anderson, Owner 
 

 
 
 

760-868-3335 
 

Gold Star Equipment Rentals 
21834 Bear Valley Road 
Apple Valley, CA 92308 
 

 
fax  

760-247-3687 
760-247-0189 

Tops In Barricades 
10968 I Ave, #E 
Hesperia, CA 92394 
Troy, Owner 

 
 

760-949-5991 
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Services 
 

Engineering 
 
Merrill Johnson Engineering 
12138 Industrial Blvd, Ste 240 
Victorville, CA 92395 
 

 
 
 
fax 

 
 
760-241-6146 
760-241-0566 

Water Treatment 
 
Waterline Technologies 
620 N. Santiago Street 
Santa Ana, CA 92701 
 

 
 
 
fax 
fax  

 
 
714-564-9100 
714-564-9300 
714-564-9700 

Wells, Pumps 
 
Tri-County Pump Company 
241 South Arrowhead 
San Bernardino, Ca. 92408 
 
Layne Christensen 
P.O. Box 1249 
Barstow, Ca.92312 
 
So Cal Pump 
1610 Palmyrita Avenue 
Riverside, CA 92507 
Dave Haven, Customer Service 
 

 
 
 
fax 
 
 
 
 
fax 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
909-888-7706 
909-888-3653 
 
 
 
760-254-3351 
760-254-3069 
 
 
 
909-341-5025 
909-341-5031 

Communications 
 
Apple Valley Communications  
PO Box 787 
Apple Valley, CA 92307 

 
 
 
Fax 
After hrs 

 
 
760-247-2668 
760-247-0087 
760-961-6076 
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Repair Material Suppliers 
 

Inland Water Works 
2468 North Mira Monte Drive 
San Bernardino, CA  92405 
 

 
 
fax 
 

800-794-3121 
909-883-8941 
909-881-4041 

Furguson  
15220 Anacapa Rd 
Victorville, CA 92392 

 
fax 
 

760-241-7966 
760-241-8763 

   
 

 
 

Emergency Contractors 
 

High Desert Underground 
12443 Wild Rose Ct. 
Oak Hills, CA 92344 
 

 
fax 
 

760-244-5313 
760-244-6873 

Kelly’s General Engineering  
Apple Valley, CA 92307 

 760-247-6537 
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EMERGENCY ORGANIZATIONAL PROCESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Incident 
Reported 

On call or on duty notifies 
General Manager and .or 

Supervisor 

Assessment Prioritization and 
Mobilization 

Repair General Manager 
Reports to Board 

Demobilization 

Recovery 
Report to State Office 

of Emergency            
Services 

 

Report to local or 
Federal agencies that 

may be impacted 

Report to public and 
press 
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EMERGENCY ORGANIZATION CHART 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Incident 
Commander and 
Executive Staff 

Public Information 

External 
Communication-
Health & Safety 

Government Liaison 

Board of Directors 

Human Resources Operations

Repairs

Finance & 
Accounting 

Outside Support Communications 
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Declared Emergency Damage Repair Report 
 
It is imperative that all Declared Emergency damage is adequately documented by paperwork 
and photographs for the purposes of applying for emergency funding.  If you are unable in the 
event of the emergency to adequately document damages please radio base or call base by 
cellular phone and the information will be recorded by office staff. 
 

Type and Location of Repair: 

 

 
Damage Description: 
 
 

 

 
Personnel: 
 
Name:                                              Hrs:            Name:                                                Hrs: 

 
Name:                                              Hrs:            Name:                                                Hrs: 

 
Equipment: 
 
Item:                                                 Hrs:            Item::                                                 Hrs: 

 
Item:                                                 Hrs:            Item::                                                 Hrs: 

 
Materials: 
 
 

 

 
Repair Description:        Temporary           Permanent 
 
 

Date of Report:                                       By: 
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If utilizing volunteers then prepare a sign in sheet.  List names, occupation and special areas of 
skill and experience.  Volunteers report to the Incident Commander. 
 
Purchase a rubber self inking stamp titled DECLARED EMERGENCY. 
 
Purchase clip boards 
 
In the event of a hazardous materials spill or propane line break call the HazMat team for safe 
clean up.  Do not put yourself into danger. 
 
Additional copies of facilities maps are located at 4037 Phelan Rd. Ste. C-1, Phelan, CA 92371 
 
After a significant earthquake do a sampling for Bac T’s 
 
Assess damages, shut down water lines to Agency facilities or buildings if necessary 
 
Shut down propane lines or propane tanks if necessary. 
 
Purchase generator for main office. 
 
If roads are down can goods and services be flown into or out of the airport?  Plane courier 
services for water testing? 
 
 

 




	District Letter
	Budget
	Audits
	Urban Water Management Plan



